Rate Sheet Supplement dated May 1, 2025 to the Prospectus dated May 1, 2025 for the Oak Elite Advisory Registered Index-Linked Variable Annuity issued by Midland National Life Insurance Company

through the Midland National Life Separate Account C

This Rate Sheet Supplement should be read carefully and retained with the prospectus dated May 1, 2025 for the Oak Elite Advisory Registered Index- Linked Variable Annuity Contract (the "Contract").

This Rate Sheet Supplement provides the current Lifetime Payment Percentages under the GLWB riders as described in the "Guaranteed Living Withdrawal Benefits" section of the prospectus. **This Rate Sheet Supplement is effective until superseded by a subsequent Rate Sheet Supplement.** For as long as this Rate Sheet Supplement is in effect, we will apply the Lifetime Payment Percentages in this Rate Sheet Supplement to GLWB riders issued pursuant to an application that was submitted while this Rate Sheet Supplement is in effect. We will file a new Rate Sheet Supplement at least 10 Business Days before the new Lifetime Payment Percentages go into effect.

Before submitting your application for a Contract, please confirm that you have obtained the current Rate Sheet Supplement. To obtain the current Rate Sheet Supplement:

- Contact your Advisor
- Contact us at 833-492-0022
- Go to https://www.midlandnational.com/oakeliteadv
- Go to www.sec.gov under File Nos. 333-282591; 333-262682

The Lifetime Payment Percentage is used to determine your Lifetime Payment Amount under your GLWB rider based on the age of the younger Covered Person on the Contract Issue Date. The applicable Lifetime Payment Percentage is increased for each full Contract Year that elapses after the Contract Issue Date but before you elect to begin Lifetime Payments under your GLWB rider. The Lifetime Payment Percentage applicable to you is set forth in the Rate Sheet Supplement in effect when we receive your application and initial premium payment in Good Order. If we receive your application and initial premium payment is in effect from the one that was in effect when you signed your application:

- If the subsequent Rate Sheet Supplement has *lower* Lifetime Payment Percentages than the Rate Sheet Supplement that was in effect when you signed your application, we will inform you and your Advisor and request confirmation that you accept the lower Lifetime Payment Percentages then in effect. You or your Advisor may also instruct us to issue the Contract without the GLWB Rider.
- If the subsequent Rate Sheet Supplement has *higher* Lifetime Payment Percentages than the Rate Sheet Supplement that was in effect when you signed your application, we will issue your Contract with the GLWB Rider at the higher Lifetime Payment Percentages then in effect.

Once your Contract and GLWB Rider are issued, the Lifetime Payment Percentage applicable to you will not change for the life of your Contract. Please refer to Appendix D for historical Lifetime Payment Percentages from superseded Rate Sheet Supplements.

The current Lifetime Payment Percentages are contained in the table below:

Age of Younger Covered Person at Contract Issue	Single Covered Person Lifetime Payment Percentage (as a percentage of Benefit Base)	Joint Covered Person Lifetime Payment Percentage (as a percentage of Benefit Base)	Lifetime Payment Percentage increase for each increase in Attained Age from Contract Issue to GLWB Exercise Date
50	3 500%	3 000%	+0 100%
51	3 575%	3.075%	+0.100%
52	3.650%	3.150%	+0.100%
53	3.725%	3.225%	+0.100%
54	3.800%	3.300%	+0.100%
55	3.875%	3.375%	+0.100%
56	3.950%	3.450%	+0.100%
57	4.025%	3.525%	+0.100%
58	4.100%	3.600%	+0.100%
59	4.175%	3.675%	+0.100%
60	4.250%	3.750%	+0.100%
61	4.400%	3.900%	+0.100%
62	4.550%	4.050%	+0.100%
63	4.700%	4.200%	+0.100%

64	4.850%	4.350%	+0.100%
65	5.000%	4.500%	+0.125%
66	5.150%	4.650%	+0.125%
67	5.300%	4.800%	+0.125%
68	5.450%	4.950%	+0.125%
69	5.600%	5.100%	+0.125%
70	5.750%	5.250%	+0.125%
71	5.900%	5.400%	+0.125%
72	6.050%	5.550%	+0.125%
73	6.200%	5.700%	+0.125%
74	6.350%	5.850%	+0.125%
75	6.500%	6.000%	+0.150%
76	6.650%	6.150%	+0.150%
77	6.800%	6.300%	+0.150%
78	6.950%	6.450%	+0.150%
79	7.100%	6.600%	+0.150%
80	7.250%	6.750%	+0.150%
81	7.400%	6.900%	+0.150%
82	7.550%	7.050%	+0.150%
83	7.700%	7.200%	+0.150%
84	7.850%	7.350%	+0.150%
85	8.000%	7.500%	+0.150%

Oak Elite Advisory Registered Index-Linked Variable Annuity Prospectus

May 1, 2025

A Flexible Premium Deferred Registered Index Linked Variable Annuity issued by: Midland National Life Insurance Company

through the Midland National Life Separate Account C

This prospectus describes the Oak Elite Advisory Registered Index-Linked Variable Annuity (the "Contract") issued by Midland National Life Insurance Company (the "Company," "us," "we," "our"). This prospectus provides information you should know before purchasing the Contract.

The Contract is designed to aid in long-term financial planning and provides for accumulation of capital on a tax-deferred basis for retirement or other savings needs. The Contract does not provide tax deferral benefits beyond those already provided under the Internal Revenue Code for a Contract purchased as a Qualified Contract through an Individual Retirement Account ("IRA"). Amounts withdrawn from the Contract prior to age 59 1/2 may also be subject to taxes, including a 10% federal penalty tax. You should consult with your tax advisor for more information. The Contract is available for purchase through financial intermediaries ("Advisors") that may charge a fee for their asset management and/or investment advisory services ("Advisory Fee"). The Company is not a party to the Advisory Fee. The Advisory Fee that your Advisor charges you, if any, is solely between you and your Advisor, and is in addition to the fees and expenses for the Contract described in this prospectus. You may elect to have the Advisory Fee deducted from your Contract Value or arrange to pay the Advisory Fee from a separate source. If you invest in the Cycle Investments, it may be better for you to pay Advisory Fees from a separate source because (as discussed further below) withdrawals from Cycle Investments prior to the end of the investment period are subject to a "Fair Value" calculation and the downside protection will not apply until the end of the investment period. You should discuss with your Advisor before deciding to have Advisory Fees paid from your Contract Value. If you choose to pay the Advisory Fee from your Contract Value, this deduction will reduce the standard death benefit and annuity benefits under the Contract and may be subject to federal and state income taxes, including a 10% federal penalty tax if you are under age 59 1/2. The deduction of Advisory Fees from your Contract Value will not reduce the value of any optional benefit riders you may elect. However, all deductions, including deductions for Advisory Fees, will reduce the likelihood of increasing the value of the optional Annual Ratchet Death Benefit or Guaranteed Living Withdrawal Benefit ("GLWB") riders.

The Contract offers two types of investment options: (i) Cycle Investments, which are linked to the performance of an Index; and (ii) Subaccounts ("Subaccount(s)"), which, in turn, each invest in a mutual fund portfolio ("Investment Portfolio"). You may allocate your premiums entirely to the Cycle Investments, entirely to the Subaccounts, or a combination of the two types of investment options, subject to our right not to offer any Cycle Investments in the future. See **APPENDIX A: INVESTMENT OPTIONS AVAILABLE UNDER THE CONTRACT** for additional information about each investment option.

• Each Cycle Investment provides a return based on the performance, positive or negative, of the Index to which it is linked for specified period of time (the "Cycle Term"). Any positive return will be subject to either a Cap Rate and/or a Participation Rate (the "Crediting Type"), which will limit the amount you can earn on a Cycle Investment. A Cap Rate is the maximum positive return that you could be credited on the last day of the Cycle Term (the "Cycle End Date"). A Participation Rate is the portion of positive Index performance, if any, that you will be credited on the Cycle End Date, and your potential increase is not subject to a maximum. We guarantee that we will never offer a Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate Below 2.5 % or a Participation Rate below 10% for the life of your Contract.

Any negative return will be subject to a certain level of downside protection in the form of either a Floor Rate or Buffer Rate (the "Cycle Structure"). A Floor Rate is the maximum loss that you will bear on the Cycle End Date. A Buffer Rate is the maximum Index loss that the Company will protect you from on the Cycle End Date, and you will be subject to any Index loss in excess of the Buffer Rate. You could lose up to 10% of your investment in a Cycle Investment with a -10% Floor Rate; up to 90% of your investment in a Cycle Investment with a -10% Buffer Rate; up to 80% of your investment in a Cycle Investment with a -20% Buffer Rate; and up to 70% of your investment in a Cycle Investment with a -30% Buffer Rate. We reserve the right to remove or substitute the Cycle Investments currently available and to add new Cycle Investment options in the future. If we exercise our right to substitute, the limit on Index losses will not change for so long as that Cycle Investment remains available under the Contract, and the limit on Index gains will not change except from one Cycle Term to the next. If we add new Cycle Investment options, the limits on Index gain and loss offered under the new Cycle Investment may differ from those of the Cycle Investments currently available, perhaps significantly. We guarantee that we will never offer a Cycle Investment with a Floor Rate lower than -60% or a Buffer Rate lower than -5% for the life of your Contract. We reserve the right not to offer any Cycle Investments in the future. If we do so, you will be limited to investing in the Subaccounts, which are not tied to the performance of an Index and do not provide any protection against losses. This Contract may not be appropriate for you if you intend to invest solely in the Index-linked Cycle Investments.

• Your Accumulation Value in each Subaccount will increase or decrease based on investment performance of the underlying Investment Portfolio. This means that a Subaccount's Accumulation Unit Value is not based on a Fair Value calculation, unlike a Cycle Investment Unit Value prior to the Cycle End Date.

We reserve the right to reject or place limitations on the acceptance and allocation of additional premiums. If we do so, you may be unable or limited in your ability to increase your Contract Value, the value of your death benefit, and the benefit base of any GLWB rider you elect through additional premium payments.

The contract is a complex investment vehicle and involves risks, including potential loss of principal. The Contract is not a short-term investment and is not appropriate for an investor who needs ready access to cash. Withdrawals could result in negative contract adjustments based on the Fair Value of the Cycle Investments, taxes, and tax penalties. Prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value is based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. This means on any day prior to the Cycle End Date if you make a withdrawal (including Lifetime Payments under the GLWB riders, withdrawals to pay Advisory Fees, systematic withdrawals and required minimum distributions), transfer to the Subaccounts, surrender or annuitize the Contract, or if a death benefit becomes payable, your Cycle Investment Value could reflect lower gains and higher losses than on the Cycle End Date and you could lose up to 100% of your principal investment and any earnings. This Contract may not be appropriate for you if you intend or need to make withdrawals prior to the Cycle End Dates.

Our obligations under the Contract are subject to our financial strength and claims-paying ability.

Before you purchase the Contract, you should carefully read this prospectus and speak with your financial professional about the Contract's features, benefits, risks, and fees, and whether the Contract is appropriate for you based upon your financial situation and objective. You should also consult with a tax professional.

There are also risks associated with investing in the Subaccounts, including the risk of loss of up to all or a significant amount of your principal investment and any earnings. You should not buy this Contract if you are not willing to assume these investment risks.

If you are a new investor in the Contract, you may cancel your Contract within 10 days of receiving it without paying fees or penalties, although the amount you receive may reflect negative adjustments based on the Fair Value of the Cycle Investments. In some states, this cancellation period may be longer. Upon cancellation, you will receive either a full refund of the amount you paid with your application or your total Contract Value. You should review this prospectus, or consult with your investment professional, for additional information about the specific cancellation terms that apply. See "Right to Cancel" in this prospectus for more detail.

The Contract described in this Prospectus:

- Is not a bank deposit;
- Is not an obligation or guarantee of a bank or credit union;
- Is not insured or guaranteed by the FDIC or a government agency;
- Is subject to loss of principal.

NEITHER THE SEC NOR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION HAS APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED OF THESE SECURITIES OR DETERMINED IF THIS PROSPECTUS IS ACCURATE OR COMPLETE. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

Additional Information about certain investment products, including variable and index-linked annuities, has been prepared by the Securities and Exchange Commission's staff and is available at Investor.gov.

Prospectus Date: May 1, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DEFINITI	<u>ONS</u>
OVERVIE	W OF THE OAK ELITE ADVISORY REGISTERED INDEX-LINKED AND VARIABLE ANNUITY
IMPORTA	NT INFORMATION YOU SHOULD CONSIDER ABOUT THE CONTRACT
FEE TABI	<u></u>
<u>PRINCIPA</u>	AL RISKS OF INVESTING IN THE CONTRACT
Risk	s of Investing in the Cycle Investments
	Risk of Loss
	Liquidity Risk
	Changes to the Cycle Investments
	Limited Participation in Positive Performance
	Cap Rates and Participation Rates
	Cycle Investment Unit Value Based Upon Fair Value During Cycle Term
	Risk Associated with Indices
	No Rights in the Securities Underlying the Index
	Replacement of the Index
Risk	s of Investing in the Subaccounts
Othe	r General Risks of Investing in the Contract
THE OAK	ELITE ADVISORY REGISTERED INDEX-LINKED AND VARIABLE ANNUITY CONTRACT
Purc	hasing the Contract
	Right to Cancel
	Tax-free Section 1035 Exchanges
Addi	tional Premium Payments
	Allocation of Premium Payments
	Changing Your Premium Payment Allocation Instructions
The	Cycle Investment Options
	Features of a Cycle Investment
	The Indices
	Replacement of the Index
	Investing in the Cycle Investments
	Cycle Investment Value
	Cycle Investment Unit Value Calculation for Cycle Investments with Floor Rate and Cap Rate
	Cycle Investment Unit Value Calculation for Cycle Investments with a Buffer Rate and Cap Rate
	Cycle Investment Unit Value Calculation for Cycle Investments with a Buffer Rate and a Participation Rate
	Rate
	Transfers out of a Cycle Investment
	Withdrawals from Cycle Investments
	Cycle End Date Payments; Rollovers
	Valuation of A Cycle Investment
	Cycle Investment Unit
	Cycle Investment Unit Value
The	Subaccount Investment Options
	Availability of the Investment Portfolios
	Your Accumulation Value (Contract Value allocated to the Subaccounts)

Accumulation Units	
Transfers of Accumulation Value	
Transfer Limitations	
Processing Surrenders and Partial Withdrawals – Cycle Investment & Subaccounts	
Benefits Under the Contract	51
Systematic Withdrawals	53
Dollar Cost Averaging (DCA)	
Portfolio Rebalancing	
Death Benefit	
Guaranteed Living Withdrawal Benefits	
CHARGES, FEES AND ADJUSTMENTS	
Transaction Expenses	
Annual Contract Expenses	
Investment Portfolio Charges	
Optional Benefit Rider Charges	
State Premium Taxes	
Other Taxes	
Adjustments for Fair Value	
Advisory Fees Deducted from the Contract Value	
ΜΑΤΙΙΡΙΤΥ ΠΑΤΕ	(7
Electing an Income Payment Ontion	
Fixed Payment Ontions	67
Income Payment Options	08
<u>income i ayment options</u>	08
FEDERAL TAX STATUS	
Annuity Contracts in General	
Qualified and Non-Qualified Contracts	
Minimum Distribution Rules and Eligible Rollover Distributions	
Diversification and Distribution Requirements	
Owner Control	
Surrenders and Partial Withdrawals	
Advisory Fees	
Multiple Contracts	
Withholding	
Annuity Payments	
Partial Annuitization	
Investment Income Surtax	
Definition of Spouse under Federal Law	
Annuity Contracts Purchased by Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Corporations	
Taxation of Death Benefit Proceeds	
Transfers, Assignments or Exchange of Contracts	
Possible Tax Law Changes	
Federal Estate, Gift and Generation-Skipping Transfer Taxes	
Annuity Purchases by Residents of Puerto Rico	
Foreign Tax Credits	
OTHER INFORMATION	
The Registered Separate Account	
The Non-Registered Separate Account	
Modification to the Contract	

Administrative Procedures	71
Distribution of the Contract	72
Legal Proceedings	72
Financial Statements	72
Portfolio Voting Rights	72
APPENDIX A – INVESTMENT OPTIONS AVAILABLE UNDER THE CONTRACT	A-1
APPENDIX B – STATE VARIATIONS	A-3
<u>APPENDIX C – INDEX DISCLAIMERS</u>	A-4
APPENDIX D – SUPERSEDED RATE SHEET SUPPLEMENT INFORMATION	A-6

DEFINITIONS

For your convenience, below is a glossary of the special terms we use in this prospectus. These terms are generally capitalized throughout this document.

Accumulation Phase means the period of time from the date you purchase the Contract to the date you apply your Contract Value to an annuity payment option.

Accumulation Unit means the units credited to each Subaccount in the Registered Separate Account before the Maturity Date.

Accumulation Unit Value means the value of an Accumulation Unit of a Subaccount for a Valuation Period.

Accumulation Value means the sum of the amounts you have in the Subaccounts.

Advisor means a registered investment advisor providing asset management and/or investment advisory services to you with respect to your Contract Value.

Advisory Fee means the fees paid by you to an Advisor for asset management and/or investment advisory services with respect to your Contract Value. The Company is not a party to the Advisory Fee. The Advisory Fee, if any, is solely between you and your Advisor. You may elect to have the Advisory Fee deducted from your Contract Value or arrange to pay the Advisory Fee from a separate source. See the "Advisory Fee Risk" section for important information about the risks associated with choosing to have your Advisory Fee deducted from your Contract Value.

Annual Ratchet Death Benefit Rider means the optional Annual Ratchet Death Benefit available for an additional charge, which pays your beneficiary the greater of (i) your Contract Value, or (ii) your total premium payments, adjusted for Gross Partial Withdrawals, with the potential for annual "step ups" on each Contract Anniversary prior to the oldest Owner's age 85. For more detailed information, see "Death Benefits."

Annuitant means the person(s) whose life is used to determine the amount and duration of any annuity payments involving life contingencies. The Annuitant may not be changed during the Annuitant's lifetime. If you elect the Joint and Survivor Income Payment option, the duration of any annuity payment will depend on the life of the Annuitant and the Joint Annuitant.

Annuitization means an election of an annuity payment option.

Annuitize means an election to receive regular income payments from your Contract under one of the annuity payment options. An election to annuitize your Contract is irrevocable. If you elect to annuitize your Contract, you will no longer be able to exercise any liquidity (e.g., withdrawal or surrender) provision that may have previously been available. In addition, the standard Death Benefit, and any optional death benefits you have elected will terminate without value. If you elected an optional GLWB Rider and Lifetime Payments have begun, your GLWB Rider will not terminate and your benefits under the GLWB Rider will continue until the death(s) of the Covered Person(s). If you elected an optional GLWB Rider and Lifetime Payments have not yet begun, you may choose to begin Lifetime Payments or you may purchase a Single Pay Immediate Annuity ("SPIA") with your Contract Value.

Beneficiary means the person(s) to whom Death Benefit will be paid in the event of the death of an Owner.

Benefit Base means the base amount that is used to determine your Lifetime Payment Amount each Contract Year under a GLWB rider.

Buffer Rate means the rate used to determine the Cycle End Date Unit Value Buffer as described in "Valuation of a Cycle Investment - On the Cycle End Date" later in this Prospectus. It represents the maximum loss due to negative Index performance from which the Owner is protected on a Cycle End Date. The Buffer Rate does not apply before the Cycle End Date.

Business Day means any day the New York Stock Exchange is open for regular trading. Our Business Day ends when the New York Stock Exchange closes for regular trading, generally 3:00 p.m. Central Time.

Cap Rate means the rate used to determine the Cycle Investment's Unit Value gain. It represents the maximum potential increase in the Cycle Investment Unit Value for a Cycle Investment on the Cycle End Date for Cycles with a Cap Rate Crediting Type.

Contract Anniversary means the same date in each Contract Year as the Issue Date.

Contract Month means a month that starts on the same date as the Issue Date in each month. For this purpose, if the Issue Date is not a calendar date in every month, then we look forward to the first day of the next calendar month. For example, assume a Contract is issued on January 31st; subsequent Contract months will begin on the first day of each month (February 1, March 31, April 1, May 31, etc.).

Contract Quarter means a three-month period that starts on the same date as the Issue Date in each three-month period. For this purpose, if the Issue Date is not a calendar date in every month, then we look forward to the first day of the next calendar month. For example, assume a Contract is issued on January 31st; Contract quarters will begin on the first day of each quarter (May 1, July 31, and October 31).

Contract Value means the sum of amounts invested in the Cycle Investments and the Subaccounts, plus any amounts in the Default Account.

Contract Value Death Benefit means the standard Death Benefit included under your Contract at no additional charge, which pays your beneficiary your Contract Value. We also refer to this as the standard Death Benefit.

Contract Year means a year that starts on the Issue Date or on each Contract Anniversary thereafter.

Covered Person means the person(s) whose life is used to determine the amount and duration of any Lifetime Payments under a GLWB rider.

Crediting Type means the upside investment exposure type associated with a Cycle Investment. We offer three upside investment exposure types: (i) the Cap Rate, (ii) Participation Rate and (ii) the Cap Rate with Participation Rate.

Customer Service Center means where you must send correspondence, service or transaction requests, and inquiries. *Please note:* Premium payments must be sent to P.O. Box 9261, Des Moines, IA 50306-9261. The overnight mailing address is Midland National, 8300 Mills Civic Parkway, West Des Moines, IA 50266-3833. This should only be used for mail delivered via a courier.

Cycle Business Day means any Business Day on which the Cycle Investment Unit Value for a Cycle Investment is determined.

Cycle End Date means the Cycle Business Day on which a Cycle Investment is scheduled to end. Any Cycle End Date will be the Business Day prior to the 3rd Thursday of each month, provided the 3rd Thursday is a Business Day. If the 3rd Thursday of the month is not a Business Day, the following Business Day will be used.

Cycle Investment means an index-linked investment under the Contract that has a specific Cycle Type Start Date, and Cycle End Date.

Cycle Investment Unit means the measurement we use to calculate a Cycle Investment Value. Units may only be purchased on the Cycle Start Date.

Cycle Investment Unit Value means the value of a Cycle Investment Unit on a Cycle Investment Business Day. The Initial Cycle Investment Unit Value on any Cycle Start Date is \$10.00. Prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value is determined by the Fair Value, and the Floor and Buffer rates do not apply.

Cycle Investment Value means the sum of the amounts you have invested in the Cycle Investments. The value of a Cycle Investment on any Cycle Business Day is equal to the number of Cycle Investment Units multiplied by that day's Cycle Investment Unit Value. We also use this term, in context, to define the amount you have invested in a single Cycle Investment.

Cycle Start Date means the Business Day on which a Cycle Investment is established. Any Cycle Start Date will be the 3rd Thursday of each month, provided the 3rd Thursday is a Business Day. If the 3rd Thursday of the month is not a Business Day, the following Business Day will be used.

Cycle Structure means the downside protection type associated with a Cycle Investment. We offer two downside protection types: (i) the Floor Rate, and (ii) the Buffer Rate.

Cycle Term, for any Cycle Investment, means the period from the Cycle Start Date to the Cycle End Date.

Cycle Type means all Cycle Investments having the same Index, Cycle Term, Crediting Type, Cycle Structure, and corresponding Floor Rate or Buffer Rate.

Death Benefit means the amount that we will pay to the Beneficiary in the event of the death of an Owner if the Contract is still in force and in the Accumulation phase. The amount of the Death Benefit is based on which Death Benefit option is elected and determined as of the Business Day that our Customer Service Center receives the required documentation in Good Order.

Default Account means the Fidelity VIP Government Money Market Portfolio - Service Class 2 Subaccount, which is used to hold the following: (i) premium payments designated for a new Cycle Investment(s) upon allocation to the Contract, (ii) proceeds from transfers designated for a new Cycle Investment(s) at least one Business Day prior to the Cycle Start Date, (iii) proceeds from a maturing Cycle Investment(s) before they are reinvested into a new Cycle Investment, and (iv) proceeds from a maturing Cycle Investment for a discontinued Cycle Investment which we have no instructions or for which the Cycle Investment does not launch.

Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal means the aggregate amount of Gross Partial Withdrawals during any Contract Year that exceeds the Lifetime Payment Amount under a GLWB rider. An Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal will reduce the Benefit Base by the same proportion that the Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal reduced the Contract Value, which may be more, even significantly more, than the amount withdrawn and may terminate the GLWB Rider.

Fair Value means a value used to determine the Cycle Investment Unit Value on each Business Day during the Cycle Term prior to the Cycle End Date. It is the Fair Value of the Cycle based on the current value of the financial instruments used to calculate the Cycle payout on the Cycle End Date as determined by the independent third party Fair Value Calculation Agent.

Fair Value Calculation Agent means an independent third party with whom the Company contracts to determine the Fair Value of a Cycle Investment during the Cycle Term. Currently, the Fair Value Calculation Agent is S&P Global Market Intelligence. We may use different Fair Value Calculation Agents for different Cycle Investments.

Floor Rate means the rate used to determine the Cycle End Date Unit Value Floor as described in "Valuation of a Cycle Investment— On the Cycle End Date" later in this Prospectus. It represents the maximum potential loss in Cycle Investment Unit Value for a Cycle Investment on the Cycle End Date. The Floor Rate does not apply before the Cycle End Date.

General Account means assets we own that are not in a separate account, but rather are held as part of our general assets and are subject to claims of our general creditors.

Good Order means all of the information necessary to process a transaction, as we determine in our discretion. Transaction requests will generally be processed on the Business Day they are received at the Customer Service Center as long as the request is in Good Order. Requests received after 3:00 p.m. Central Time will be considered in good order on the following business day . For more detailed information see "Administrative Procedures."

GLWB Exercise Date means the date you elect to begin Lifetime Payments under a GLWB rider. It is the date on which your Lifetime Payment Percentage and the initial Benefit Base are established.

Gross Partial Withdrawal is the total amount requested as a partial withdrawal (before any reduction for Premium Tax, if applicable).

Guaranteed Living Withdrawal Benefit ("GLWB") Rider means one of the two optional Guaranteed Living Withdrawal Benefits available for an additional charge, which guarantees you can withdraw the Lifetime Payment Amount each Contract Year regardless of investment performance. If you select the Contract Value GLWB Rider, your initial Benefit Base will equal your Contract Value on the date you first exercise the benefit. If you select the Return of Premium GLWB Rider, your initial Benefit Base will equal the greater of (i) your Contract Value on the date you first exercise the benefit or (ii) your total premium payments, adjusted for Gross Partial Withdrawal, as of the date you first exercise the benefit. For more detailed information, see "Guaranteed Living Withdrawal Benefits."

Income Phase means the period of time from the date you apply your Contract Value to an annuity payment option to the date we make the last annuity payment to you under the option you chose.

Index means the index to which a Cycle Investment is linked.

Index Value means the value of an Index as reported to us by the Index provider.

Indicative Rates means the rates we post and update on our website every Tuesday before any Cycle Start Date. They are the Cap Rate(s) or Participation Rate(s) we would declare if that day was a Cycle Start Date, based on then current market conditions.

Initial Cycle Investment Unit Value means the Cycle Investment Unit Value on any Cycle Start Date. The Initial Cycle Investment Unit Value is set as \$10.00 for each Cycle on the Cycle Start Date.

Investment Options means the investments available under the Contract, which are: (i) the Cycle Investments, each of which is linked to the performance of a specified Index; and (ii) the Subaccounts, which are each a division of our Registered Separate Account, each of which, in turn, invests exclusively in one share class of one Investment Portfolio.

Investment Portfolio means a mutual fund portfolio in which a Subaccount invests.

Issue Age means the age of the Owner on the last birthday before the Issue Date. in the case of Joint Owners, Issue Age is based on the age of the oldest Joint Owner. In the case of non-natural owners, Issue Age is based on the age of the Annuitant.

Issue Date means the date the Contract goes into effect.

Lifetime Payment Amount means the maximum amount you can withdraw each Contract Year under a GLWB rider without triggering an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal and reducing your Benefit Base. If the Contract Value is reduced to zero for any reason

other than an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal, we will pay the Lifetime Payment Amount from our general account assets for the remainder of the Covered Person(s). We refer to individual withdrawals of the Lifetime Payment Amount that you take after the GLWB Exercise Date or payments of the Lifetime Payment Amount that we make to you under a GLWB Rider as "Lifetime Payments.

Lifetime Payment Percentage means the percentage of the Benefit Base that determines your Lifetime Payment Amount under a GLWB rider each Contract Year. The Lifetime Payment Percentage applicable to you is set forth in the Rate Sheet Supplement in effect when we receive your application and initial premium payment for the Contract in Good Order. Please refer to Appendix D for historical Lifetime Payment Percentages from superseded Rate Sheet Supplements.

Maturity Date means either the date, specified in your Contract, on which income payments will begin, or an earlier date that you specify. The earliest possible Maturity Date is the first Contract anniversary, at which time you may annuitize your full Contract Value. The maximum Maturity Date is the Contract anniversary immediately following the Annuitant's 115th birthday.

Non-Registered Separate Account means the separate account under the Contract that holds amounts allocated to the Cycle Investments. The Non-Registered Separate Account is non-unitized, was established under Iowa law and is not registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

Owner means the person(s) or entity that is named in the application or on the latest change filed with us who is entitled to exercise all rights and privileges provided in the Contract.

Participation Rate means the rate used to determine the Cycle Investment's Unit Value gain. It represents the portion of positive Index performance, if any, for a Cycle Investment that your Cycle Investment Unit Value will participate in on the Cycle End Date for Cycles with a Participation Rate Crediting Type.

Payee means the person who is entitled to receive annuity payments after Annuitization. On or after the Maturity Date, the Owner will be the Payee. The Beneficiary is the Payee of the proceeds at the death of the Owner, if the date of death is prior to the Maturity Date.

Principal Office means Midland National Life Insurance Company's principal place of business located at 8300 Mills Civic Parkway, West Des Moines, IA 50266. *Please note*: You must send all correspondence, service or transaction requests, inquiries, and premium payments to our Customer Service Center.

Proof of Death means a certified copy of the death certificate or any other proof satisfactory to us.

Rate Sheet Supplement refers to a periodic supplement to this prospectus that provides the current Lifetime Payment Percentages under a GLWB Rider applicable to new purchases. See "Guaranteed Living Withdrawal Benefits."

Rate Threshold means (1) the minimum Cap Rate we will declare for any Cycle Type with a Cap Rate Crediting Type, (2) the minimum Participation Rate we will declare for any Cycle Type with a Participation Rate Crediting Type, or (3) the minimum Cap Rate and Participation Rate for any Cycle Type with a Cap with Participation Crediting Type. Each Cycle Type will have a specific Rate Threshold. A Cycle Investment will not be launched on a scheduled Start Date if the resulting Cycle Cap Rate and/or Cycle Participation Rate is lower than its Rate Threshold.

Registered Separate Account means Midland National Life Separate Account C, which receives and invests your premiums that are allocated to, and Contract Value that is transferred to, the Subaccounts. Our Registered Separate Account is divided into Subaccounts. Separate Account C is registered as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

Return of Premium Death Benefit Rider means the optional Return of Premium Death Benefit available for an additional charge, which pays your beneficiary the greater of (i) your Contract Value or (ii) your total premium payments, adjusted for Gross Partial Withdrawal. For more detailed information, see "Death Benefits."

Subaccount means a division of our Registered Separate Account which invests exclusively in one share class of one Investment Portfolio. We may use this term interchangeably with the term "Investment Division."

Surrender Value means the Contract Value on the date of surrender less any applicable state premium tax.

Valuation Period means the time beginning at the close of regular trading on the New York Stock Exchange (generally 3:00 p.m., Central Time) on one Business Day and ending at the close of regular trading on the New York Stock Exchange on the next Business Day. Midland National reserves the right to revise the definition of Valuation Period as needed in accordance with applicable federal securities laws and regulations.

Written Notice or Written Request means a notice or request submitted in a written form satisfactory to us, which must be signed and dated by the Owner and received by us in Good Order at our Customer Service Center, P.O. Box 9261, Des Moines, IA 50306-9261, or via fax (866) 511-7038. The overnight mailing address is Midland National Customer Service Center, 8300 Mills Civic Parkway, West Des Moines, IA 50266-3833.

OVERVIEW OF THE OAK ELITE ADVISORY REGISTERED INDEX-LINKED AND VARIABLE ANNUITY

Q: What is the Contract, and what is it designed to do?

A: The Oak Elite Advisory Registered Index-Linked Variable Annuity is designed to enable you to accumulate assets through Cycle Investments and Subaccounts of the Registered Separate Account. The Cycle Investments provide returns linked to the performance of a single specified Index. Each Subaccount invests in one share class of an Investment Portfolio.

The Contract can supplement your retirement income by providing a stream of income during the Income Phase. Before you begin income payments, the Contract also provides a standard Contract Value Death Benefit for your designated beneficiaries. The amount of the Death Benefit is based on which death benefit is elected and determined as of the Business Day that our Customer Service Center receives the required documentation in Good Order. In the case of multiple primary Beneficiaries, the amount received by each primary Beneficiary will be their proportional share of the Death Benefit.

The Contract is available through financial intermediaries ("Advisors") that may charge an Advisory Fee for their asset management and/or investment advisory services. You may elect to have the Advisory Fee that your Advisor charges, if any, deducted from your Contract Value or arrange to pay the Advisory Fee from a separate source. If you choose to pay the Advisory Fee from your Contract Value, this deduction will reduce the standard Contract Value Death Benefit and annuity benefits under the Contract and may be subject to federal and state income taxes, including a 10% federal penalty tax if you are under age 591/2. The deduction of Advisory Fees will also reduce the likelihood of increasing the value of the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit or the Benefit Base of a GLWB rider through a step up on an eligible Contract Anniversary. See "Advisory Fees Deducted From Contract Value" for more information.

The Contract may be appropriate if you have a long term investment horizon. It is not intended for people who need to take early or frequent withdrawals or who intend to engage in frequent trading among the Subaccounts. Because of the possibility of income tax and tax penalties on early withdrawals, the Contract should not be viewed as a short-term investment vehicle. In addition, prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value will be based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. This means, on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, if the Index is performing positively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value calculation), and, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value calculation), and, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value calculation, and if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect higher losses (because the Floor and Buffer Rates do not apply) than on the Cycle End Date. If you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if you waited until the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower.

Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider withdrawn from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date are subject to the Fair Value calculation and proportional reduction in Cycle Investment Units described above. A GLWB Rider may not be appropriate for you if you intend or need to (i) take withdrawals before you elect to exercise your GLWB Rider benefits, which may reduce your initial Benefit Base when you choose to begin Lifetime Payments under the rider; or (ii) take Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals after you elect to exercise your GLWB Rider benefits, which may reduce your Benefit Base and, consequently, the Lifetime Payment Amounts for future Contract Years. A GLWB Rider could be appropriate if you want to have the contingent guarantee in place to continue to receive Lifetime Payments if your Contract Value is reduced to zero from poor investment performance and/or withdrawals that are not Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals. It is possible that this will never occur and we will never make Lifetime Payments to you from our assets. You should discuss with your Advisor before electing a GLWB Rider.

For these reasons, your financial goal in acquiring the Contract should focus on a long-term insurance product, offering the prospect of investment growth.

Q: How do I accumulate assets in the Contract and receive income from the Contract?

A: The Contract has two phases: the Accumulation Phase and the Income Phase.

1. Accumulation Phase

During the Accumulation Phase, subject to certain restrictions, you may apply premium payments to the Contract and allocate the premium payments among available Cycle Investments, each which provides a return linked to the performance of a specified Index over a specified Cycle Term and available Subaccounts, each of which invests an Investment Portfolio which has its own investment strategy, investment adviser, expense ratio and returns.

Additional information about available Cycle Investments and the Investment Portfolios offered through the Subaccounts is provided in an appendix to this Prospectus. See APPENDIX A – INVESTMENT OPTIONS AVAILABLE UNDER THE CONTRACT.

A. Cycle Investments

Each Cycle Investment tracks the performance of an Index for a Cycle Term. We will credit gain or loss (*i.e.*, positive or negative interest) at the end of the Cycle Term to amounts allocated to an Cycle Investment based, in part, on the performance of the Index. You could lose a significant amount of money if the Index declines in value. The value of your Cycle Investment on any day is calculated by multiplying the Cycle Investment Unit Value for that day by the number of Cycle Investment Units credited to your Contract ("Cycle Investment Value"). The Initial Cycle Investment Unit Value on any Cycle Start Date is \$10.00, and we determine the number of Cycle Investment Units initially credited to your Contract by dividing your initial Cycle Investment by the Initial Cycle Investment Unit Value.

On the Cycle End Date, we calculate the Cycle Maturity Value. The Cycle Maturity Value is the final Cycle Investment Unit Value for a Cycle investment on the Cycle End Date. The Cycle Maturity Value is calculated based on the Index's performance over the Cycle Term, which is the difference between the Index value on the Cycle Start Date and the Index value on the Cycle End Date, subject to the Cap Rate (for a Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate Crediting Type) or the Participation Rate (for a Cycle Investment with a Participation Rate Crediting Type) or both (for a Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate Cycle Structure) or the Buffer Rate (for a Cycle Investment with a Buffer Rate Cycle Structure).

Protection Against Negative Index Return. Each Cycle Investment provides a type of downside protection ("Cycle Structure"), which limits the negative Index return used in calculating the return on the Cycle Investment credited on the Cycle End Date. The Cycle Structure is either: (i) the maximum loss you will incur due to negative Index performance for the Cycle Term, or the *Floor Rate*, or (ii) the maximum amount of negative Index performance for the Cycle Term from which the Company will protect you, or the *Buffer Rate*.

- If a Cycle Investment has a Floor Rate Cycle Structure, you will be protected against loss attributable to negative Index performance in excess of the Floor Rate on the Cycle End Date. Any percentage decline in an Index's performance reduces the Contract Owner's Cycle Maturity Value up to a maximum loss of the Floor Rate. For example, if you invest in a Cycle Investment with a Floor Rate of -10% and the Index decreases by 25%, you will lose 10% on the Cycle End Date.
- If a Cycle Investment has a Buffer Rate Cycle Structure, the Buffer Rate is the amount of the Index's negative performance from which Midland will protect you on the Cycle End Date. You will be subject to any negative Index performance in excess of the Buffer Rate on the Cycle End Date. For example, if you invest in a Cycle Investment with a Buffer Rate of -20% and the Index decreases by 25%, on the Cycle End Date the Company will bear a loss of 5%, the amount of the Index loss that exceeds the Buffer Rate.
- We guarantee that we will never offer a Cycle Investment with a Floor Rate lower than -60% or a Buffer Rate lower than -5% for the life of your Contract. We reserve the right not to offer any Cycle Investments in the future. If we do so, you will be limited to investing in the Subaccounts, which are not tied to the performance of an Index and do not provide any protection against losses.

Limits on Positive Index Return. Each Cycle Investment also limits the positive Index return used in calculating the return on the cycle Investment credited on the Cycle End Date based on its "Crediting Type." The Crediting Types are: (i) the maximum positive rate of return at the end of the Cycle Term, or the *Cap Rate*, or (ii) the portion of positive Index performance, if any, for the Cycle Term in which you will participate, or the *Participation Rate*, or (iii) the portion of the positive Index performance, if any, for the Cycle Term subject to the Cap Rate with Participation Rate.

- If a Cycle Investment has a Cap Rate Crediting Type, the Cap Rate is the maximum potential increase due to positive Index performance, if any, that the Contract Owner may be credited on the Cycle End Date. The return on a Cycle Investment on the Cycle End Date is limited to the Cap Rate even if the Index performance on the Cycle End Date is higher. For example, if you invest in a Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate of 8%, on the Cycle End Date you will be credited with any Index gain up to 8%. This means that if the Index increases 10%, your rate of return would be limited to 8%, which is the Cap Rate. If the Index increases 5%, your rate of return would be the full 5% because it is below the Cap Rate.
- If a Cycle Investment has a Participation Rate Crediting Type, the Participation Rate is the portion of positive Index performance, if any, that the Contract Owner will participate in on the Cycle End Date. The return on an Investment Cycle is not limited to a maximum amount. For example, if you invest in a Cycle Investment with a Participation Rate of 90%, on the Cycle End Date you will be credited with 90% of any positive Index gain, no matter how high or low the Index gain may be. This means that if the Index increases 10%, your rate of return would be 9%, which is 90% of the Index gain. If the Index increases 5%, your rate of return would be 4.5%, which is 90% of the Index gain.
- If a Cycle Investment has a Cap Rate with Participation Rate Crediting Type, the Cap Rate is the maximum potential increase due to positive Index performance, if any, that the Contract Owner may be credited on the Cycle End Date and the Participation Rate is the percentage of any positive Index performance that the Contract Owner will participate in on the Cycle End Date, subject to the Cap Rate (if any). The return on an Investment Cycle is limited to the Cap Rate even if the Index performance on the Cycle End Date is higher. For example, if you invest in a Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate of 8% and a Participation Rate of 90%, on the Cycle End Date you will be credited with 90% of any positive Index gain up to a maximum of 8%. This means that if the Index increases 10%, your rate of return would be limited to 8%, which is the Cap Rate. If the Index increases 5%, your rate of return would be 4.5%, which is 90% of the Index gain and is below the Cap Rate. We may declare the Cap Rate for a Cycle Term to be unlimited, in which case there is no maximum potential increase. We may declare the Participation Rate to be greater than 100%, in which case the rate of return would be greater than the Index gain, subject to the Cap Rate (if applicable).
- We guarantee that we will never offer a Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate Below 2.5 % and a Participation Rate below 10% for the life of your Contract.

B. Subaccounts

The available Subaccounts each invest an Investment Portfolio which has its own investment strategy, investment adviser, expense ratio and returns.

2. Income Phase

During the Income Phase, you may receive annuity payments under the Contract by applying your Contract Value to an annuity payment option. Depending on the income payment option you select, payments may continue for the life of the Annuitant (and the Joint Annuitant, if any) or for a specified period between five and twenty years.

When you elect to annuitize the Contract, your Contract Value will be converted into income payments and you will no longer be able to make withdrawals from the Contract. At this time, the Accumulation Phase will end, and the standard Death Benefit and any optional death benefits you have elected will terminate. If you elected an optional GLWB Rider and Lifetime Payments have begun, your GLWB Rider will not terminate and your benefits under the GLWB Rider will continue until the death(s) of the Covered Person(s). If you elected an optional GLWB Rider and Lifetime Payments have not yet begun, you may choose to begin Lifetime Payments or you may purchase a Single Pay Immediate Annuity ("SPIA") with your Contract Value.

Q: What are the primary features and options of the Contract?

- A. Contract Types. The Contract is available for purchase as a Non-Qualified Contract for accounts that do not qualify for special federal tax advantages under the Internal Revenue Code and as a Qualified Contract for retirement accounts that qualify for such tax advantages. The Contract does not offer any additional tax benefits when purchased in a retirement account.
- **B.** Available Investments. You may allocate your Contract Value to one or more Cycle Investments and/or to one or more Subaccounts.
- C. Accessing Your Money. You may make a full or partial withdrawal of your Contract Value at any time before the Maturity Date by submitting a written request to our Customer Service Center. You may also submit requests for partial withdrawals by telephone with prior authorization.
- D. Tax Treatment. You may transfer your Contract Value among Investment Options without tax implications. Returns credited to your Contract are generally tax-deferred and are taxed only when (1) you make a partial or full withdrawal; (2) you receive an Annuity Payment under the Contract; or (3) upon payment of the Death Benefit.
- **E. Death Benefit.** Your Contract includes a standard Contract Value Death Benefit payable to your designated beneficiaries. The amount of the Death Benefit will be determined as of the Business Day that our Customer Service Center receives the required documentation in Good Order. For an additional charge, you can purchase either the optional Return of Premium Death Benefit Rider or the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit Rider, which may increase the amount of money payable to your designated beneficiaries.
- F. Living Benefits. For an additional charge, you can purchase either the optional Contract Value GLWB Rider or the Return of Premium GLWB Rider, which guarantee Lifetime Payments to protect you from outliving your assets if your investments decline in value or underperform your expectations.
- **G.** Additional Features and Services. We make certain optional services available under the Contract at no additional charge:
 - The Dollar Cost Averaging Program allows you to systematically transfer a set amount from a Subaccount to any other Subaccount on a regular schedule. This program does not permit Contract Value to be transferred to or from any Cycle Investments.
 - The Automatic Rebalancing Program automatically rebalances your Accumulation Value among your selected Subaccounts in order to restore your allocation to the original level. Contract Value allocated to the Cycle Investments cannot participate.
 - Systematic Withdrawals enable you to automatically withdraw a portion of your Contract Value at a frequency you select. If you choose to take Systematic Withdrawals from a Cycle Investment prior to the Cycle End Date, if the Index is performing positively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect lower gains (because of the Fair Value calculation), and, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect higher losses (because the Floor and Buffer Rates do not apply) than on the Cycle End Date. If you take a withdrawal, including a Systematic Withdrawal, prior to the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if you waited until the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower. You should consult with a financial professional before taking Systematic Withdrawals from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date.

Q. How is the value of a Cycle Investment determined prior to the end of a Cycle Term?

You could lose a significant amount of money due to an adjustment for Fair Value if amounts are removed from a Cycle Investment prior to the end of a Cycle Term. On each Business Day, other than the Cycle Start Date and the Cycle End Date, an independent third party (the "Fair Value Calculation Agent") determines the Fair Value for each Cycle Investment based on the economic value of hypothetical financial instruments designed to equal the Cycle Investment value at maturity. We calculate the Cycle End Date, if the Index is performing positively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect lower gains (because of the Fair Value calculation), and, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect higher losses (because the Floor and Buffer Rates do not apply) than on the Cycle End Date. If you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle Investment Value (which is lower than the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value as on the Cycle End Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if you waited until the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower. Your Cycle Investment Value is the amount available for withdrawals prior to the Cycle End Date, including Systematic Withdrawals, Required Minimum Distributions, Lifetime Payments under the GLWB riders, transfers to the Subaccounts, full or partial surrenders of your Contract (including exercising your right to cancel the Contract), withdrawals to pay Advisory Fees, payment of a deat

Lifetime Payments under the GLWB riders withdrawn from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date are subject to the Fair Value calculation and proportional reduction in Cycle Investment Units described above. You should consider taking Lifetime Payments on the Cycle End Date of your Cycle Investments to avoid the potential for a negative Fair Value calculation and proportional reduction in Cycle Investment Units and maximize potential Contract Value growth. A GLWB rider may not be appropriate for you if you intend or need to (i) take withdrawals before you elect to exercise your GLWB rider benefits, which may reduce your initial Benefit Base when you choose to begin Lifetime Payments under the rider; or (ii) take withdrawals after you elect to exercise your GLWB rider benefits that exceed the Lifetime Payment Amount permitted under the rider ("Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals"), which will reduce your Benefit Base and, consequently, the Lifetime Payment Amount for future Contract Years. A GLWB rider could be appropriate if you want to have the contingent guarantee in place to continue to receive lifetime income if your Contract Value is reduced to zero from poor investment performance and/or withdrawals that are not Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals. It is possible that this will never occur and we will never make Lifetime Payments to you from our assets. You should discuss with your Advisor before electing a GLWB rider.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION YOU SHOULD CONSIDER ABOUT THE CONTRACT

FEES, EXPENSES AND ADJUSTMENTS		LOCAT PROSP
Are There Charges or Adjustments for Early Withdrawals?	Yes. Although the Contract does not include charges for early withdrawal, if you remove money from a Cycle Investment Option prior to the Cycle End Date, you will receive the Cycle Investment Unit Value. We calculate the Cycle Investment Unit Value using an adjustment based on the Fair Value of the Cycle Investment, which may be lower than your principal invested in the Cycle Investment, and the Floor Rate or the Buffer Rate do not apply. This means you can lose up to 100% of your principal invested in a Cycle Investment upon withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date. For example, if you allocate \$100,000 to a Cycle Investment with a 3-year Cycle Term and later withdraw the entire amount before the 3 years have ended, you could lose up to \$100,000 of your investment. This loss will be greater if you also have to pay taxes and tax penalties. The Fair Value calculation applies to all withdrawals from a Cycle Investment prior to the Cycle End Date (including Systematic Withdrawals, Required Minimum Distributions, Lifetime Payments under the GLWB riders, full or partial surrenders of your Contract (including exercising your right to cancel the Contract), and withdrawals to pay Advisory Fees), transfers to the Subaccounts, payment of a death benefit or annuitization. You can obtain the Cycle Investment Unit Value sfor the Cycle Investments in which you invest by calling (833) 492-0022. This value can fluctuate daily, and the current value quoted may differ from the actual Cycle Investment Unit Value at the time of a transaction.	The Cycle In Options - Exa
Are There Transaction Charges?	Yes. We reserve the right to impose a Transfer Fee of \$15.00 per transfer on transfers among Subaccounts and between Subaccounts and Cycle Investments in excess of 15 per Contract Year. We are not currently charging this fee. If we charge this fee in the future, we will send you notice at least 10 business days prior to imposing the fee. We will never charge for any transfers of initial or additional premium payments that included allocation instructions to Cycle Investment	<u>Charges, Fee:</u> <u>Deductions -</u> <u>Expenses – T</u>
Are There Ongoing Fees and Expenses?	Yes.	<u>Charges, Fee</u> <u>Adjustments</u>
	The table below describes the fees and expenses that you may pay <i>each year</i> , depending on the Investment Options and optional benefits you choose. Please refer to your Contract specifications page for information about the specific fees you will pay each year based on the options you elected. Fees and expenses in the table do not reflect any Advisory Fees paid from your Contract Value or other assets of yours. If such charges were reflected, the fees and expenses would be higher. For the Cycle Investments, there is an implicit ongoing fee to the extent that the investor's participation in Index gains is limited by our use of a Cap Rate, Participation Rate or Cap Rate with	
	Participation Rate. This means that your returns may be lower than the Index's returns. In return for accepting a limit on Index gains, you will receive some protection from Index losses. This implicit ongoing fee is not reflected in the tables below.	

FION IN PECTUS

vestment amples

es and Transaction Fransfer Fee

s and

Annual Fee	Minimum	Maximum
Base Contract Expenses ¹	0.25%	0.25%
Portfolio Company fees and expenses ²	0.52%	0.94%
Optional benefits available for an additional charge ³ (for a single optional benefit, if alaotad)	0 150/	1 150/
elected)	0.15%	1.15%
1 As a percentage of the Accumulation Value.	These fees a	re not

2

applied against the Cycle Investment Value. As a percentage of Investment Portfolio assets. These fees are not applied against the Cycle Investment Value. 3

As a percentage of the rider Benefit Base. These fees are applied pro-rata against all Investment Options, including the Cycle Investment Value and amounts held in the Default Account.

Because your Contract is customizable, the choices you make affect how much you will pay. To help you understand the cost of owning your Contract, the following table shows the lowest and highest cost you could pay each year, based on current charges. **This estimate** assumes that you do not take withdrawals from the Contract, which could result in a negative adjustment based on the Fair Value to each Cycle Investment's Cycle Investment Value.

Charges, Fees and **Adjustments**

FEES AND EXPENSES	Lowest Annual Cost: \$12	Highest Annual Cost: \$2,145	LOCATION IN PROSPECTUS
	Assumes:	Assumes:	
	• Investment of \$100,000 (to the 6- year Cycle Investments only)	• Investment of \$100,000 (to the Subaccounts only)	
	• 5% annual appreciation	• 5% annual appreciation	
	• Least expensive investment portfolio fees and expenses for period of time in Default Account for 1 day each 6 year Cycle Term	• Most expensive investment portfolio fees and expenses	
	• No optional benefits	• Both the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit Rider and the Return of Premium GLWB Rider	
	• Minimal Base Contract Expenses for period of time in Default Account for 1 day each 6 year Cycle Term	• Base Contract Expenses of 0.25%	
	 No Surrender Charges or Advisory Fees 	 No Surrender Charges or Advisory Fees 	
	 No additional premium payments, transfers, or withdrawals No Fair Value adjustment to Cycle Investment Unit Values. 	 No additional premium payments, transfers, or withdrawals No Fair Value adjustment to Cycle Investment Unit Values. 	

RISKS

Yes.

Is There a Risk of Loss from Poor Performance?

- You can lose money by investing in this Contract, including loss of principal and prior Contract earnings.
- For a Cycle Investment, the maximum amount of loss that you could experience from negative Index performance at the end of a Cycle Term, after taking into account the minimum limits on Index loss currently provided under the Contract, would be: up to 10% of your investment in a Cycle Investment with a -10% Floor Rate; up to 90% of your investment in a Cycle Investment with a -30% Buffer Rate.
- The limits on Index loss offered under the Contract may change from one Cycle Term to the next; however, we guarantee that we will never offer a Cycle Investment with a Floor Rate lower than -60% or a Buffer Rate lower than -5% for the life of your Contract. We reserve the right not to offer any Cycle Investments in the future. If we do so, you will be limited to investing in the Subaccounts, which are not tied to the performance of an Index.

No.

This Contract is not designed for short-term investing and is not appropriate for an investor who needs ready access to cash.

The benefit of tax deferral means the Contract is more beneficial to investors with a long time horizon.

Amounts withdrawn may result in taxes and tax penalties. Prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value is based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. This means, on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect higher losses (because the Floor and Buffer Rates do not apply) than on the Cycle End Date. In each of these scenarios, if you transfer or take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if you waited until the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower.

Your Cycle Investment Value is the amount available for withdrawals prior to the Cycle End Date, including withdrawals to pay Advisory Fees, Systematic Withdrawals, Required Minimum Distributions, Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider, transfers to the Subaccounts, full or partial surrenders of your contract (including exercising your right to cancel the contract), payment of a Death Benefit or Annuitization.

If you do not provide written instructions directing us to allocate the proceeds of your maturing Cycle Investments to a new Cycle Investment or to the Subaccounts at least one Business Day before the Cycle End Date, we will allocate the proceeds of maturing Cycle Investments to a new Cycle Investment of the same Cycle Type. If such a new Cycle Investment is not available, we will allocate the proceeds to the Default Account.

If you choose to pay Advisory Fees from your Contract Value, this deduction will be treated as a withdrawal. This will reduce your Contract Value and the value of the standard Contract Value Death Benefit, and reduce the likelihood of increasing the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit and/or the Benefit Base of a GLWB rider through a step up on any eligible Contract Anniversary. In addition, if Advisory Fees are deducted from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date, this deduction will be subject to the Fair Value calculation described above. Although we treat Advisory Fees as non-taxable distributions for tax reporting purposes, there is a risk that federal and state taxing authorities may determine that these deductions are subject to federal and state income taxes, including a 10% tax penalty if you are under age 591/2. You should consult with your Advisor and consider making Advisory Fee Payments from a separate source in order to avoid incurring these consequences.

What Are The Risks Associated with the Investment Options?

- An investment in this Contract is subject to the risk of poor investment performance of the Indices underlying the Cycle Investments and the Investment Portfolios that you select.
- Each Cycle Investment, Subaccount, and the Default Account has its own unique risks.
- You should review this prospectus as well as the prospectuses for available Investment Portfolios.

For Cycle Investments:

- The Cap Rate, Participation Rate or Cap Rate with Participation Rate, as applicable, may limit positive Index returns (i.e., limited upside). This may result in you earning less than the Index return. For example:
 - For a Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate Crediting Type, if the Index return is 12% and the Cap Rate is 4%, we will credit 4% in interest at the end of the Cycle Term.
 - For a Cycle Investment with a Participation Rate Crediting Type, if the Index return is 12% and the Participation Rate is 90%, we will credit 10.8% in interest at the end of the Cycle Term.
 - For a Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate with Participation Crediting Type, if the Index return is 12%, the Cap Rate is 4% and the Participation Rate is 90%, we will credit 4% in interest at the end of the Cycle Term. If the Index return is 8%, the Cap Rate is 10% and the Participation Rate is 90%, we will credit 7.2% (the Index return multiplied by the Participation Rate) in interest at the end of the Cycle Term.
- The Buffer Rate or Floor Rate, as applicable, may limit negative Index returns (e.g., limited protection in the case of market decline). For example:
 - If the Index return is -25% and the Buffer Rate is -10%, we will apply a 15% loss (the amount of negative Index performance that exceeds the Buffer Rate) at the end of the Cycle Term.
 - If the Index Change is -25% and the Floor Rate is -10%, we will apply a 10% loss (the amount of negative Index performance up to the Floor Rate) at the end of the Cycle Term.
- Each Index is a "price return index," not a "total return index," and therefore does not reflect dividends paid on securities composing the Index. This will reduce the Index return and may cause the Index to underperform a direct investment in the securities composing the Index.

Any obligations, guarantees, and benefits of the Contract are subject to our claims-paying ability. If Midland National experiences financial distress, it may not be able to meet its obligations to you. More information about Midland National, including its financial strength ratings, is available upon request. You may make such request by calling 1-833-492-0022 or visiting https://www.midlandnational.com/ oakeliteadv. Principal Risks

What Are the Risks Related to the Insurance Company?

RESTRICTIONS

Are There Restrictions on the Investment **Options?**

Yes.

- We reserve the right not to offer any Cycle Investments and to reject or limit the amount that may be invested in a Cycle Investment. If we exercise our right not to offer any Cycle Investments, you will be limited to investing in the Subaccounts, which are not tied to the performance of an Index.
- We may change the limits on Index gains from one Cycle Term to the next. We guarantee that we will never offer a Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate Below 2.5 % and a Participation Rate below 10% for the life of your Contract.
- We reserve the right to substitute the Index for a Cycle Investment during its Cycle Term
- You are not permitted to transfer Contract Value into a Cycle Investment on any day other than a Cycle Start Date.
- Currently, we allow unlimited transfers without charge among Subaccounts and between the Subaccounts and Cycle Investments during the Accumulation Phase. However, we reserve the right to impose a charge for transfers in excess of 15 per year.
- Currently, we allow you to invest in an unlimited number of Investment Options at one time. However, we reserve the right to limit the number of Subaccounts and/or Cycle Investments in which you may invest at any one time.
- · We reserve the right to limit transfers among Subaccounts in circumstances of frequent or large transfers.
- We reserve the right to remove or substitute the Subaccounts and/ or Cycle Investments currently available. If we exercise our right to substitute a Cycle Investment, the limit on Index losses will not change for so long as that Cycle Investment remains available under the Contract, and the limit on Index gains will not change except from one Cycle Term to the next.
- We reserve the right to reject or place limitations on the acceptance and allocation of additional premiums,

Restrictions on Contract

Yes.

Are There any

Benefits?

Except as otherwise provided, we cannot modify or terminate Contract benefits once elected.

- The optional benefit riders may only be elected at the time you purchase the Contract for an additional charge.
- You may elect only one optional Death Benefit rider (the Return of Premium Death Benefit Rider or the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit Rider), with or without a GLWB rider.
- You may elect only one GLWB rider (the Contract Value GLWB Rider or the Return of Premium GLWB Rider), with or without an optional Death Benefit rider.
- · Once elected, you cannot voluntarily terminate an optional benefit rider without surrendering or annuitizing your Contract.
- · Lifetime Payments withdrawn while the Contract Value is greater than zero will reduce the Contract Value and are withdrawals of your money. We do not make Lifetime Payments to you out of our general account assets unless your Contract Value is reduced to zero for any reason other than an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal. It is possible that this will never occur and we will never make Lifetime Payments to you from our assets.
- Withdrawals (including Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider) may reduce the value of an optional Death Benefit by more, even significantly more, than the amount withdrawn.

LOCATION IN PROSPECTUS

The Cycle Investments; Subaccounts;

Benefits Under the Contract:

Advisory Fees Deducted From Contract Value; Federal Tax Status

- Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals may significantly reduce or eliminate the value of the GLWB rider benefits, and this reduction may be more, even significantly more, than the amount withdrawn and terminate the GLWB Rider.
- Withdrawals after you elect to begin Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider, including Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals, are taken pro-rata across all investments, including the Cycle Investments and the Default Account. If you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if you waited until the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower.
- If a GLWB Rider is elected, additional premium payments are only permitted during the first 6 months after the Contract Issue Date.
- If you elect to pay third-party Advisory Fees from your Contract Value, any Death Benefit based on the Contract Value and the annuity benefit will be reduced by the amount of the third-party Advisory Fees paid. The deduction of Advisory Fees will reduce the likelihood of increasing the value of the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit or the Benefit Base of a GLWB Rider through a step up on an eligible Contract Anniversary. In addition, federal and state income taxes, including the 10% federal penalty tax if you are under age 59¹/₂, may apply.
- You may participate in either the Dollar Cost Averaging Program or the Portfolio Rebalancing Program, but not both. For either program, transfers are only available among Subaccounts. Cycle Investments are not eligible.

TAXES		PROSPECTUS
What are the Contract's Tax Implications?	• You should consult with a tax professional to determine the tax implications of an investment in, withdrawals from and payments received under the Contract.	Federal Tax Status
	• If you purchase the Contract through a qualified retirement plan or individual retirement account (IRA), you do not receive any additional tax benefit.	
	• Earnings on your Contract are taxed at ordinary income tax rates when you withdraw them, and you may have to pay a penalty if you take a withdrawal before age $59\frac{1}{2}$.	
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST		LOCATION IN PROSPECTUS
How are Investment Professionals Compensated?	In order to purchase the Contract, you must engage an Advisor that provides investment advice with respect to the Contract. We do not pay sales commissions to your Advisor in connection with sales of the Contracts.	Distribution of the Contract
	Your Advisor may charge an Advisory Fee. We do not set your Advisory Fee. We may deduct the Advisory Fee from your Contract Value if you elect to have the Advisory Fee that your Advisor charges deducted from your Contract Value. However, we do not retain any portion of these fees.	
	Advisors and their managers may be eligible for benefits in connection with the Contract, such as production incentive bonuses, insurance benefits, and non-cash compensation items offered by our affiliate, Sammons Financial Network. Selling firms may also receive marketing support payments for marketing services and costs associated with Contract sales. These compensation arrangements create potential conflicts of interest that may influence your investment professional to recommend this Contract over another investment.	
Should I Exchange My Contract?	Some investment professionals may have a financial incentive to offer you a new contract in place of the one you own. You should only exchange your contract if you determine, after comparing the features, fees, and risks of both contracts, and any fees or penalties to terminate the existing contract, that it is better for you to purchase the new contract rather than continue to own your existing contract.	<u>Tax-Free Section 1035</u> Exchanges

LOCATION IN

FEE TABLE

The following tables describe the fees, expenses and adjustments that you will pay when buying, owning, and surrendering or making withdrawals from an investment option or the Contract. Please refer to your Contract specifications page for information about the specific fees you will pay each year based on the options you have elected. Fees and expenses in the tables do not reflect any Advisory Fees paid from your Contract Value or other assets of yours. If such charges were reflected, the fees and expenses would be higher.

The first table describes the fees and expenses that you will pay at the time that you buy the Contract, surrender or make withdrawals from an investment option or the Contract, or transfer Contract Value between investment options. State premium taxes may also be deducted.

Transaction Expenses

Contract Owner Transaction Expenses	Charge
Sales Load Imposed on Premiums	None
State Premium Tax ¹	0% to 3.5%
Transfer Fee ²	\$15

1. State premium tax is based on current resident state and varies by state. If applicable in your state, it is generally payable upon full surrender, death, or the Income Payment Start Date.

2. Currently the charge is \$0, but we reserve the right to charge \$15 per transfer for transfers in excess of 15 per Contract Year. If applied, the Transfer Fee would apply both to transfers among Subaccounts and between Subaccounts and Cycle Investments. We will not charge for any transfers of initial or additional premium payments that include allocation instructions to Cycle Investment Options for the next Cycle Start Date.

The next table describes the adjustments, in addition to any transaction expenses, that apply if all or a portion of the Contract Value is removed from an investment option or from the Contract before the expiration of a specified period.

Adjustments

Fair Value Calculation Maximum Potential Loss¹ (as a percentage of Contract Value in a Cycle Investment at the start of the Cycle Term)

1. If you remove money from a Cycle Investment Option prior to the Cycle End Date, you will receive the Cycle Investment Unit Value. We calculate the Cycle Investment Unit Value based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. In the event of severe market disruption where the value of the financial instruments become worthless, this means you can lose up to 100% of your principal invested in a Cycle Investment upon withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date. Your Cycle Investment Value, which is based on the Cycle Investment Unit Value, is the amount available for withdrawals prior to the Cycle End Date, including Systematic Withdrawals, Required Minimum Distributions, Lifetime Payments under the GLWB riders, transfers to the Subaccounts, full or partial surrenders of your Contract (including exercising your right to cancel the Contract), withdrawals to pay Advisory Fees, payment of a death benefit or annuitization. See "Valuation of a Cycle Investment" later in this Prospectus, as well as "Fair Value Formulas for Cycle Investments" in the Statement of Additional Information.

The next table describes the fees and expenses that you will pay *each year* during the time that you own the Contract (not including Investment Portfolio company fees and expenses).

If you choose to purchase an optional benefit, you will pay additional charges, as shown below.

Annual Contract Expenses

Annual Contract Expenses	Charge
Base Contract Expenses (as a percentage of average Accumulation Value) ¹	0.25%
Return of Premium Death Benefit Rider ² (as a percentage of Contract Value)	0.15%
Annual Ratchet Death Benefit Rider ² (as a percentage of Contract Value)	0.40%
Contract Value GLWB Rider ² (as a percentage of Contract Value)	0.95%
Return of Premium GLWB Rider ² (as a percentage of Contract Value)	1.15%

- ¹ This charge is a percentage of the Accumulation Value in each Subaccount including the Default Account. It does not apply to Contract Value allocated to the Cycle Investments. This annual charge is deducted daily. Once we issue your Contract, current rates for periodic charges are guaranteed for the life of the Contract. We call this charge the Separate Account Annual Expense charge later in this prospectus.
- ² This charge is a percentage of the rider Benefit Base. It applies pro-rata against all Investment Options, including the Cycle Investment Value and amounts held in the Default Account. This annual charge is deducted quarterly.

In addition to the fees described above, we limit the amount you can earn on the Cycle Investments. This means your returns may be lower than the Index's returns. In return for accepting this limit on Index gains, you will receive some protection from Index losses.

The next item shows the minimum and maximum total operating expenses charged by the Investment Portfolios that you may pay periodically during the time you own the Contract. Expenses shown may change over time and may be higher or lower in the future. A complete list of Investment Portfolios available under the Contract, including the Default Account, as well as their annual expenses, may be found in "APPENDIX A – INVESTMENT OPTIONS AVAILABLE UNDER THE CONTRACT" at the back of this Prospectus.

 Annual Investment Portfolio Expenses¹

 (expenses that are deducted from portfolios assets, including management fees, distribution, and/or service (12b-1) fees and other expenses)
 Minimum
 Maximum

 Total annual operating expenses
 0.52%
 0.94%

¹ The investment portfolio expenses used to prepare this table were provided to us by the fund company(ies). We have not independently verified such information of unaffiliated **investment portfolio options**. The expenses are those incurred as of the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024. Current or future expenses may be higher or lower than those shown. **These charges do not apply to Contract Value allocated to the Cycle Investments**.

Expense Examples

100%

This Example is intended to help you compare the cost of investing in the Subaccounts with the cost of investing in other annuity contracts that offer variable options. These costs include transaction expenses, annual Contract expenses, and Annual Investment Portfolio Expenses.

The Example assumes all Contract Value is allocated to the Subaccounts. The Example does not reflect any contract adjustment based on the Fair Value of the Cycle Investments. Your costs could differ from those shown below if you invest in Cycle Investments.

The Example assumes that you invest \$100,000 in the Subaccounts for the time periods indicated. The Example also assumes that your investment has a 5% return each year and assumes the most expensive combination of Annual Investment Portfolio Expenses and optional benefits available for an additional charge. The Example does not reflect any Advisory Fees paid from your Contract Value or other assets of yours. If such charges were reflected, the fees and expenses would be higher. Although your actual costs may be higher or lower, based on these assumptions, your costs would be:

(1) If you surrender, annuitize, or continue to own your Contract at the end of the applicable time period:

1 Year	3 Years	5 Years	10 Years
\$2,502	\$7,696	\$13,156	\$28,062

PRINCIPAL RISKS OF INVESTING IN THE CONTRACT

General Risk of Loss

Investments in the Contract are subject to the risk of loss of principal and previously credited earnings due the negative performance of the Index to which a Cycle is linked or of the Investment Portfolio in which a Subaccount invests.

General Liquidity Risk

The Contract is designed to help meet long-term financial goals. It is not suitable as a vehicle for short-term savings. If you are not a long-term investor, this Contract may not be appropriate for you. Early withdrawals may have adverse tax consequences, and early withdrawals from. Cycle Investments may result in negative adjustments based on Fair Value. See "RISKS OF INVESTING IN THE CYCLE INVESTMENTS - Liquidity Risk" below for more information.

RISKS OF INVESTING IN THE CYCLE INVESTMENTS

Risk of Loss

Investments in Cycle Investments will fluctuate in value based on the performance of the Index. Losses on Cycle Investments may be substantial depending on the performance of the Index and the Cycle Investment to which you allocate Contract Value despite limits on negative Index returns provided by the Floor Rate or Buffer Rate. You will bear the portion of the loss that exceeds the Buffer Rate or the loss up to the amount of the Floor Rate, as applicable. You could lose up to 10% of your investment in a Cycle Investment with a -10% Floor Rate; up to 90% of your investment in a Cycle Investment with a -10% Floor Rate; up to 90% of your investment in a Cycle Investment with a -10% Buffer Rate; up to 80% of your investment in a Cycle Investment with a -30% Buffer Rate. We guarantee that we will never offer a Cycle Investment with a Floor Rate lower than -50% for the life of your Contract, but we reserve the right not to offer any Cycle Investments in the future. If we do so, you will be limited to investing in the Subaccounts, which are not tied to the performance of an Index and do not provide any protection against losses. The Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate provide downside protection from negative Index Performance *only* on the Cycle End Date. For Cycle Investments with multi-year Cycle Terms, these rates do not apply on an annual basis: any negative Index performance is measured from the Cycle Start Date until the Cycle End Date.

Liquidity Risk

The amount of Cycle Investment Value available for withdrawal on any Business Day is equal to the Cycle Investment Unit Value on that day multiplied by the number of Cycle Investment Units credited to your Contract. Prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value for each Cycle Investment is based on the Fair Value of the financial instruments that equal the Cycle Investment at maturity. The Fair Value estimates the market value of the risk of loss and possibility of gain if the Cycle Investment is held to the Cycle End Date. The Fair Value determination takes into account a variety of factors, including the change in Index value from the Cycle Start Date, volatility of the Index, interest rate changes, dividend yield on the index, and time remaining to the Cycle End Date. Before the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Value may be lower than the amount allocated to the Cycle Investment on the Start Date even when the Index performance is positive due to the possibility that the Index performance could decrease before the Cycle End Date. Changes in the Index, volatility, and interest rates also may reduce the Cycle Investment Unit Value.

The Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply prior to the Cycle End Date. This means, on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, if the Index is performing positively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect lower gains (because of the Fair

Value calculation), and, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect higher losses (because the Floor and Buffer Rates do not apply) than on the Cycle End Date. If you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if you waited until the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower. This means on any day prior to the Cycle End Date if you make a withdrawal (including Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider, withdrawals to pay Advisory Fees, to pay rider fees, if any, systematic withdrawals and RMDs), transfer Contract Value to the Subaccounts, surrender or annuitize the Contract, or if a death benefit becomes payable, you could lose up to 100% of your principal investment and any earnings.

Your Cycle Investment Value is the amount available for withdrawals prior to the Cycle End Date, including withdrawals to pay Advisory fees, Systematic Withdrawals, Required Minimum Distributions, Lifetime Payments under a GLWB rider, transfers to the Subaccounts, full or partial surrenders of your contract (including exercising your right to cancel the contract), payment of a death benefit or annuitization.

Transfers, withdrawals, and optional benefit rider charges deducted before the Cycle End Date will reduce your Cycle Investment Value dollar for dollar.

Changes to the Cycle Investments

Availability of the Cycle Investments for future Cycle Types are solely at our discretion, and we can change or remove them without Contract Owner consent. You bear the risk that a Cycle Type in which you initially invest will not continue to be available in the future. We reserve the right not to offer any Cycle Investments, and to reject or limit the amount that can be invested in a Cycle Investment. If we exercise our right not to offer any Cycle Investments, you will be limited to investing in the Subaccounts, which are not tied to the performance of an Index. We set Cap Rates and Participation Rates at our discretion based on a variety of factors, such as the costs of financial instruments we hold to manage our risk associated with our obligations, sales commissions, administrative expenses, regulatory and tax requirements, general economic trends and competitive factors. These rates may change from Cycle Term to Cycle Term and may be less than your initial rates. Contract Owners bear the risk that the rates we set will be less favorable than they find acceptable. We will amend the prospectus should we cease offering Cycle Investments.

In the event that the Index for a Cycle Investment is discontinued, or is changed substantially, or if hedging instruments become difficult to acquire or the cost of hedging becomes excessive, for future Cycle Investments, we may replace the Index with an available comparable Index, subject to any necessary regulatory filings. If the Index is discontinued, for Cycle Investments that are ongoing, the Cycle Term will end, i.e., we will "mature" it, on the date the Index is discontinued, and we will calculate the Cycle Investment return, positive or negative, based on the Crediting Type (i.e., Cap Rate, Participation Rate, or Cap Rate with Participation Rate) and the Cycle Structure (i.e. Floor Rate or Buffer Rate), as applicable. See "Replacement of the Index" below for additional information.

If you do not provide written instructions directing us to allocate the proceeds of your maturing Cycle Investments to a new Cycle Investment or to the Subaccounts at least one Business Day before the Cycle End Date, we will allocate the proceeds of maturing Cycle Investments to a new Cycle Investment of the same Cycle Type. If such a new Cycle Investment is not available, we will allocate the proceeds to the Default Account. A new Cycle Investment will be subject to the new Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate we have declared for such Cycle Investment. We will inform you and your Advisor in writing, or electronically, if applicable, of the Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate for the new Cycle Investment to which your Contract Value is allocated. If the Cap Rate and/or Participation Rates is not satisfactory to you, you will be eligible to "bailout" of the new Cycle Investment. See "Cap Rates and Participation Rates" below for more information about exercising your right to bailout of the Cycle Investment.

Limited Participation in Positive Performance

Any increase in the value of the Contract Owner's Cycle Investment for any Cycle, on the Cycle End Date, is limited by the Cycle's Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate, which could cause the Contract Owner's Cycle Investment on any Cycle Business Day to be lower than they would otherwise be if the Contract Owner invested, for example, in a mutual fund or exchange-traded fund tracking the same Index. The Cap Rates and Participation Rates benefit us because they limit the hedging costs to cover the amount of increase in the Cycle Investment that we may be obligated to pay. We set the Cap Rates and Participation Rates at our discretion. Generally, Cycle Investments that provide greater protection against negative Index performance through the Floor Rate or Buffer Rate have lower Cap Rates and Participation Rates than Cycle Investments with the same Index and Cycle Term that provide less protection.

Cap Rates and Participation Rates

The Cap Rate for a Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate Crediting Type and the Participation Rate for a Cycle Investment with a Participation Rate Crediting Type and the Cap Rate and Participation Rate for a Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate with Participation Rate Crediting Type are declared on the Cycle Start Date and will be disclosed on our website https://www.midlandnational.com/oakeliteadv. Prior to the Cycle Start Date, we will post Indicative Rates every Tuesday. The Cap

Rate and/or Participation Rate for a new Cycle Term may be higher, lower, or equal to the Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate for the prior Cycle Term and/or the Indicative Rate. There is a risk that the Cap Rate will be lower than the Index's rate of return. For Participation Rates lower than 100%, investors will not fully participate in the Index's positive rate of return.

We have established a minimum Cap Rate for each available Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate Crediting Type and a minimum Participation Rate for each available Cycle Investment with a Participation Rate Crediting Type and a minimum Cap Rate and minimum Participation Rate for each available Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate with Participation Rate Crediting Type, which are the Rate Thresholds disclosed in this prospectus. If we cannot offer the Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate that is equal to or above the applicable Rate Threshold, the Cycle Investment will not launch on the Cycle Start Date for the new Cycle Term. If this occurs, there is a risk that allocation of your Contract Value to a different Cycle Investment will be delayed until the following month because a new Cycle Investment can only be established on a Cycle Start Date (i.e., the third Thursday of each month). There is also a risk that you may not have a Cycle Investment to invest in if we decide not to offer any Cycle Investments in the future. Contract Value that you allocate to a Cycle Investment that does not launch will remain in the Default Account until you provide us with alternative allocation instructions.

The Cap Rates and Participation Rates apply from the Cycle Start Date to the Cycle End Date. The Cap Rate is a limit on the maximum rate of return on a Cycle Investment at the end of the Cycle Term, not the end of each year of the Cycle Term. It is not an annual limit. For Participation Rates with multi-year Cycle Terms, the Participation Rate is the portion of the Index gain on a Cycle Investment at the end of the Cycle Term, not the end of each year of the Cycle Term. Interim changes in the value of the Cycle Investment during a Cycle Term will occur, and may be higher or lower, sometimes significantly higher or lower, than the return on the Cycle Investment on the Cycle End Date.

We will inform you and your Advisor of the final Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate for each new Cycle Investment (whether an initial Cycle Investment or a renewal from a maturing Cycle Investment) to which your Contract Value is allocated. If the Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate is not satisfactory to you, you will be eligible to "bailout" of the new Cycle Investment, regardless of whether it is an initial Cycle Investment or a renewal from a maturing Cycle Investment. In order to exercise your right to bailout of the Cycle Investment, you or your Advisor must notify us within 5 business days from the day we send you and your Advisor notice of the final Cap Rate(s) and/or Participation Rate(s). When you do so, you must instruct us where to reallocate your investment. Your bailout proceeds will be equal to the entire amount you allocated to the new Cycle Investment on the Cycle Start Date, i.e., it will not be subject to any Fair Value calculation and it will not be subject to any transfer charges. Your bailout right permits you to (i) reallocate your proceeds from the Cycle Investment to different investment options under the Contract without being subject to the Fair Value calculation or any transfer charges, or (ii) withdraw your proceeds from the Cycle Investment less any Gross Partial Withdrawals taken from the Cycle Investment, Advisory Fees, and optional rider fees, without being subject to the Fair Value calculation. Amounts withdrawn or surrendered may be subject to applicable surrender charges and taxes, including a 10% federal penalty tax before age 59%. If you or your Advisor do not exercise your right to bailout within 5 business days of the notice, then your Cycle Investment Value allocated to the Cycle Investment will remain invested in the Cycle Investment. This means that if you later decide to transfer or withdraw proceeds from the Cycle Investment prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value of the amount you allocated to the Cycle Investment will be based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate or Buffer Rate will not apply. See "Transfers out of a Cycle Investment" and "Withdrawals from Cycle Investments" for more information about the consequences of transfers and withdrawals from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date.

Cycle Investment Unit Value Based Upon Fair Value During Cycle Term

On each Cycle Business Day, other than the Cycle Start Date and Cycle End Date, we determine the Cycle Investment Unit Value for a Cycle Investment by reference to its Fair Value. The Fair Value of a Cycle Investment reflects the current value of financial instruments that would provide a return equal to the change in Index Value at the end of the Cycle Term, but without regard to the Floor Rate or the Buffer Rate, as applicable. We contract with Fair Value Calculation Agents to determine the Fair Value of a Cycle Investment based on a variety of factors such as the change in the Index Value from the Cycle Start Date, implied volatility of the Index, interest rate changes, dividend yield on the index, and the time remaining to the Cycle End Date. The Fair Value is determined using a formula which is determined based on the economic value of a hypothetical financial investments at the time of the valuation designed to match Cycle Investment value at the Cycle End Date. The formula is based on the value of each of these financial instruments and is determined by a Fair Value Calculation Agent using standard financial industry calculations. This means the Fair Value of a Cycle Investment before the Cycle End Date could be different than the performance of the reference Index during the calculation period. *For more information on the formula used to calculate Fair Value, see "Valuation of a Cycle Investment – Cycle Value Unit Value – During the Cycle Term."*

Midland National will publish the Cycle Investment Unit Values each Business Day on its website: https:// www.midlandnational.com/oakeliteadv. For more information and to see how Fair Value and Cycle Investment Unit Value are calculated, see "Cycle Investment Unit Value Examples" in the Statement of Additional Information and "Investing in the Cycle Investments" section below.

Risk Associated with Indices

The value of the Contract Owner's Cycle Investment is dependent on the performance of the reference Index. The performance of an Index is based on changes in the values of the securities or other investments that comprise or define the Index. The securities comprising or defining the Indices are subject to a variety of investment risks, many of which are complicated and interrelated. These risks may affect capital markets generally, specific market segments, or specific issuers. The performance of

the Indices may fluctuate, sometimes rapidly and unpredictably. Negative Index performance may cause the Contract Owner to lose money. The historical performance of an Index does not guarantee future results. It is impossible to predict whether an Index will perform positively or negatively over the course of a Cycle Term.

While it is not possible to invest directly in an Index, if the Contract Owner chooses to allocate amounts to a Cycle Investment, the Contract Owner is indirectly exposed to the investment risks associated with the referenced Index. Because each Index is comprised or defined by a collection of equity securities, each Index is largely exposed to market risk and issuer risk. Market risk is the risk that market fluctuations may cause the value of a security to fluctuate, sometimes rapidly and unpredictably. Issuer risk is the risk that the value of an issuer's securities may decline for reasons directly related to the issuer, as opposed to the market generally.

Over time, we may also change the Indices to which the Cycle Investments are linked. Below is a summary of important investment risks to which each Index is exposed. For more information, see "*The Indices*" later in this prospectus.

- S&P 500[®] Price Return Index (Bloomberg Ticker: SPX). The S&P 500[®] Price Return Index is comprised of equity securities issued by large-capitalization U.S. companies. In general, large-capitalization companies may be unable to respond quickly to new competitive challenges, and may not be able to attain the high growth rate of successful smaller companies. The S&P 500[®] Price Return does not include dividends or distributions.
- MSCI EAFE Price Return Index (Bloomberg Ticker: MXEA). The MSCI EAFE Index is designed to represent the
 performance of large and mid-cap securities across 21 developed markets, including countries in Europe,
 Australasia and the Far East, excluding the U.S. and Canada. In general, large-capitalization companies may be
 unable to respond quickly to new competitive challenges and may not be able to attain the high growth rate of
 successful smaller companies, and the securities of mid-capitalization companies may be more volatile and may
 involve more risk than the securities of larger companies. Securities issued by non-U.S. companies (including
 related depository receipts) are subject to the risks related to investments in foreign markets (e.g., increased price
 volatility; changing currency exchange rates; and greater political, regulatory, and economic uncertainty). The
 price return index does not include dividends or distributions.
- Dimensional US Equity Core Plus Index (Bloomberg Ticker: DFAUECPE) The Dimensional US Equity Core Plus Index is a US equity market index designed to offer broad diversification with a strong emphasis on areas of the market that research has shown to outperform over time. The Index is comprised of Dimensional ETFs based on target weights, rebalanced monthly. Constituent ETFs and their current target weights include the Dimensional US Core Equity 2 ETF (60.0%), Dimensional US Large Cap Vector ETF (12.5%), Dimensional US High Profitability ETF (12.5%), and Dimensional US Small Cap Value ETF (15.0%). At each rebalance, the Index redistributes weight in the eligible ETFs according to the Index's ETF target weight distribution. The data used at rebalance will be the most recent end-of-day prices of the ETF components. These end-of-day prices generally reflect the underlying fees and expenses of each ETF, which could impact the return of the Index. The Index Committee of Dimensional Fund Advisors LP may adjust the ETF constituents and/or target weights from time to time depending on market conditions, ETF liquidity, and other factors deemed relevant in the Committee's discretion. The Index is an "excess return" index, meaning its return reflects the investment return of its component ETFs (including reinvestment of all dividends and distributions), which is then reduced by both the effective federal funds rate (EFFR) and a 1.2% synthetic dividend. As of December 1, 2024, the current EFFR was 4.58%. The EFFR will fluctuate over time, and may be higher or lower in the future. To illustrate these daily deductions, if the Index return from the previous day to a given day before the deductions is 1%, then the final Index return for that day would be computed by: (1) calculating the sum of the synthetic dividend plus the EFFR (1.2% + 4.58% = 5.78%); (2) determining the "de-annualized" daily rate by multiplying the sum by 1/360 (5.78%) x 1/360 = 0.0161%; and (3) subtracting the daily rate from the Index return (1% - 0.0161% = 0.984%). The final Index return after the deductions for that day would be 0.984%.

Additional risks related to the Index and its underlying ETFs' investment activities are described below.

- Performance Drag: The Index includes a daily deduction which will exert a drag on Index performance, offsetting any positive performance of the underlying components for each day and exacerbating any negative performance, and may cause the level of the Index to decline even if the underlying components perform positively. In addition, the underlying components of the Index are subject to their own management fees, other expenses, and transaction costs that lower their performance and, consequently, the performance of the Index. These deductions negatively impact the performance of the Index. The performance of the Index would be higher if these deductions were not applied.
- Concentration: The Index allocates to underlying components at different weights, and as such the Index will be subject to the risks affecting the underlying components concentrated to different degrees.
- Disruptive Events: The occurrence of certain disruptive and extraordinary events, such as the unavailability of necessary data to apply the Index methodology, could impair the operation of the Index. Should such an event occur, the Index publisher may take any actions permitted by the Index rules, such as exercising limited discretion in determining the Index values or discontinuing the Index.

- New Index: The Index has limited performance history and may perform in unanticipated ways. Generally, there is less publicly available information about the Index compared to more established market indices.
- Profitability Investment Risk: High relative profitability stocks may perform differently from the market as a whole and an investment strategy purchasing these securities may cause an underlying ETF to at times underperform equity funds that use other investment strategies.
- Value Investment Risk: Value stocks may perform differently from the market as a whole and an investment strategy purchasing these securities may cause an underlying ETF to at times underperform equity funds that use other investment strategies. Value stocks can react differently to political, economic, and industry developments than the market as a whole and other types of stocks. Value stocks also may underperform the market for long periods of time.
- Small and Mid-Cap Company Risk: Securities of small and mid-cap companies are often less liquid than those of large companies and this could make it difficult to sell a small or mid-cap company security at a desired time or price. As a result, small and mid-cap company stocks may fluctuate relatively more in price. In general, small and mid-capitalization companies are also more vulnerable than larger companies to adverse business or economic developments and they may have more limited resources.
 - Derivatives Risk: Derivatives are instruments, such as futures contracts, and options thereon, whose value is derived from that of other assets, rates or indices. The use of derivatives for nonhedging purposes may be considered to carry more risk than other types of investments. When an underlying ETF uses derivatives, the ETF will be directly exposed to the risks of those derivatives. Derivative instruments are subject to a number of risks including counterparty, liquidity, interest rate, market, credit and management risks, as well as the risk of improper valuation. Changes in the value of a derivative may not correlate perfectly with the underlying asset, rate or index, and an underlying ETF could lose more than the principal amount invested.
- Securities lending involves the risk that the borrower may fail to return the securities in a timely manner or at all. As a result, an underlying ETF may lose money and there may be a delay in recovering the loaned securities. An underlying ETF could also lose money if it does not recover the securities and/or value of the collateral falls, including the value of investments made with cash collateral. Securities lending also may have certain adverse tax consequences.

We reference the S&P 500[®] Price Return Index (Bloomberg Ticker: SPX), and the MSCI EAFE Price Return Index (Bloomberg Ticker: MXEA), which are "price return" indices, meaning the Index return does not include any dividends or other distributions declared by the companies included in the Index. This results in lower Index returns and, therefore, may negatively impact the performance of the Cycle Investments. We also reference the Dimensional US Equity Core Plus Index (Bloomberg Ticker: DFAUECPE), which is an "excess return" index that reflects the deduction of both the effective federal funds rate (EFFR) and a 1.2% synthetic dividend. As of December 1, 2024, the current EFFR was 4.58%. The EFFR will fluctuate over time, and may be higher or lower in the future. These deductions will reduce the Index return and cause the Index to underperform a direct investment in the underlying securities composing the Index.

No Rights in the Securities Underlying the Index

A Cycle Investment does not involve investing in the associated Index nor in any securities included in that Index or in any underlying ETFs included in that Index. As a result, Contract Owners will not have voting rights, rights to receive cash dividends or other distributions or other rights that holders of securities comprising the indices would have. We calculate the increase in value of Cycle Investment without taking into account any such distributions or dividends paid.

Replacement of an Index

If an Index is discontinued, we reserve the right to replace it with an alternative index for future Cycle Investments. We will give at least a 30 day notice of the change, unless the Index provider gives us less than 30 days' notice, in which case we will give you and your Advisor notice as soon as practicable at our discretion. We will attempt to choose a replacement index that has a similar investment objective and risk profile to the discontinued Index. If we replace an Index, any future Cycle Investments will be available with the same Rate Threshold, Floor Rate and Buffer Rate features. In addition, in the event the Index for a Cycle Investment is changed substantially, or if hedging instruments become difficult to acquire or the cost of hedging becomes excessive, we may stop offering and/or replace the Index with an available comparable Index for future Cycle Investments. You bear the risk that the replacement index may not be acceptable to you.

Due to the possibility that an Index may be discontinued, we cannot guarantee that any Index will remain available through the end of a Cycle Term. In the event an Index is discontinued, we will terminate the Cycle Investment, as described below.

If an Index were to be discontinued, we will end, or mature, the Cycle Term before its scheduled Cycle End Date as of the date of the most recently available closing value of the Index before its discontinuance. We will use that closing value to calculate the Cycle Investment return, positive or negative, through that date. We will apply the Index performance as of that date subject to the Crediting

Type (i.e., Cap Rate or Participation Rate or Cap Rate with Participation Rate) and the Cycle Structure (i.e., the Floor Rate or Buffer Rate, as applicable). For example, if the Index was up 10% at the time we matured the Cycle for a Cycle with an 8% Cap Rate, we would credit an 8% return to your Cycle Investment Value and for a Cycle with a 90% Participation Rate, we would credit an 9% return to your Cycle Investment Value and 8% Cap Rate and a 90% Participation Rate, we would credit an 8% return to your Cycle Investment Value and for a Cycle with a -10% Buffer Rate, we would credit a 20% negative return to your Cycle Investment Value and for a Cycle with a -10% Floor Rate, we would credit a -10% negative return to your Cycle Investment Value. We would provide notice about ending the Cycle, as soon as practicable and ask for instructions on where to transfer your Cycle End Date value. If you do not provide us with instructions, your Cycle End Date value will be transferred to the Default Account and will remain there until you provide us with alternative allocation instructions.

In the case of any of the types of early maturities discussed above, you can allocate the Cycle Investment Value to any of the available investment options, such as immediately to a Subaccount or to a Cycle Investment on the next Cycle Start Date, if available. Contract Owners may not transfer from the affected Cycle Investment into another Cycle Investment that has already commenced. Contract Owners are always able to transfer to the Subaccounts.

RISKS OF INVESTING IN THE SUBACCOUNTS

Risk of Loss

You bear the risk of any decline in the Accumulation Value of your Subaccounts resulting from the performance of the Investment Portfolios you have chosen. The Accumulation Value could decline very significantly, and there is a risk of loss of the entire amount invested. This risk varies with each Investment Portfolio. The investment risks are described in the prospectuses for the Investment Portfolios.

Availability of Investment Portfolios

We reserve the right, subject to applicable law, to make additions to, deletions from, or substitutions for the shares of an Investment Portfolio that are held in the Subaccount. New or substitute Investment Portfolios may have different fees and expenses and their availability may be limited to certain classes of purchasers. If the shares of an Investment Portfolio are no longer available for investment or if, in our judgment, further investment in any portfolio should become inappropriate, we may redeem the shares of that Investment Portfolio and substitute shares of another Investment Portfolio. We will not substitute any shares without notice and prior approval of the SEC and state insurance authorities, to the extent required by the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or other applicable law.

OTHER GENERAL RISKS OF INVESTING IN THE CONTRACT

Financial Strength of Midland National

Midland National is solely responsible for all guarantees provided under the Contract, including without limitation values calculated for the Cycle Investments, a Death Benefit, a GLWB Rider, and any annuity payments. Our General Account assets, which support these guarantees and payments are subject to the claims of our creditors. As such, the guarantees and payments are subject to our financial strength and claims paying ability and, therefore, to the risk that we may default on the guarantees and payments. For information on our financial condition, please review our financial statements included in this prospectus. Additional information about our business and operations is set forth in *"Midland National Life Insurance Company"*, later in this prospectus.

Optional Benefit Risks

Optional Benefit Fees. If you choose to purchase one or more of the optional benefits available for an additional charge, the fees for the optional benefit(s) will be deducted from your Contract Value, including the Cycle Investments.

The fees for the optional benefit(s) you select will be deducted from your Contract Value each Contract Quarter for the life of the Contract. You cannot voluntarily terminate an optional benefit rider without surrendering or annuitizing your Contract. There is a risk that any financial return provided by an optional benefit will ultimately be less than the fees you paid for the benefit.

Prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value will be based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. This means, on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, if the Index is performing positively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect lower gains (because of the Fair Value calculation), and, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect higher losses (because the Floor and Buffer Rates do not apply) than on the Cycle End Date. When charges for optional benefits are deducted from the Cycle Investments, the Cycle Investment Value from which the deduction is taken is based on the Fair Value calculation unless the deduction is made on the Cycle End Date. If a deduction is taken to pay optional benefit charges on any day before the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the deduction reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value).

This means that if a deduction is taken to pay optional benefit charges on any day prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than on the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower.

The quarterly fees deducted for optional benefit(s) you select will not coincide with the Cycle End Date(s) of your Cycle Investments. Because the charge(s) are deducted pro-rata across all investments, including the Cycle Investments, deductions of optional benefit fees from your Cycle Investment Value based on the Fair Value calculation cannot be avoided. When charges are deducted from the Cycle Investments on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, your Cycle Investment Value could reflect lower gains and higher losses than on the Cycle End Date and you could lose up to 100% of your principal investment and any earnings. This Contract may not be appropriate for you if you intend or need to make withdrawals prior to the Cycle End Date.

Effect of Withdrawals on Optional Benefits. Gross Partial Withdrawals (including Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider, systematic withdrawals, and RMDs) may reduce the Return of Premium Death Benefit or the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit by more than the amount withdrawn, and it is possible that these optional Death Benefits will be not be greater than the Contract Value Death Benefit for which there is no additional charge.

Any transaction that reduces the Contract Value (including withdrawals, Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider, Advisory Fee deductions, and deductions for optional benefit rider charges) reduces the likelihood of increasing the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit and/or a GLWB Benefit Base through a step up on any eligible Contract Anniversary.

Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals will reduce a GLWB Benefit Base and, consequently, the Lifetime Payment Amount for future Contract Years.

Gross Partial Withdrawals after you elect to begin Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider, *including Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals*, are taken pro-rata across all investments, including the Cycle Investments and the Default Account, in the same proportion that each Investment Option bears to the total Contract Value. Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider withdrawn from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date are subject to the Fair Value calculation and proportional reduction in Cycle Investment Units described above. An Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal will reduce the Benefit Base of your GLWB Rider by the same proportion that the Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal reduced the Contract Value, which may be more, even significantly more, than the amount withdrawn and may terminate the rider. If you take an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal on any day prior to the Cycle End Date of your Cycle Investments, you could significantly reduce or eliminate your Benefit Base. This is because prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Value is based on the Fair Value, which will fluctuate during the Cycle Term. See "Valuation of a Cycle Investment" for more information about the Fair Value calculation. See "Guaranteed Living Withdrawal Benefits" for more information about Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals.

GLWB Lifetime Payment Amounts. Lifetime Payments withdrawn under a GLWB Rider (when the Contract Value is greater than zero) reduce *your* Contract Value. We do not make Lifetime Payments to you out of our general account assets unless your Contract Value is reduced to zero for any reason other than an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal. It is possible that this will never occur and we will never make Lifetime Payments to you from our assets. We will not refund the charges you have paid even if you never choose to begin Lifetime Payments or never receive any Lifetime Payments paid out of our general account assets. Any amounts paid by us under a GLWB Rider in excess of the Contract Value are subject to our financial strength and claims-paying ability.

You should carefully consider when to begin Lifetime Payments. There is a risk that you will not begin taking withdrawals under a GLWB Rider at the most financially beneficial time for you. If you begin taking withdrawals too soon or delay taking withdrawals for too long, you may limit the value of a GLWB Rider. Taking withdrawals early will increase the time in which you will be able to receive Lifetime Payments, but will reduce the Lifetime Payment Amount because the initial Benefit Base is established and the Lifetime Payment Percentage is locked in on the GLWB Exercise Date. Taking withdrawals later will increase the Lifetime Payment Amount because the Lifetime Payment Percentage increases the longer you hold the Contract before beginning Lifetime Payments, but delaying taking withdrawals will shorten the time in which you will be able to receive Lifetime Payments. You should consider taking Lifetime Payments on the Cycle End Date of your Cycle Investments to avoid the potential for a negative Fair Value calculation and proportional reduction in Cycle Investment Units described above and maximize potential Contract Value growth.

GLWB Benefit Base. Your initial Benefit Base when you begin Lifetime Payments will differ depending on which GLWB Rider you elected when you purchased the Contract, and each of the GLWB Riders has its own charge that we assess for the life of the Contract. Even if you do not take any withdrawals prior to the GLWB Exercise Date, it is possible your initial Benefit Base under the Return of Premium GLWB Rider will be not be greater than the initial Benefit Base you would have received under the Contract Value GLWB, for which a lower charge is assessed. If your Contract Value is greater than the Return of Premium GLWB Exercise Date, your initial Benefit Base will equal the Contract Value and you will have paid a higher charge without receiving a higher initial Benefit Base. You will remain subject to the higher charge for the Return of Premium GLWB Rider for the life of the Contract, even if your initial Benefit Base established on the GLWB Exercise Date is no greater than the Contract Value. If you elect the Contract Value GLWB Rider, you will be subject to a lower charge, but your initial Benefit Base could be less than the total premium payments you have made, even if you have not taken any withdrawals, as a result of poor investment performance, charges deducted and Advisory Fees paid from your Contract Value from the Issue Date to the GLWB Exercise Date.

Lifetime Payments under the GLWB Riders withdrawn from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date are subject to the Fair Value calculation and proportional reduction in Cycle Investment Units described above. A GLWB Rider may not be appropriate for you if you intend or need to (i) take withdrawals before you elect to exercise your GLWB Rider benefits, which may reduce your initial Benefit Base when you choose to begin Lifetime Payments under the rider; or (ii) take Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals after you elect to exercise your GLWB Rider benefits, which will reduce your Benefit Base and, consequently, the Lifetime Payment Amount for future Contract Years. A GLWB Rider could be appropriate if you want to have the contingent guarantee in place to continue to receive lifetime income if your Contract Value is reduced to zero from poor investment performance and/or withdrawals that are not Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals. It is possible that this will never

occur and we will never make Lifetime Payments to you from our assets. You should discuss with your Advisor before electing a GLWB Rider.

GLWB Restrictions on Premium Payments. If you elect a GLWB Rider, additional premium payments are only permitted during the first 6 months after Contract issue. This will limit your ability to increase your Contract Value, the value of the GLWB Rider, and the value of the Death Benefit (including the optional Return of Premium Death Benefit or Annual Ratchet Death Benefit) by making additional premium payments.

Termination on Maturity Date. Upon the Contract's Maturity Date, the Death Benefits, including any optional Death Benefits you have elected, will terminate with no value. If you elected an optional GLWB Rider and Lifetime Payments have begun, your GLWB Rider will not terminate and your benefits under the GLWB Rider will continue until the death(s) of the Covered Person(s). If you elected an optional GLWB Rider and Lifetime Payments have not yet begun, you may choose to begin Lifetime Payments on the Maturity Date or you may purchase a Single Pay Immediate Annuity ("SPIA") with your Contract Value.

Advisory Fee Risk

If you choose to pay Advisory Fees from your Contract Value, this deduction will reduce your Contract Value. This will reduce the amount available to be applied to an annuity payout option when you annuitize your Contract. Currently, income payment options are only available if the proceeds applied are \$2,000 or more and the annual payment is more than \$240. If the deduction of Advisory Fees reduces your Contract Value below these thresholds, your options will be limited to receiving your remaining Contract Value in one lump sum. Because the standard Contract Value Death Benefit under the Contract is equal to your Contract Value, the deduction of the Advisory Fee from your Contract Value will also reduce the standard Contract Value Death Benefit. Advisory Fee deductions reduce your Contract Value and reduces the likelihood of increasing the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit and/or a GLWB Benefit Base through a step up on any eligible Contract Value in order to avoid incurring these consequences.

Prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value will be based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. This means, on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, if the Index is performing positively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect lower gains (because of the Fair Value calculation), and, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect higher losses (because the Floor and Buffer Rates do not apply) than on the Cycle End Date. This means on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, if you take a withdrawal from a Cycle Investment (*including any withdrawals to pay Advisory Fees*), it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if you waited until the Cycle End Date, and this would always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower. **You should consult with your Advisor before authorizing Advisory Fees to be deducted from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date.**

In a series of recent private letter rulings ("PLRs"), the IRS has recognized that investment advisor fees paid out of Contract Value will, in certain circumstances and subject to conditions, not be treated as taxable distributions from a Non-Qualified Contract, will not be taxable to the Contract Owner, are not reportable to the IRS as distributions from the Contract and are not subject to the 10% tax penalty for Contract Owners who are under age $59^{1}/_{2}$. We have received such a private letter ruling from the IRS and intend to tax report in accordance with that ruling. Accordingly, advisory fees will be treated as non-taxable distributions for reporting purposes by the Company. However, these rulings generally only can be relied upon by the taxpayers who obtained them, and the IRS is not bound by these rulings with respect to your tax treatment under your Contract. Regardless of how we treat the deduction of Advisory Fees for tax reporting purposes, there is a risk that federal and state taxing authorities may determine that these deductions are subject to federal and state income taxes, including a 10% tax penalty if you are under age $59^{1}/_{2}$. See "Advisory Fees Deducted From Contract Value" and "Federal Tax Status – Advisory Fees" for more information.

Adverse Tax Consequences

Certain transactions including, but not limited to, withdrawals (including withdrawals to pay Advisory Fees, systematic withdrawals, required minimum distributions and Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider) and surrenders may lead to a taxable event. If you purchase the Contract through a tax advantaged retirement account, distributions received before you attain age 59¹/₂ may be includable in income and subject to a 10% penalty tax. If you take a withdrawal from a Non-Qualified Contract, any earnings before you attain age 59¹/₂ may be included in income and subject to a 10% penalty tax in addition to ordinary income tax. In addition, existing tax laws that benefit this Contract may change at any time.

Premium Payment Risk

Your ability to make subsequent premium payments is subject to restrictions. We reserve the right to refuse any premium payment, to further limit your ability to make subsequent premium payments with advance notice, and require our prior approval before accepting premium payments.

There is no guarantee that you will always be permitted to make premium payments. If you elect a GLWB Rider, additional premium payments are only permitted during the first 6 months after the Contract Issue Date.

If we refuse and/or limit your premium payments:

your ability to increase your Contract Value will be affected, which in turn will affect the amounts that may be applied to an annuity payout option or toward the Contract Value Death Benefit;

- you will be unable to increase the value of the Return of Premium Death Benefit;
- the likelihood of increasing the value of the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit through a step up on any eligible Contract Anniversary is reduced; and
- the likelihood of increasing the Benefit Base of a GLWB Rider before beginning Lifetime Payments will be limited.

Minimum Contract Value Risk

The minimum amount that can be left in the entire Contract after a withdrawal (except withdrawals after the GLWB Exercise Date under a GLWB Rider) is \$1,000.00. The entire Contract will be terminated and the balance will be distributed to the Contract Owner if a withdrawal causes the Contract Value to drop below \$1,000.00. If you elected a GLWB Rider, the Contract will not be closed if a withdrawal after the GLWB Exercise Date causes your Contract Value to drop below \$1,000.00. However, if your Contract Value is reduced to zero after the GLWB Exercise Date as a result of an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal, the Contract will be closed and the GLWB Rider will terminate without value.

Cybersecurity

We rely heavily on interconnected computer systems and digital data to conduct our insurance business activities. Because our insurance business is highly dependent upon the effective operation of our computer systems and those of our business partners, our business is potentially vulnerable to disruptions from utility outages and other problems, and susceptible to operational and information security risks resulting from information systems failure (hardware and software malfunctions) and cyber-attacks. Cyber-attacks may be systemic (affecting the internet, cloud services, or other infrastructure) or targeted (failure in or breach of our systems or those of third parties on whom we rely). There may be an increased risk of cyber-attacks during periods of geopolitical or military conflict. Due to the increasing sophistication of cyber-attacks, such cybersecurity incidents could occur and persist for an extended period of time without detection. These risks include, among other things, the theft, misuse, corruption and destruction of data maintained online or digitally, and unauthorized release of confidential customer information. For instance, cyber-attacks may: interfere with our processing of Contract transactions, including the processing of orders from our website; cause the release and possible destruction of confidential customer or business information; impede order processing; subject us and/or our service providers and intermediaries to regulatory fines and financial losses; and/or cause reputational damage.

Cybersecurity risks may also affect the Indices and the Investment Portfolios in which the Subaccounts invest. Breaches in cybersecurity may cause the performance of an Index or Investment Portfolio to be calculated incorrectly, which could affect the calculation of values under the Contract. We are not responsible for the calculation of any Index or the performance of any Investment Portfolio, Breaches in cybersecurity may also negatively affect the value of the securities or other investments that comprise or define an Index or in which a portfolio invests.

Catastrophic Events

Catastrophic events including, but not limited to, terrorist attacks, floods, severe storms or hurricanes, computer cyber-terrorism, military actions, or a pandemic disease like the novel coronavirus known as COVID-19, could have a material and adverse effect on our business in several respects by:

- causing long-term interruptions in our service and the services provided by our significant vendors;
- creating economic uncertainty, and reducing or halting economic activity;
- disrupting the financial markets and adversely affecting the value, volatility, and liquidity of securities and other instruments;
- increasing mortality or mortality risks that could adversely affect our claims experience, the actuarial assumptions that underlie our insurance products, and the costs of reinsurance.

The extent to which these types of catastrophic events, may impact our business, results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, or prospects will depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted.

THE OAK ELITE ADVISORY REGISTERED INDEX-LINKED VARIABLE ANNUITY CONTRACT

The Oak Elite Advisory Registered Index-Linked Variable Annuity Contract is a flexible premium deferred registered index variable annuity that is designed to aid in long-term financial planning for retirement or other savings needs. It is available for purchase as a Non-Qualified Contract, including a Non-Qualified Stretch Contract, or as a Qualified Contract purchased through Individual Retirement Accounts ("IRAs"), including Traditional IRAs, Roth IRAs, Inherited IRAs, and SEP IRAs. Qualified Contracts purchased through Inherited IRAs and Non-Qualified Stretch Contracts are intended to comply with Internal Revenue Code rules for post-death payments to beneficiaries. You should consult with your tax advisor to determine the tax implications of purchasing the Contract. Midland National Life Insurance Company is solely responsible for paying all amounts promised to you under the Contracts. Our obligations under the Contract are subject to our financial strength and claims-paying ability.

The prospectus and the Statement of Additional Information (SAI) describe all material terms and features of the Contract. Certain non-material provisions of your Contract may be different than the general description in this prospectus and the SAI because of legal requirements in the state in which you purchased the Contract. Any such variation will be included in your Contract. All material state variations are described in this prospectus. You may also contact your Advisor or our Customer Service Center for additional information about Contract variations applicable to your state. A summary of such material state specific variations is included in APPENDIX B– STATE VARIATIONS at the back of this prospectus.

Currently, all of the investment options and Contract features described in this prospectus and SAI are available through all financial intermediaries that offer the Contract to their clients. In the future, the investment options or Contract features that are available through your Advisor may be different than the general description in this prospectus and the SAI because your Advisor may not make available certain investment options or features to their clients. If this occurs, a summary of any such material financial intermediary variations will be included in an appendix to the prospectus.

PURCHASING THE CONTRACT

Any person wishing to purchase a Contract must submit an application form and an initial premium payment of at least \$50,000. For Qualified Contracts purchased through Inherited IRAs, premium payments must be received in the form of direct transfers or rollovers of the interest under the deceased owner's original IRA. For Non-Qualified Stretch Contracts, premium payments must be received in the form of death benefit proceeds from a non-qualified annuity contract through a tax-free exchange pursuant to Section 1035 of the Internal Revenue Code. The sale must take place through an Advisor who is licensed, registered and authorized to sell the Contract. The maximum Issue Age for the Contract is 85 years.

If your application is complete and in Good Order (see "Administrative Procedures"), we will accept or reject it within two Business Days of receipt. If the application is incomplete, we will attempt to complete it within five Business Days. If it is not complete at the end of this period (or cannot be accepted for some other reason), then we will inform you of the reason for the delay and the premium payment will be returned unless you let us keep the premium until the application is complete. Your initial premium is held in a non-interest bearing suspense account (which is part of our General Account and is subject to claims of our general creditors) until your Contract is issued or your premium is refunded.

You may allocate your premium payments among the Subaccounts and/or Cycle Investments available in the Contract. Because Cycle Investments only start on the third Thursday of each month, any amount of your initial premium payment and any subsequent premium payments that you wish to allocate to an upcoming Cycle Investment will be held in the Default Account until the Cycle Start Date.

We will allocate your initial premium payment according to your instructions when we receive it or accept your application (whichever is later) at our Customer Service Center before the New York Stock Exchange closes for regular trading (generally, 3:00 p.m. Central Time). If we receive your initial premium payment or accept your application (whichever is later) after the close of regular trading on the New York Stock Exchange, for investments in the Subaccounts, we will credit Accumulation Units at the Accumulation Unit Value determined at the close of the next Valuation Period.

All premium payments that you allocate to any Cycle Investment will be invested in the Default Account until your selected Cycle Start Date. The allocations will move from the Default Account into the corresponding Cycle Investments, if they launch, on the Cycle Start Date. If a Cycle Investment does not launch, the corresponding allocations will remain in the Default Account until you provide us with alternative allocation instructions. Cycle Investments begin on the third Thursday of each month. If the third Thursday of the month is not a Business Day, the Cycle Investments will launch on the next Business Day. Please note that we must receive premium payments allocated to the Cycle Investments by the close of the Business Day prior to the Cycle Start Date in order for those premiums to be included in a given Cycle launch. Premium payments received after 3:00 p.m. Central Time will remain in the Default Account until the next Cycle Start Date (i.e., the third Thursday of the following month).

There may be delays in our receipt of applications that are outside of our control because of the failure of the Advisor who recommended this Contract to forward the application to us promptly, or because of delays in their broker dealer determining that the Contract is suitable for you. Any such delays will affect when your Contract can be issued and when your premium payment is allocated among the Subaccounts and the Cycle Investments.

Right to Cancel

You may cancel your Contract within the ten (10) day Right to Cancel period (also called the "Free Look Period"). We deem the Right to Cancel period to expire 10 days after you have received your Contract. Some states and circumstances may provide you with a longer Right to Cancel period. To cancel your Contract, you need to return your Contract and any other documentation that we may require, in Good Order, to the Advisor who recommended it to you or to our Customer Service Center. If you cancel your Contract, regardless of whether it is a Qualified Contract or a Non-Qualified Contract, then we will return:

- The Contract Value (which may be more or less than the premium payments you paid), or
- If greater and required by law, your premiums paid minus any Gross Partial Withdrawals.

If we return the Contract Value, the amount you receive will reflect the investment performance of the Investment Options you allocated your premiums to before you cancelled the Contract. Contract Value that is allocated to the Cycle Investments will be based

on the Cycle Investment Unit Value at the time, which, if prior to the Cycle End Date, is based on the Fair Value and does not provide the protection of the Floor Rate or Buffer Rate.

If we return the premiums paid minus any Gross Partial Withdrawals, the amount you receive will not reflect the investment performance of the Investment Options you allocated your premiums to before you cancelled the Contract. If you allocated Contract Value to the Cycle Investments, the amount due to you is not based on the Cycle Investment Unit Value at the time. The amount you receive will only be reduced to the extent you took any Gross Partial Withdrawals before exercising your Right to Cancel.

Tax-free Section 1035 Exchanges

You can generally exchange one non-qualified annuity contract for another in a "tax-free exchange" under Section 1035 of the Internal Revenue Code. Before making an exchange, you should compare both annuity contracts carefully. Remember that if you exchange another annuity contract for the one described in this prospectus, you might have to pay a surrender charge on your old annuity contract and other charges may be higher (or lower) and the benefits may be different. You should not exchange another annuity contract for this one unless you determine, after knowing all the facts, that the exchange is in your best interest and not just better for the person trying to sell you this Contract. If you purchase the Contract in exchange for an existing annuity contract from another company, we may not receive your premium payment from the other company for a substantial period of time after you sign the application and send it to us, and we cannot credit your premium to the Contract until we receive it.

If you are considering a partial exchange of an annuity contract, you should consider the conditions described by Revenue Procedure 2011-38, effective for transfers that are completed on or after October 24, 2011. Under Revenue Procedure 2011-38: (1) the period of time after which cash can be withdrawn from either contract is 180 days beginning on the date of the transfer and (2) annuity payments that satisfy the newly enacted partial annuitization rule under Section 72(a)(2) of the Code will not be treated as a distribution from either the old or new contract.

You should consult with and rely upon a tax adviser if you are considering a contract exchange.

ADDITIONAL PREMIUM PAYMENTS

You may make additional premium payments at any time after the Free Look Period and prior to Annuitization in any amount of \$1,000 or more, within certain limits and subject to our right to refuse any premium payments. By current Company practice, we will also accept additional payments via automatic bank draft in amounts of \$100 or more per month. Unless you receive approval from us, the maximum amount of premium you may pay into this Contract prior to the Maturity Date is \$2,000,000 if any optional benefit riders are elected. In addition, an initial or additional premium that would cause the Contract Value or total value of all annuity contracts that you maintain with Midland National to exceed \$5,000,000 requires our prior approval. We calculate this limit for each Annuitant or Owner based on all active annuity contracts.

Additional premium payments to Subaccounts will be credited as of the end of the Valuation Period in which they are received by us, in Good Order. Because Cycle Investments only start every third Thursday, any amount of your additional premium payments that you wish to allocate to an upcoming Cycle Investment will be invested in the Default Account until your selected Cycle Start Date. The allocations will move from the Default Account into the corresponding Cycle Investments, if they launch, on the Cycle Start Date. If a Cycle Investment does not launch, the corresponding allocations will remain in the Default Account until you provide us with alternative allocation instructions.

We may refuse to accept certain forms of premium payments (e.g., third party checks, traveler's checks, money orders), and we reserve the right to accept or reject any premium payment or form of payment. If you elect a GLWB Rider, additional premium payments are only permitted during the first 6 months after the Contract Issue Date.

If we exercise our right to reject or place limitations on the acceptance and allocation of additional premiums,

- your ability to increase your Contract Value through additional premium payments will be affected, which in turn will affect the amounts that may be applied to an annuity payout option or toward the Contract Value Death Benefit;
- you will be unable to increase the value of the Return of Premium Death Benefit;
- the likelihood of increasing the value of the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit through a step up on any eligible Contract Anniversary is reduced; and
- the likelihood of increasing the value of the Benefit Base of a GLWB Rider before beginning Lifetime Payments is reduced.

You may mail premium payments by regular mail to Midland National Life Insurance Company at P.O. Box 9261 Des Moines, IA 50306-9261 or by overnight delivery service to 8300 Mills Civic Pkwy, West Des Moines, IA 50266-3833.

Allocation of Premium Payments

You will provide premium payment allocation instructions in your application for the Contract. These instructions will dictate how we allocate your additional premium payments. Allocation percentages may be any whole number (from 0 to 100) and the sum must equal 100. The allocation instructions in your application will apply to all additional premium payments, unless you change your allocation instructions by providing us with written instructions. We reserve the right to limit the number of Cycle Investments and Subaccounts to which you may allocate your premium payments or transfer your Contract Value.

Changing Your Premium Payment Allocation Instructions

You may change your allocation instructions by submitting a written request to our Customer Service Center that provides new allocation instruction in whole numbers from 0 to 100, the sum of which must equal 100. We may allow other means to make this type of request with proper authorization and verification. Changes to allocation instructions will apply to premium payments received as of the date we receive your request at our Customer Service Center. Changing your allocation instructions will not affect how your existing Contract Value is allocated among the Investment Options. When the Dollar Cost Averaging (DCA) program is in effect, the DCA allocation percentages will apply to any premium payments received unless you specify otherwise. (See "Dollar Cost Averaging" later in this prospectus.

THE CYCLE INVESTMENT OPTIONS

We will credit positive or negative interest at the end of a Cycle Term to amounts allocated to a Cycle Investment based, in part, on the performance of the Index. An investment in a Cycle Investment is not an investment in the Index or any Index fund. You could lose a significant amount of money if the Index declines in value. Additionally, if you remove amounts from a Cycle Investment prior to the end of the Cycle Term, you could lose a significant amount of money due to the adjustment based on the Fair Value of the Cycle Investment.

Information regarding the features of each currently available Cycle Investment, including (i) its name, (ii) its type, (iii) its Cycle Term, (iv) its Index Crediting Type, (v) its current limits on Index loss, and (vi) its minimum limit on Index gain, is available in an appendix to this prospectus. See "APPENDIX A – INVESTMENT OPTIONS AVAILABLE UNDER THE CONTRACT".

Over time, we may add and/or remove the Cycle Investments offered for new Cycle Terms. If we do so, we will amend this Prospectus.

Features of a Cycle Investment

The key features of a Cycle Investment are:

- the Cycle Term, which is the period between Cycle Start Date and Cycle End Date;
- The type of downside protection ("Cycle Structure"), which are either: (i) the maximum loss you will incur due to negative Index performance for the Cycle Term, or the *Floor Rate*, or (ii) the maximum amount of negative Index performance for the Cycle Term from which the Company will protect you, or the *Buffer Rate*; and
- the type of upside investment exposure ("Crediting Type"), which are either: (i) the maximum positive rate of return at the end of the Cycle Term, which is the *Cap Rate* (subject to the Rate Threshold set forth in the table above), or (ii) the portion of positive Index performance, if any, for the Cycle Term in which you will participate, which is the *Participation Rate* (subject to the Rate Threshold set forth in the table above), or (iii) the *Cap Rate* (subject to the Rate Threshold set forth in the table above), or (iii) the *Cap Rate* (subject to the Rate Threshold set forth in the table above), or (iii) the *Cap Rate* with Participation Rate (each subject to the Rate Threshold set forth in the table above), which is the percentage of positive Index performance, if any, for the Cycle Term in which you will participate, subject to the Cap Rate (if any); and
- the *Index* to which it is linked.

Cycle Terms.

A Cycle Term begins on the *Cycle Start Date* and ends on the *Cycle End Date*. We currently offer Cycle Terms of 1 and 3 years for Cycle Investments with a Floor Rate described below and Cycle Terms of 1, 3, and 6 years for Cycle Investments with a Buffer Rate described below. Before allocating Contract Value to a Cycle Investment, you should consider in consultation with your financial professional which Cycle Term lengths may be appropriate for you based on your liquidity needs, investment horizon and financial goals. Investing in Cycle Investments with shorter Cycle Terms will provide more Cycle End Dates and thus more opportunities for interest crediting and transferring Contract Value without adjustment for Fair Value; however, assuming the same Index and limit on Index loss, Cycle Terms will provide fewer Cycle End Dates and thus fewer opportunities for interest crediting and transferring Contract Value; however, assuming the same Index and limit on Index loss, Cycle Terms will provide fewer Cycle End Dates and thus fewer opportunities for interest crediting and transferring Contract Value; however, assuming the same Index and limit on Index loss, Cycle Terms will provide fewer Cycle End Dates and thus fewer opportunities for interest crediting and transferring Contract Value without adjustment for Fair Value; however, assuming the same Index and limit on Index loss, Cycle Investments with longer Cycle Terms generally tend to have more potential for gain.

Amounts must remain in a Cycle Investment until the end of its Cycle Term to be credited with interest on the Cycle End Date and to avoid a possible negative adjustment based on Fair Value, in addition to potential tax consequences. The adjustment for Fair Value will occur if any of the following transactions occurs before the Cycle End Date: any withdrawal (including Lifetime Payments under the GLWB riders, withdrawals to pay Advisory Fees, systematic withdrawals and required minimum distributions), transfers to the Subaccounts, surrender or annuitization of the Contract, or if a death benefit becomes payable. See "Cycle Investment Unit Value" for more information.

Limits on Index Losses.
For each Cycle Investment, at the end of its Cycle Term, we may limit the negative Index return used to calculate the Cycle Investment Unit Values by applying the applicable Floor Rate or Buffer Rate.

Floor Rate. The Floor Rate is the maximum loss you will incur due to negative Index performance for the Cycle Term. We currently offer a Floor Rate of -10%.

The following examples illustrate how we calculate and credit interest under each Index crediting methodology assuming hypothetical Index returns and hypothetical limits on Index gains and losses. The examples assume no withdrawals.

Example 1: If the performance of an Index at the end of a 1-year Cycle Term is -15%, and the Floor Rate of -10% is selected, the return on the Cycle Investment would be -10%. In this Example, the -10% Floor Rate applies, and Midland National bears the risk of any loss due to negative Index performance below -10%.

Example 2: If the performance of an Index at the end of a 1-year Cycle Term is -5%, and the Floor Rate of -10% is selected, the return on the Cycle Investment would be -5%. In this Example, the -10% Floor Rate does not apply because the return on the Cycle Investment is higher. The Contract Owner bears negative Index performance down to -10%.

The current Floor Rate will not change during a Cycle Investment's Cycle Term. We will continue to offer the same Floor Rate for each subsequent Cycle Term of the same Cycle Type, but we may offer the same or different rates in the future for newly offered Cycle Types. We guarantee that we will never offer a Cycle Type with a Floor Rate below -60% for the life of your Contract. In such case, if you invest in a Cycle Type with a Floor Rate Cycle Structure and hold your investment through the end of the Cycle Term, you will never lose more than 60% of your investment in the Cycle Investment

Buffer Rate. The Buffer Rate is the maximum amount of negative Index performance that the Company will protect you from on the Cycle End Date, and you will bear any negative Index performance in excess of the Buffer Rate. We currently offer Buffer Rates of -10%, -20% and -30%.

The following examples illustrate how we calculate and credit interest under each Index crediting methodology assuming hypothetical Index returns and hypothetical limits on Index gains and losses. The examples assume no withdrawals

Example 1: If the Index performance on the Cycle End Date is -15% and a Buffer Rate selected is -20%, the return on the Cycle Investment would be 0%. In this example, the Buffer Rate would apply, and Midland National would protect you from all of the negative Index performance.

Example 2: If the Index performance on the Cycle End Date is -15% and the Buffer Rate selected is -10%, the return on the Cycle Investment would be -5%. The Buffer Rate would apply, and Midland National would absorb negative Index performance of -10%. The Contract Owner bears the loss to the extent negative Index performance –exceeds 10%.

Buffer Rates do not limit the Contract Owner's loss to a particular amount. A Cycle Investment with a Buffer Rate of -10% could experience a loss equal to -90%, and a Cycle Investment with a Buffer Rate of -20% could experience a loss equal to -80%. This means that selecting a Cycle Investment with a Buffer Rate could result in a large losses during periods of steep declines in the stock market.

The current Buffer Rate will not change during a Cycle Investment's Cycle Term. We will continue to offer the same Buffer Rate for each subsequent Cycle Term of the same Cycle Type, but we may offer the same or different rates in the future for newly offered Cycle Types. We guarantee that we will never offer a Cycle Investment with a Buffer Rate below -5% for the life of your Contract. In such case, if you invest in a Cycle Investment with a Buffer Rate Cycle Structure and hold your investment through the end of the Cycle Term, you will never lose more than 95% of your investment in the Cycle Investment.

We set the limit on Index losses for each Cycle Investment at our sole discretion. We consider various factors in determining the limit on Index losses, including the cost of our risk management techniques, sales commissions, administrative expenses, regulatory and tax requirements, general economic trends and competitive factors.

Before allocating Contract Value to a Cycle Investment, you should consider in consultation with your financial professional the limits on Index losses that may be appropriate for you based on your risk tolerance, investment horizon and financial goals. Generally, assuming the same Index and Cycle Term length, a Cycle Investment that provides more protection from Index losses will tend to have less potential for Index gains. Conversely, assuming the same Index and Cycle Term length, a Cycle Investment that provides less protection from Index losses will generally tend have more potential for Index gains.

The Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate only apply on the Cycle End Date. For Cycle Investments with multi-year Cycle Terms, these rates do not apply on an annual basis: any negative Index performance is measured from the Cycle Start Date until the Cycle End Date.

Neither the Floor Rate nor the Buffer Rate will apply to any partial or full withdrawals of a Cycle Investment prior to the Cycle End Date, which means that you will not have any guaranteed downside protection on these withdrawals during the Cycle Term.

Example 1: If you invest \$100,000, and the Floor Rate -10% is selected, but you withdraw the entire Cycle Investment prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$8, i.e. the Cycle performance to date (based on the Fair Value, which considers various market factors in addition to Index performance) is -20%, the Floor Rate would not apply and you could incur

the full loss of -20%, or \$20,000. This is because if you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date, there is no downside protection and you risk the loss of your entire investment.

Example 2: If you invest \$100,000, and the Buffer Rate -20% is selected, and you withdraw the entire Cycle Investment prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$9, i.e. the Cycle performance to date (based on the Fair Value, which considers various market factors in addition to Index performance) is -10%, the Buffer Rate would not apply and you could incur the full loss of 10%, or \$10,000. In this example, your loss could be equal the full amount of the Cycle Investment Unit Value decline of 10%, or \$10,000. This is because if you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date, there is no downside protection and you risk the loss of your entire investment.

Limits on Index Gains

At the end of a Cycle Term for a Cycle Investment, we may limit the positive Index return used to calculate the Cycle Investment Unit Values by applying the Cap Rate, the Participation Rate or the Cap Rate with Participation Rate, as applicable.

Cap Rate. The Cap Rate is the maximum positive rate of return on a Cycle End Date and it limits participation in positive Index performance. This means that the return on an Cycle Investment is limited to the Cap Rate even if the Index performance on the Cycle Investment End Date is higher.

The following examples illustrate how we calculate and credit interest under each Index crediting methodology assuming hypothetical Index returns and hypothetical limits on Index gains and losses. The examples assume no withdrawals

Example 1. If the performance of an Index at the end of a 3-year Cycle Term is 10%, but the Cap Rate is 8%, the return on your Cycle Investment for that Cycle Term would be limited to 8%, which is the Cap Rate.

Example 2. If the performance of an Index at the end of year of a 3-year Cycle Term is 5%, but the Cap Rate is 8%, the return on your Cycle Investment for that Cycle Term would be the full 5% because it is below the Cap Rate.

We have established a minimum Cap Rate for each available Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate Crediting Type, which are the Rate Thresholds disclosed in this prospectus. If we cannot offer the Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate that is equal to or above the applicable Rate Threshold, the Cycle Investment will not launch on the Cycle Start Date for the new Cycle Term. We guarantee that we will never offer a Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate below 2.5% for the life of your Contract.

Participation Rate. The Participation Rate is the portion of positive Index performance, if any, for a Cycle Investment that your Cycle Investment Unit Value will participate in on the Cycle End Date. We determine the return on an Cycle Investment based on a Participation Rate by multiplying any Index gain over the Cycle Term by the Participation Rate.

The following examples illustrate how we calculate and credit interest under each Index crediting methodology assuming hypothetical Index returns and hypothetical limits on Index gains and losses. The examples assume no withdrawals

Example 1. If the performance of an Index at the end of a 1-year Cycle Term is 10%, and the Participation Rate is 90%, the return on the Cycle Investment for that Cycle Term would be 9%, which is 90% of the Index gain.

Example 2. If the performance of an Index at the end of a 1-year Cycle Term is 5%, and the Participation Rate is 90%, the return on the Cycle Investment for that Cycle Term would be 4.5%, which is 90% of the Index gain.

Participation Rates do not limit the Contract Owner's return to a maximum amount. A Cycle Investment with a Participation Rate of 90% will experience returns equal to 90% of the Index gain over the Cycle Term, no matter how high or low the Index gain may be.

We have established a minimum Participation Rate for each available Cycle Investment with a Participation Rate Crediting Type, which are the Rate Thresholds disclosed in this prospectus. If we cannot offer the Cycle Investment with a Participation Rate that is equal to or above the applicable Rate Threshold, the Cycle Investment will not launch on the Cycle Start Date for the new Cycle Term. We guarantee that we will never offer a Cycle Investment with a Participation Rate below 10.0% for the life of your Contract.

Cap Rate with Participation Rate. The Cap Rate is the maximum positive rate of return on a Cycle End Date and it limits participation in positive Index performance. The Participation Rate is the percentage of positive Index performance, if any, for a Cycle Investment that your Cycle Investment Unit Value will participate in on the Cycle End Date, subject to the Cap Rate. We may declare the Cap Rate for a Cycle Term to be unlimited, in which case there is no maximum potential increase. We may declare the Participation Rate to be greater than 100%, in which case the rate of return would be greater than the Index gain, subject to the Cap Rate (if applicable).

The following examples illustrate how we calculate and credit interest under each Index crediting methodology assuming hypothetical Index returns and hypothetical limits on Index gains and losses. The examples assume no withdrawals.

Example 1. If the performance of an Index at the end of a 6-year Cycle Term is 10%, and the Cap Rate is 8% and the Participation Rate is 90%, the return on the Cycle Investment for that Cycle Term would be 8%, which is the Cap Rate.

Example 2. If the performance of an Index at the end of a 6-year Cycle Term is 5%, and the Cap Rate is 8% and the Participation Rate is 90%, the return on the Cycle Investment for that Cycle Term would be 4.5%, which is 90% of the Index gain.

Example 3. If the performance of an Index at the end of a 6-year Cycle Term is 10%, and we declare the Cap Rate to be unlimited and the Participation Rate is 110%, the return on the Cycle Investment for that Cycle Term would be 11%, which is 110% of the Index gain.

We have established a minimum Cap Rate and a minimum Participation Rate for each available Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate with Participation Rate Crediting Type, which are the Rate Thresholds disclosed in this prospectus. If we cannot offer the Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate and a Participation Rate that are equal to or above the applicable Rate Thresholds, the Cycle Investment will not launch on the Cycle Start Date for the new Cycle Term. We guarantee that we will never offer a Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate Below 2.5 % and a Participation Rate below 10% for the life of your Contract.

The Index return for a Cycle Investment is measured as the difference between applicable Index value on the Cycle Start Date and the Cycle End Date. For Cycle Investments with multi-year Cycle Terms, these rates do not apply on an annual basis: any positive Index performance is measured as the difference between applicable Index value on the Cycle Start Date and the Cycle End Date. The Cap Rate is a limit on the maximum rate of return on a Cycle Investment at the end of the Cycle Term, not the end each year of the Cycle Term. For Participation Rates with multi-year Cycle Terms, the Participation Rate is the portion of the Index gain on a Cycle Investment at the end of the Cycle Term. Interim changes in the value of the Cycle Investment during a Cycle Term will occur, and may be higher or lower, sometimes significantly higher or lower, than the return on the Cycle Investment on the Cycle End Date.

The Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate for a Cycle Investment will not change during a Cycle Term, but may change from one Cycle Term to the next. The Cap Rates and Participation Rates applicable to your initial Cycle Term are not guaranteed for future Cycle Terms. For future Cycle Terms, we may declare different Cap Rates and Participation Rates.

The Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate for each Cycle Investment that we are currently offering for new Cycle Terms are available at the following website address: https://www.midlandnational.com/oakeliteadv. The Cap Rates and Participation Rates posted on that website address are incorporated by reference into the prospectus. We determine Cap Rates and Participation Rates for each new Cycle Term at our discretion, subject to the guaranteed minimum Cap Rate and Participation Rate. We consider a number of factors when declaring Cap Rates and Participation Rates. Generally, we seek to manage our risk associated with our obligations, in part, by trading call and put options and other derivative instruments on the available Indices. The costs of these instruments impact the rates we declare, and those costs can be impacted by market conditions and forces. We also consider sales commissions, administrative expenses, regulatory and tax requirements, general economic trends and competitive factors. You bear the risk that we may declare lower Cap Rates and Participation Rates for future Cycle Terms, and that such rates could be as low as the guaranteed minimum Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate for that Cycle Investment. Rates offered for new Cycle Terms may be different from those offered to new investors or offered to you at Contract issuance.

Before allocating Contract Value to a Cycle Investment, you should consider in consultation with your financial professional the limits on Index gains that may be appropriate for you based on your risk tolerance, investment horizon and financial goals. Please note, generally the higher the Floor Rate you select, the higher the Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate we will offer. For example if the Floor Rate is increased from -10% to -20%, the Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate would increase. In general, the lower the Buffer Rate you select, the higher the Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate we will offer. For example if the Buffer Rate is decreased from -20% to -10%, the Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate would increase. In other words, selecting less protection from potential losses due to negative Index performance will generally result in a higher Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate, giving you more exposure to upside potential.

The Indices

We currently offer Cycle Investments linked to the following Indices (each, an "Index"):

S&P 500 Price Return Index (Bloomberg Ticker: SPX). The S&P 500 Price Return Index was established by Standard & Poor's. The S&P 500 Price Return Index includes 500 leading companies in leading industries of the U.S. economy, capturing 75% coverage of U.S. equities. The S&P 500 Price Return Index is a "price return index," not a "total return index," and therefore does not reflect dividends or distributions paid on the securities composing the Index. This will reduce the Index return and cause the Index to underperform a direct investment in the securities composing the Index. Additional information about the Index can be found at https://www.spglobal.com/spdji/en/indices/equity/sp-500/#overview.

MSCI EAFE Price Return Index (Bloomberg Ticker: MXEA). The MSCI EAFE Price Return Index was established by Morgan Stanley Capital International. The MSCI EAFE Index is designed to represent the performance of large and mid-cap securities across 21 developed markets, including countries in Europe, Australasia and the Far East, excluding the U.S. and Canada. The Index is available for a number of regions, market segments/sizes and covers approximately 85% of the free float-adjusted market capitalization in each of the 21 countries. The MSCI EAFE Price Return Index is a "price return index," not a "total return index," and therefore does not reflect dividends or distributions paid on the securities composing the Index. This will reduce the Index return and cause the Index to underperform a direct investment in the securities composing the Index. Additional information about the Index can be found at https://www.msci.com/eafe/.

Dimensional US Equity Core Plus Index (Bloomberg Ticker: DFAUECPE) The Dimensional US Equity Core Plus Index is a US equity market index designed to offer broad diversification with a strong emphasis on areas of the market that research has shown to outperform over time. The Index is comprised of Dimensional ETFs based on target weights, rebalanced monthly. Constituent ETFs and their current target weights include the Dimensional US Core Equity 2 ETF (60.0%), Dimensional US Large Cap Vector ETF

(12.5%), Dimensional US High Profitability ETF (12.5%), and Dimensional US Small Cap Value ETF (15.0%). At each rebalance, the Index redistributes weight in the eligible ETFs according to the Index's ETF target weight distribution. The data used at rebalance will be the most recent end-of-day prices of the ETF components. These end-of-day prices generally reflect the underlying fees and expenses of each ETF, which could impact the return of the Index. The Index Committee of Dimensional Fund Advisors LP may adjust the ETF constituents and/or target weights from time to time depending on market conditions, ETF liquidity, and other factors deemed relevant in the Committee's discretion. The Index is an "excess return" index, meaning its return reflects the investment return of its component ETFs (including reinvestment of all dividends and distributions), which is then reduced by both the effective federal funds rate (EFFR) and a 1.2% synthetic dividend. As of December 1, 2024, the current EFFR was 4.58%. The EFFR will fluctuate over time, and may be higher or lower in the final Index return for that day would be computed by: (1) calculating the sum of the synthetic dividend plus the EFFR (12.% + 4.58% = 5.78%); (2) determining the "de-annualized" daily rate by multiplying the sum by $1/360 (5.78\% \times 1/360 = 0.0161\%)$; and (3) subtracting the daily rate from the Index return (1% - 0.0161\% = 0.984\%). The final Index return after the deductions for that day would be 0.984%. These deductions will reduce the Index return and cause the Index to underperform a direct investment in the securities composing the Index. Additional information about the Index can be found at https://www.dimensional.com/us-equity-core-plus-index.

Each Index involves risks, including the risk of loss of principal and previous earnings. *See "Principal Risks of Investing in the Contract"* earlier in this Prospectus for more information. See "*Appendix C - Index Disclaimers*" for important information regarding the Indices.

Historical Index Returns

The bar charts shown below provide each Index's annual returns for the last 10 calendar years (or for the life of the Index if less than 10 years), as well as the Index returns after applying a hypothetical 5% Cap Rate and a hypothetical -10% Buffer Rate. The chart illustrates the variability of the returns from year to year and shows how hypothetical limits on Index gains and losses may affect these returns. Past performance is not necessarily an indication of future performance.

The performance below is NOT the performance of *any* Cycle Investment. Your performance under the Contract will differ, perhaps significantly. The performance below may reflect a different return calculation, time period and limit on Index gains and losses than the Cycle Investments, and does not reflect Contract fees and charges, including negative adjustments for Fair Value, which reduce performance.



S&P 500 Price Return Index 1

¹ This Index is a "price return index," not a "total return index," and therefore does not reflect the dividends paid on the securities composing the Index, which will reduce the Index return and may cause the Index to underperform a direct investment in the securities composing the Index.



MSCI EAFE Price Return Index 1

¹ This Index is a "price return index," not a "total return index," and therefore does not reflect the dividends paid on the securities composing the Index, which will reduce the Index return and may cause the Index to underperform a direct investment in the securities composing the Index.

The Dimensional US Equity Core Plus Index launched on 11/14/2024 and does not have historical annual returns at this time.

Replacement of an Index

In the event an Index for a Cycle Investment is discontinued, we may replace the Index with an available comparable Index for future Cycle Investments.

In addition, in the event an Index for a Cycle Investment is changed substantially, or if hedging instruments become difficult to acquire or the cost of hedging becomes excessive, we may stop offering and/or replace the Index with an available comparable Index for future Cycle Investments.

If an Index is discontinued, for Cycle Terms that are ongoing, we will end, i.e., mature, the Cycle Term on the date the Index is discontinued, and calculate the Cycle Investment return based on the Crediting Type (i.e. Cap Rate, Participation Rate, or Cap Rate with Participation Rate) and the Cycle Structure (i.e. Floor Rate or Buffer Rate), as applicable.

If we stop offering an Index for future Cycle Investments for any reason other than the Index is discontinued, any ongoing applicable Cycle Investments will continue until their Cycle End Date. This means we will not will not mature a Cycle Investment before its Cycle End Date if that Index has not been discontinued.

In replacing an Index for future Cycle Investments, we would attempt to choose a new Index that has a similar investment objective and risk profile to the original Index. The selection criteria for a suitable alternative Index may include the following:

- 1. There is a sufficiently large market in exchange traded and/or over-the counter options, futures, and similar derivative instruments based on the Index to allow the Company to hedge fluctuations of the Index Value.
- 2. The Index is recognized as a broad-based Index for the relevant market; and
- 3. The publisher of the Index allows the Company to use the Index and other materials for a reasonable fee.

For example, if the S&P 500 Price Return index is discontinued, we will mature the Cycle Investments as of the date of the most recently available Index closing value. We will use that closing value to calculate the return through that date. We will apply the return calculated on that date in the same way we apply the return calculated on the Cycle End Date for Cycle Investments that are not terminated early. This means we will apply the Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate and Floor Rate or Buffer Rate, as applicable. For example, if the Index was up 10% at the time we matured the Cycle for a Cycle with an 8% Cap Rate, we would credit an 8% return to your Cycle Investment Value and for a Cycle with a 90% Participation Rate, we would credit a 9% return to your Cycle Investment Value and for a Cycle with a 90% Participation Rate, we would credit an 8% return to your Cycle Investment

Value. If the Index was down 30% at the time we matured the Cycle for a Cycle with a -10% Buffer Rate, we would credit a 20% negative return to your Cycle Investment Value and for a Cycle with -10% Floor Rate, we would credit -10%. We would provide notice about maturing the Cycle that is terminated early, as soon as practicable and ask for instructions on where to transfer your Cycle Investment Value.

We will give at least a 30 day notice of any change, unless the Index provider itself gives us less than 30 days' notice, in which case we will give you and your Advisor notice as soon as practicable.

In the case of any of the types of early maturities discussed above, you can allocate the Cycle Investment Value to any of the available investment options, such as immediately to a Subaccount or to a Cycle Investment on the next Cycle Start Date, if available.

Contract owners are always permitted to transfer to the Subaccounts and may not invest in Cycles that have already commenced.

Investing in the Cycle Investments

Subject to our right not to offer any Cycle Investments, we will launch new Investment Cycles on the third Thursday of every month. If the third Thursday of the month is not a Business Day, we will launch the new Investment Cycles on the next Business Day.

Thirty Business Days prior to any Cycle Investment Start Date, we will post information on-line about the Cycle Investments scheduled to start next. The notice, which will be posted on the Midland National's website at https://www.midlandnational.com/ oakeliteadv and will include the following information for each available Cycle Investment:

- 1) Index, Cycle Term, and Floor Rate or Buffer Rate, as applicable;
- 2) Start Date and Cycle End Date;
- 3) Indicative Rate(s) and Crediting Type (which will be updated every Tuesday before the Cycle Start Date);
- 4) Instructions for completing investment allocation instructions for the new Cycle Investments deadline.

The final Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate for a Cycle Investment will be declared on the Cycle Start Date and will be disclosed on our website https://www.midlandnational.com/oakeliteadv as of that day. Prior to the Cycle Start Date, we will post Indicative Rates every Tuesday. The Cap Rate or Participation Rate for a new Cycle Term may be higher, lower, or equal to the Cap Rate or Participation Rate for the Indicative Rate.

We have established a minimum Cap Rate for each available Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate Crediting Type and a minimum Participation Rate for each available Cycle Investment with a Participation Rate Crediting Type and a minimum Cap Rate and minimum Participation Rate for each available

Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate with Participation Rate Crediting Type, which are the Rate Thresholds disclosed in this prospectus. If we cannot offer the Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate that is equal to or above the applicable Rate Threshold, the Cycle Investment will not launch on the Cycle Start Date for the new Cycle Term. There is a risk that you may not have a Cycle Investment to invest in if we decide not to offer any Cycle Investments in the future.

We will inform you and your Advisor in writing, or electronically, if applicable, of the final Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate for each new Cycle Investment (whether an initial Cycle Investment or a renewal from a maturing Cycle Investment) to which your Contract Value is allocated. If the Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate is not satisfactory to you, you will be eligible to "bailout" of the new Cycle Investment, regardless of whether it is an initial Cycle Investment or a renewal from a maturing Cycle Investment. In order to exercise your right to bailout of the Cycle Investment, you or your Advisor must notify us within 5 business days from the day we send you and your Advisor notice of the final Cap Rate(s) and/or Participation Rate(s). When you do so, you must instruct us where to reallocate your investment. If you want to exercise your right to bailout you can do so by contacting us by telephone at 833-492-0022 or by e-mail at Securities@SFGMembers.com. Your bailout right permits you to (i) reallocate your proceeds from the Cycle Investment to different investment options under the Contract without being subject to the Fair Value calculation or any transfer charges, or (ii) withdraw your proceeds from the Cycle Investment less any prior Gross Partial Withdrawals taken from the Cycle Investment, Advisor Fees, and optional rider fees, without being subject to the Fair Value calculation. Amounts withdrawn or surrendered may be subject to applicable surrender charges and taxes, including a 10% federal penalty tax before age 59½. If you or your Advisor do not exercise your right to bailout within 5 business days of the notice, then your Contract Value allocated to the Cycle Investment will remain invested in the Cycle Investment. This means that if you later decide to transfer or withdraw your proceeds from the Cycle Investment prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value of the amount you allocated to the Cycle Investment will be based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate or Buffer Rate will not apply. See "Transfers out of a Cycle Investment" and "Withdrawals from Cycle Investments" for more information about the consequences of transfers and withdrawals from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date.

Your bailout proceeds will be equal to the entire amount you allocated to the new Cycle Investment on the Cycle Start Date less any prior Gross Partial Withdrawals taken from the Cycle, Advisory Fees, and optional rider fees, i.e., it will not be subject to any Fair Value calculation and it will not be subject to any transfer charges.

If you have a maturing Cycle Investment, we will mail you and your Advisor this notice, or, if applicable, deliver it electronically. For more information, see "Cycle End Date Payments; Rollovers" below in this section.

To invest in a new Cycle Investment, you must submit your allocation instructions no later than the close of the Business Day prior to the Cycle Start Date. Your allocation instructions must specify:

- 1) the Cycle Investment(s) you select for investment; and
- 2) the amount and source of Contract Value to be allocated to the Cycle Investment(s), *i.e.*, additional premium payments, amounts allocated to Investment Portfolios Available Under the Contract Investment Options or proceeds from a Cycle Investment maturing prior to the applicable Cycle Start Date,

All transfers of Contract Value to the Cycle Investments will be placed in the Default Account one Business Day prior to the Cycle Start Date. All allocations of premium payments to the Cycle Investments will be placed in the Default Account upon allocation to the Contract and held there until the Cycle Start Date. Please note that we must receive premium payments allocated to the Cycle Investments by the close of the Business Day prior to the Cycle Start Date in order for those premiums to be included in a given Cycle launch. Premium payments received after 3:00 p.m. Central Time will remain in the Default Account until the next Cycle Start Date (i.e., the third Thursday of the following month). All proceeds from maturing Cycle Investments that will rollover into a new Cycle Term of the same Cycle Type or will be reallocated to a different Cycle Start Date, we will then reallocate the amounts to the designated Cycle Investment(s) This includes initial premiums, additional premium payments, transferred Contract Value from the Subaccounts and rollovers from maturing Cycle Investments.

Depending on market and business considerations, we may determine not to offer a Cycle Investment on a Cycle Start Date and may reject or limit the amount allocated in a Cycle Investment at our sole discretion at any time until the end of the Business Day on the Cycle Start Date. We may choose not to offer any Cycle Investment for any period or we may decide to cease offering Cycle Investments. If we decide to cease offering Cycle Types, each outstanding Cycle Investment will continue until its respective Cycle End Date.

If you do not provide us with allocation instructions, or we do not timely receive your allocations instructions, or if the Cycle Investment you have selected is not available on the Cycle Start Date, your Contract Value will be invested in the Default Account until you provide us with alternative allocation instructions in Good Order.

<u>The Default Account</u>. The Default Account is the Fidelity VIP Government Money Market Portfolio - Service Class 2 Subaccount, which is used to hold the following: (i) premium payments designated for a new Cycle Investment(s) upon allocation to the Contract, (ii) transfers of Contract Value designated for a new Cycle Investment(s) at least one Business Day prior to the Cycle Start Date, (iii) proceeds from a maturing Cycle Investment(s) before they are reinvested into a new Cycle Investment, and (iv) proceeds from a maturing Cycle Investment for offered discontinued Cycle Investment which we have no instructions or for which the Cycle Investment does not launch.

The Cycle Start Date. We establish the Cap Rate and/or Participation Rate for a new Cycle Investment on the Cycle Start Date in our sole discretion based on a variety of factors. The Cap Rate or Participation Rate we establish may be different from the Indicative Rate on our website and in the notice, if you are already a Contract owner invested in a Cycle Investment. You will not know the final Cap Rate or Participation Rate until the Cycle Start Date, at which point it will be posted on our website, https://www.midlandnational.com/oakeliteadv. You will also be notified by mail or electronically, as applicable.

Cycle Investment Value

The value of a Cycle Investment is measured in terms of the number of Cycle Investment Units credited to the Contract upon investment in the Cycle Investment and the Cycle Investment Unit Value of such Units. The Cycle Investment Unit Value on the Cycle Start Date of each Cycle Investment will be \$10.00. The number of Cycle Investment Units credited to the Cycle Investment is determined by dividing the amount invested in the Cycle Investment divided by the Initial Cycle Investment Unit Value of \$10.00.

In determining the Fair Value of a Cycle Investment Unit during a Cycle Term, the Fair Value Calculation Agent will take into account a variety of factors, such as the change in the Index Value from the Start Date, volatility of the Index, interest rate changes, dividend yield on the index, and time remaining to the Cycle End Date. During the Cycle Term, the Floor Rate or Buffer Rate will not apply.

During a Cycle Term, the Cycle Investment Unit Value will fluctuate based upon the Fair Value of the Cycle Investment determined by the Fair Value Calculation Agent as described in "Valuation of a Cycle Investment" later in this prospectus. Before the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Value may be lower than the amount allocated to the Cycle Investment on the Start Date even when the Index performance is positive due to the possibility that the Index performance could decrease before the Cycle End Date. The Cycle Investment Unit Value may also be reduced by changes in Index volatility and interest rates. See "Fair Value Formulas for Cycle Investments" in the Statement of Additional Information for the formulas used by the Fair Value Calculation Agent to determine the Fair Value and detailed examples of the Fair Value calculation under different market conditions.

CYCLE INVESTMENT UNIT VALUE CALCULATION FOR CYCLE INVESTMENTS WITH FLOOR RATE AND CAP RATE:

<u>Start Date</u>

The Initial Cycle Investment Unit Value will be set as \$10 for each Cycle on the Cycle Start Date.

During the Cycle Term

Each Cycle Business Day prior to Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value will be calculated as the Cycle Investment Unit Value based on the Fair Value. The Fair Value of each Cycle Investment will be determined by the Fair Value Calculation Agent. This is equivalent to the Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units.

The hypothetical examples below assume 100,000 Cycle Investment units and the Index Value on the Cycle Start Date of 1,000. The examples of the hypothetical Fair Value were chosen to demonstrate the effects of the Floor not applying before the Cycle End Date on the Cycle Investment Unit Value. See "Fair Value Formulas for Cycle Investments" in the Statement of Additional Information for the formulas used by the Fair Value Calculation Agent to determine the Fair Value and detailed examples of the Fair Value calculation under different market conditions.

Example 1 – Index increases 50%: A Cycle with a 3 year Cycle Term and -10% Cycle Floor Rate, and 20% Cap Rate. The Index increases to 1,500 (50% gain) 150 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$1,100,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = 1,100,000 / 100,000 = 11.00. The Cycle Investment Unit Value is 11.00 and is based on the Fair Value. The Cap Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 2 – Index decreases 40%: A Cycle with a 3 year Cycle Term and -10% Cycle Floor Rate. The Index decreases to 600 (40% loss) 150 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$900,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding Unit Value = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = \$900,000 / 100,000 = \$9.00

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$9.00 and is based on the Fair Value. The Floor Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 3 – Index decreases 60%: A Cycle with a 3 year (1,095 days) Cycle Term, -10% Cycle Floor Rate, and 20% Cap Rate. The Index decreases to 400 (60% loss) 150 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$880,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = \$880,000 / 100,000 = \$8.80.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$8.80 and is based on the Fair Value. The Floor Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 4 – Index Increases 50%: A Cycle with a 3 year (1,095 days) Cycle Term, -10% Cycle Floor Rate, and 20% Cap Rate. The Index increases to 1,500 (50% gain) 750 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$1,160,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = 1,160,000 / 100,000 = 11.60.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$11.60 and is based on the Fair Value. The Floor Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 5 – Index Decreases 40%: A Cycle with a 3 year (1,095 days) Cycle Term, -10% Cycle Floor Rate, and 20% Cap Rate. The Index decreases to 600 (40% loss) 750 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$930,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = \$930,000 / 100,000 = \$9.30.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$9.30 and is based on the Fair Value. The Floor Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 6— Index decreases 60%: A Cycle with a 3 year (1,095 days) Cycle Term, -10% Cycle Floor Rate, and 20% Cap Rate. The Index decreases to 400 (60% loss) 750 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$920,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = \$920,000 / 100,000 = \$9.20.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$9.20 and is based on the Fair Value. The Floor Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

CYCLE INVESTMENT UNIT VALUE CALCULATION FOR CYCLE INVESTMENTS WITH A BUFFER RATE AND A CAP RATE:

Start Date

The Initial Cycle Investment Unit Value will be set as \$10 for each Cycle Investment on the Start Date.

During the Cycle Term

Each Cycle Business Day prior to Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value will be calculated as the Cycle Investment Unit Value based on the Fair Value. The Fair Value of each Cycle Investment will be determined by the Fair Value Calculation Agent. This is equivalent to the Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units.

<u>The hypothetical examples below assume 100,000 Cycle Investment Units for all of the examples and the Index Value on the Cycle Start Date of 1,000. The examples of the hypothetical Fair Value for different Index levels, different points in the Cycle's life, and different Cycle Terms were chosen to demonstrate the effects of the Buffer not applying before the Cycle End Date. See "Fair Value Formulas for Cycle Investments" in the Statement of Additional Information for the formulas used by the Fair Value Calculation Agent to determine the Fair Value and detailed examples of the Fair Value calculation under different market conditions.</u>

Example 1— Index increases 50%: A Cycle with a 3 year (1,095 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 35% Cap Rate. The Index increases to 1,500 (50% gain) 150 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$1,290,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = 1,290,000 / 100,000 = 12.90.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$12.90 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 2 — Index decreases 60%: A Cycle with a 3 year (1,095 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 35% Cap Rate. The Index decreases to 400 (60% loss) 150 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$490,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = \$490,000 / 100,000 = \$4.90.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$4.90 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 3— Index increases 50%: A Cycle with a 3 year (1,095 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 35% Cap Rate. The Index increases to 1,500 (50% gain) 750 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$1,380,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = 1,380,000 / 100,000 = 13.80.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$13.80 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 4— Index decreases 60%: A Cycle with a 3 year (1,095 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 35% Cap Rate. The Index decreases to 400 (60% loss) 750 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$510,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = \$510,000 / 100,000 = \$5.10.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$5.10 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 5 — Index increases 50%: A Cycle with a 6 year Cycle Term and - 10% Buffer Rate. The Index increases to 1,600 (60% gain) 2,000 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$1,350,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = 1,350,000 / 100,000 = 13.50.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$13.50 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 6— Index decreases 60%: A Cycle with a 6 year Cycle Term and - 10% Buffer Rate. The Index decreases to 500 (60% loss) 2,000 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$650,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = \$650,000 / 100,000 = \$6.50.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$6.50 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 7— Index increases 50%: A Cycle with a 6 year (2,190 days) Cycle Term, -30% Buffer Rate, and 30% Cap Rate. The Index increases to 1,500 (50% gain) 2,000 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$1,320,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = 1,320,000 / 100,000 = 13.20.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$13.20 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 8— Index decreases 60%: A Cycle with a 6 year (2,190 days) Cycle Term, -30% Buffer Rate, and 30% Cap Rate. The Index decreases to 400 (60% loss) 2,000 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$720,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = 720,000 / 100,000 = 7.20.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$7.20 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

CYCLE INVESTMENT UNIT VALUE CALCULATION FOR CYCLE INVESTMENTS WITH A BUFFER RATE AND A PARTICIPATION RATE:

<u>Start Date</u>

The Initial Cycle Investment Unit Value will be set as \$10 for each Cycle Investment on the Start Date.

During the Cycle Term

Each Cycle Business Day prior to Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value will be calculated as the Cycle Investment Unit Value based on the Fair Value. The Fair Value of each Cycle Investment will be determined by the Fair Value Calculation Agent. This is equivalent to the Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units.

<u>The hypothetical examples below assume 100,000 Cycle Investment Units for all of the examples and the Index Value on the Cycle Start Date of 1,000.</u> The examples of the hypothetical Fair Value for different Index levels, different points in the Cycle's life, and different Cycle Terms were chosen to demonstrate the effects of the Buffer not applying before the Cycle End Date. See "Fair Value Formulas for Cycle Investments" in the Statement of Additional Information for the formulas used by the Fair Value Calculation Agent to determine the Fair Value and detailed examples of the Fair Value calculation under different market conditions.</u>

Example 1 Index increases 50%: A Cycle with a 1 year (365 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 70% Participation Rate. The Index increases to 1,500 (50% gain) 60 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$1,335,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = 1,335,000 / 100,000 = 13.35.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$13.35 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 2 Index decreases 60%: A Cycle with a 1 year (365 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 70% Participation Rate. The Index decreases to 400 (60% loss) 60 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$493,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = \$493,000 / 100,000 = \$4.93.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$4.93 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 3 Index increases 50%: A Cycle with a 1 year (365 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 70% Participation Rate. The Index increases to 1,500 (50% gain) 300 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$1,346,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = 1,346,000 / 100,000 = 13.46.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$13.46 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 4 Index decreases 60%: A Cycle with a 1 year (365 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 70% Participation Rate. The Index decreases to 400 (60% loss) 300 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$498,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = \$498,000 / 100,000 = \$4.98.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$4.98 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 5—Index increases 50%: A Cycle with a 6 year (2,190 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 125% Participation Rate. The Index increases to 1,500 (50% gain) 150 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$1,511,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = 1,511,000 / 100,000 = 15.11.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$15.11 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 6— **Index decreases 60%:** A Cycle with a 6 year (2,190 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 125% Participation Rate. The Index decreases to 400 (60% loss) 150 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$450,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = 450,000 / 100,000 = 4.50.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$4.50 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 7 — Index increases 50%: A Cycle with a 6 year (2,190 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 125% Participation Rate. The Index increases to 1,500 (50% gain) 2,000 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$1,599,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = \$1,599,000 / 100,000 = \$15.99.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$15.99 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 8— Index decreases 60%: A Cycle with a 6 year (2,190 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 125% Participation Rate. The Index decreases to 400 (60% loss) 2,000 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$450,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = \$450,000 / 100,000 = \$4.50.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$4.50 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

CYCLE INVESTMENT UNIT VALUE CALCULATION FOR CYCLE INVESTMENTS WITH A BUFFER RATE, A CAP RATE, AND PARTICIPATION RATE:

For these cycles both a Cap Rate and a Par Rate will be declared. Depending on market conditions the Participation Rate will be set at 100% and the Cap Rate will not be unlimited or the Cap Rate will be unlimited and the Participation Rate will be set at a value greater than 100%.

Start Date

The Initial Cycle Investment Unit Value will be set as \$10 for each Cycle Investment on the Start Date.

During the Cycle Term

Each Cycle Business Day prior to Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value will be calculated as the Cycle Investment Unit Value based on the Fair Value. The Fair Value of each Cycle Investment will be determined by the Fair Value Calculation Agent. This is equivalent to the Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units.

<u>The hypothetical examples below assume 100,000 Cycle Investment Units for all of the examples and the Index Value on the Cycle Start Date of 1,000.</u> The examples of the hypothetical Fair Value for different Index levels, different points in the Cycle's life, and different Cycle Terms were chosen to demonstrate the effects of the Buffer not applying before the Cycle End Date.

<u>See "Fair Value Formulas for Cycle Investments"</u> in the Statement of Additional Information <u>for the formulas used by the</u> Fair Value Calculation Agent to determine the Fair Value and detailed examples of the Fair Value calculation under <u>different</u><u>market conditions</u>.

Example 1 — Index increases 50%: A Cycle with a 6 year (2,190 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 100% Participation Rate and 60% Cap Rate. The Index increases to 1,500 (50% gain) 150 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$1,511,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = \$1,511,000 / 100,000 = \$15.11

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$15.11 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 2— Index decreases 60%: A Cycle with a 6 year (2,190 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 100% Participation Rate and 60% Cap Rate. The Index decreases to 400 (60% loss) 150 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$450,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = \$450,000 / 100,000 = \$4.50

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$4.50 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 3— Index increases 50%: A Cycle with a 6 year (2,190 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 110% Participation Rate and unlimited Cap Rate. The Index increases to 1,500 (50% gain) 2,000 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$1,599,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = \$1,599,000 / 100,000 = \$15.99

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$15.99 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

Example 4— Index decreases 60%: A Cycle with a 6 year (2,190 days) Cycle Term, -10% Buffer Rate, and 110% Participation Rate and unlimited Cap Rate. The Index decreases to 400 (60% loss) 2,000 days after the Cycle Start Date. Assume that the Fair Value Agent has determined the Fair Value is \$510,000.

The fair value per Cycle Units outstanding = Fair Value / number of Cycle Investment Units = \$510,000 / 100,000 = \$5.10

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$5.10 and is based on the Fair Value. The Buffer Rate does not apply prior to the Cycle End Date.

For more information, see "Valuation of a Cycle Investment".

Transfers out of a Cycle Investment

You may transfer all or a portion of your Cycle Investment Value out of a Cycle Investment on any Business Day. If you transfer from a Cycle Investment during the Cycle Term prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value is based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate or Buffer Rate will not apply. This means that if the Index is performing positively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect lower gains (because of the Fair Value calculation), and, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle End Date. If you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date, including transfers to the Subaccounts, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if you waited until the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower.

You may transfer *into* a Subaccount on any Business Day and/or into another Cycle Investment on the Cycle Start Date. If you request to transfer from a Cycle Investment to another Cycle Investment, you must transfer into the Default Account at least one Business Day prior to the Cycle Start Date. You may also request that all or part of any withdrawal amount be reallocated to an upcoming new Cycle Investment or to one or more Subaccounts available under the Contract.

For proceeds from maturing Cycles, if you do not provide transfer instructions in Good Order, we will allocate the Cycle Investment Value to the next new Cycle Investment of the same Cycle Type. If such a new Cycle Investment is not available, we will allocate the Cycle Investment Value to the Default Account.

Withdrawals from Cycle Investments

To withdraw money from a Cycle Investment, you must send us a Written Request containing the pertinent details of the withdrawal request, including the amount of the withdrawal and the Cycle Investment(s) from which to make the withdrawal ("*withdrawal request*"). Unless we receive instructions from you, we will deduct all withdrawals (except Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider) pro-rata from the Subaccounts until your Accumulation Value is exhausted, then from the Cycle Investments on a pro-rata basis, then from the Default Account. You may instruct us to take withdrawals from all Investment Options – all Investment Portfolios Available Under the Contract Investment Options and all Cycle Investments – on a pro-rata basis. If you take a withdrawal from a Cycle Investment during the Cycle Term prior to the Cycle End Date, you will receive the Cycle Investment Unit Value times the number of Cycle Investment Units withdrawn and the Floor Rate or Buffer Rate will not apply. The minimum Gross Partial Withdrawal amount is \$1,000. Required Minimum Distributions ("RMDs") are not subject to this minimum.

Withdrawals after you elect to begin Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider are taken pro-rata across all investments, including the Cycle Investments and the Default Account, in the same proportion that each Investment Option bears to the total Contract Value. An Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal will reduce the Benefit Base of your GLWB Rider by the same proportion that the Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal reduced the Contract Value, which may be more, even significantly more, than the amount withdrawn and may terminate the rider. If you take an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal on any day prior to the Cycle End Date of your Cycle Investments, you could significantly reduce or eliminate your Benefit Base. This is because prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Value is based on the Fair Value, which will fluctuate during the Cycle Term. See "Valuation of a Cycle Investment" for more information about the Fair Value calculation. See "Guaranteed Living Withdrawal Benefits" for more information about Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals

We will process withdrawal requests that we receive by the end of the Cycle Investment Business Day using that day's Cycle Investment Unit Value. For withdrawal requests we receive after the end of the Cycle Investment Business Day, we will use the Cycle Investment Unit Value for the next Cycle Investment Business Day. The number of Cycle Investment Units withdrawn from the Cycle Investment will equal the withdrawal amount divided by the Cycle Investment Unit Value on the close of the Business Day on which the withdrawal is processed.

We will pay the withdrawal amount to the Contract Owner no later than seven days after the Cycle Investment Business Day on which we received the Written Request, subject to our right to defer payment discussed below.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is determined from the Cycle's Fair Value as provided by the Fair Value Calculation Agent, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. This means, on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, if the Index is performing positively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect lower gains (because of the Fair Value calculation), and, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect higher losses (because the Floor and Buffer Rates do not apply) than on the Cycle End Date. If you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if you waited until the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower. See "Valuation of a Cycle Investment" later in this prospectus for more information.

<u>Required Minimum Distributions</u>. Unless we receive instructions from you, we will deduct all RMDs (except Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider) pro-rata from the Subaccounts until your Accumulation Value is exhausted, then from the Cycle Investments on a pro-rata basis, then from the Default Account. You may instruct us to take RMDs from all Investment Options—all Investment Portfolios Available Under the Contract Investment Options and all Cycle Investments – on a pro-rata basis. If you take an RMD from a Cycle Investment during the Cycle Term prior to the Cycle End Date, you will receive the Cycle Investment Unit Value times the number of Cycle Investment Units withdrawn.

RMD withdrawals after you elect to begin Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider, are taken pro-rata across all investments, including the Cycle Investments and the Default Account, in the same proportion that each investment option bears to the total Contract Value. An Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal will reduce the Benefit Base of your GLWB Rider by the same proportion that the Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal reduced the Contract Value, which may be more, even significantly more, than the amount withdrawn and may terminate the rider. If you take an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal on any day prior to the Cycle End Date of your Cycle Investment, you could significantly reduce or eliminate your Benefit Base. This is because prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Value is based on the Fair Value, which will fluctuate during the Cycle Term. See "Valuation of a Cycle Investment" for more information about the Fair Value calculation. See "Guaranteed Living Withdrawal Benefits" for more information about Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value is determined from the Cycle's Fair Value as provided by the Fair Value Calculation Agent, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. This means, on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, if the Index is performing positively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect lower gains (because of the Fair value calculation), and, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect higher losses (because the Floor and Buffer Rates do not apply) than on the Cycle End Date. If you take a withdrawal, including an RMD, prior to the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if you waited until the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower. *See* "*Valuation of a Cycle Investment* later in this prospectus for more information.

Deferral of Payment. We may defer payment of any withdrawal proceeds or other payment from a Cycle Investment if, due to the closing or other disruption of financial markets or exchanges or other circumstances beyond the Company's control, the Company is unable to settle the necessary transactions prudently as reasonably determined by the Company. See "Payment of Contract Proceeds". **Payments may be deferred for up to six months if the insurance regulatory authority of the state in which the Contract is issued approves such deferral.**

Cycle End Date Payments; Rollovers

Thirty Business Days before the Cycle End Date, we will send you and your Advisor a Cycle Investment Maturity notice that alerts you to the pending Cycle End Date and provides instructions on how to direct us to allocate the proceeds of a maturing Cycle Investment. If you do not provide written instructions directing us to allocate the proceeds of your maturing Cycle Investments to a new Cycle Investment or to the Subaccounts at least one Business Day before the Cycle End Date, either based on the current allocation instructions or new allocation instructions, we will allocate your proceeds as follows:

- 1) For maturing Cycle Investments, we will invest the proceeds in a new Cycle Investment of the same Cycle Type;
- 2) If such a new Cycle Investment is not available, we will allocate the proceeds to the Default Account.

We will pay proceeds of the Cycle Investment on the Cycle End Date.

Valuation of a Cycle Investment

The amount invested in a Cycle Investment by the Contract Owner is the Cycle Investment Value. As of any Cycle Business Day, the Cycle Investment Value is measured by the number of Cycle Investment Units credited to the Contract multiplied by the Cycle Investment Unit Value, each as of that Cycle Business Day. The Cycle Investment Value will reflect withdrawals and fluctuations in the Cycle Investment Unit Value. ON ANY CYCLE BUSINESS DAY AFTER THE CYCLE START DATE, THE CONTRACT OWNER'S CYCLE INVESTMENT VALUE MAY BE LESS THAN THE AMOUNT INITIALLY INVESTED. The Cycle Investment Value is reduced by the dollar amount of all withdrawals and deductions for optional benefit rider charges.

Cycle Investment Unit

The number of Cycle Investment Units initially credited to the Contract is calculated by dividing the amount allocated to the Cycle Investment on the Start Date by \$10.00. The number of Units credited to the Contract will be reduced by withdrawals or deductions for optional benefit rider charges prior to the Cycle End Date based on the amount withdrawn or deducted and the Cycle Investment Unit Value at the time of the withdrawal.

Example 1. A withdrawal of \$10,000 is requested from a Cycle Investment prior to the Cycle End Date. At the time of the request, the number of Cycle Investment Units owned by the Contract Owner is 10,000 and the Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$10 for a total Cycle Investment Value of \$100,000. After the withdrawal the total Cycle Investment Value is 9,000 = 10,000 - 10,000 - 10,000 (withdrawal). The number of Cycle Investment Units after the withdrawal is 9,000 = 10,000 - 10,000 (withdrawn) / 10(Cycle Investment Unit Value).

Example 2. A Contract that includes an optional benefit rider will have a reduced number of Cycle Investment Units on the Cycle End Date as a result of the rider fee assessments. See the following two tables that illustrate the impact of the Return of Premium Death Benefit Rider fees. The example assumes withdrawals of \$10,000 are requested from the Cycle Investment at the end of the second quarter and at the end of the year. Fees of 0.15% for the Return of Premium Death Benefit Rider (ROP) are deducted from the Cycle Investment Value quarterly. At the beginning of the Cycle Term, the number of Cycle Investment Units owned by the Contract Owner is 10,000 and the Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$10 for a total Cycle Investment Value of \$100,000. The following two tables demonstrate the impact on Cycle Investment Value from deducting the ROP fees:

	No ROP DB Rider Fee											
Year	Cycle Investment Value (CIV)	¹⁾ AV Growth	²⁾ Quarterly ROP DB Fee Percentage	ROP DB Fee	Withdrawals	CIV After Fees and Withdrawals	Units	Unit Value	3) Impact of ROP DB Fee			
0	\$100,000.00				\$0.00	\$100,000.00	10,000.00	\$10.00	_			
Q1 .	\$101,250.00	1.25%		_	\$0.00	\$101,250.00	10,000.00	\$10.13	—			
Q2 .	\$102,515.63	1.25%		_	\$10,000.00	\$92,515.63	9,024.54	\$10.25	—			
Q3 .	\$93,672.08	1.25%		_	\$0.00	\$93,672.08	9,024.54	\$10.38	—			
Q4 .	\$94,842.98	1.25%	—		\$10,000.00	\$84,842.98	8,073.01	\$10.51	—			

Annual ROP DB Fee 0.15%

Year	Cycle Investment Value (CIV)	¹⁾ AV Growth	²⁾ Quarterly ROP DB Fee Percentage	ROP DB Fee	Withdrawals	CIV After Fees and Withdrawals	Units	Unit Value	3) Impact of ROP DB Fee
0	\$100,000.00				\$0.00	\$100,000.00	10,000.00	\$10.00	
Q1 .	\$101,250.00	1.25%	0.0375%	\$37.97	\$0.00	\$101,212.03	9,996.25	\$10.12	-\$37.97
Q2 .	\$102,477.19	1.25%	0.0375%	\$38.43	\$10,000.00	\$92,438.76	9,017.04	\$10.25	-\$76.87
Q3 .	\$93,594.25	1.25%	0.0375%	\$35.10	\$0.00	\$93,559.15	9,013.66	\$10.38	-\$112.93
Q4 .	\$94,728.63	1.25%	0.0375%	\$35.52	\$10,000.00	\$84,693.11	8,058.75	\$10.51	-\$149.87

5% growth, applied quarterly is 1.25% 1)

2) 3) As a percentage of Cycle Investment Value

Value with Return Of Premium Death Benefit fee minus value with no Return Of Premium Death Benefit fee

Example 3. The following two tables illustrate the impact of the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit Rider fees. The example assumes withdrawals of \$10,000 are requested from the Cycle Investment at the end of the second quarter and at the end of the year. Fees of 0.40% for the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit are deducted from the Cycle Investment Value quarterly. At the beginning of the Cycle Term, the number of Cycle Investment Units owned by the Contract Owner is 10,000 and the Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$10 for a total Cycle Investment Value of \$100,000. The following two tables demonstrate the impact on Cycle Investment Value from deducting the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit fees:

	No ARDB Rider Fee											
Year	Cycle Investment Value (CIV)	¹⁾ AV Growth	²⁾ Quarterly ARDB Fee Percentage	ARDB Fee	Withdrawals	CIV After Fees and Withdrawals	Units	Unit Value	3) Impact of ARDB Fee			
0	\$100,000.00				\$0.00	\$100,000.00	10,000.00	\$10.00				
Q1 .	\$101,250.00	1.25%		_	\$0.00	\$101,250.00	10,000.00	\$10.13	—			
Q2 .	\$102,515.63	1.25%		_	\$10,000.00	\$92,515.63	9,024.54	\$10.25	—			
Q3 .	\$93,672.08	1.25%		_	\$0.00	\$93,672.08	9,024.54	\$10.38	—			
Q4 .	\$94,842.98	1.25%			\$10,000.00	\$84,842.98	8,073.01	\$10.51	—			

	Annual ARDB Fee 0.40%												
Year	Cycle Investment Value (CIV)	¹⁾ AV Growth	²⁾ Quarterly ARDB Fee Percentage	ARDB Fee	Withdrawals	CIV After Fees and Withdrawals	Units	Unit Value	3) Impact of ARDB Fee				
0	\$100,000.00		_	_	\$0.00	\$100,000.00	10,000.00	\$10.00					
Q1 .	\$101,250.00	1.25%	0.100%	\$101.25	\$0.00	\$101,148.75	9,990.00	\$10.13	-\$101.25				
Q2 .	\$102,413.11	1.25%	0.100%	\$102.41	\$10,000.00	\$92,310.70	9,004.55	\$10.25	-\$204.93				
Q3 .	\$93,464.59	1.25%	0.100%	\$93.46	\$0.00	\$93,371.12	8,995.54	\$10.38	-\$300.95				
Q4 .	\$94,538.26	1.25%	0.100%	\$94.54	\$10,000.00	\$84,443.72	8,035.02	\$10.51	-\$399.26				

1) 5% growth, applied quarterly is 1.25%

2) As a percentage of Cycle Investment Value

3) Value with Annual Ratchet Death Benefit Rider fee minus value with no Annual Ratchet Death Benefit Rider fee

Example 4. The following two tables illustrate the impact of the Contract Value GLWB Rider fees. The example assumes withdrawals of \$10,000 are requested from the Cycle Investment at the end of the second quarter and at the end of the year. Fees of 0.95% for the Contract Value GLWB Rider are deducted from the Cycle Investment Value quarterly. At the beginning of the Cycle Term, the number of Cycle Investment Units owned by the Contract Owner is 10,000 and the Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$10 for a total Cycle Investment Value of \$100,000. The following two tables demonstrate the impact on Cycle Investment Value from deducting the Contract Value GLWB Rider fees:

	No CV GLWB Rider Fee											
Year	Cycle Investment Value (CIV)	¹⁾ AV Growth	²⁾ Quarterly CV GLWB Fee Percentage	CV GLWB Fee	Withdrawals	CIV After Fees and Withdrawals	Units	Unit Value	3) Impact of CV GLWB Fee			
0	\$100,000.00				\$0.00	\$100,000.00	10,000.00	\$10.00				
Q1 .	\$101,250.00	1.25%			\$0.00	\$101,250.00	10,000.00	\$10.13				
Q2 .	\$102,515.63	1.25%		_	\$10,000.00	\$92,515.63	9,024.54	\$10.25	_			
Q3 .	\$93,672.08	1.25%		_	\$0.00	\$93,672.08	9,024.54	\$10.38	_			
Q4 .	\$94,842.98	1.25%			\$10,000.00	\$84,842.98	8,073.01	\$10.51				

	Annual CV GLWB Fee 0.95%											
Year	Cycle Investment Value (CIV)	¹⁾ AV Growth	²⁾ Quarterly CV GLWB Fee Percentage	CV GLWB Fee	Withdrawals	CIV After Fees and Withdrawals	Units	Unit Value	3) Impact of CV GLWB Fee			
0	\$100,000.00				\$0.00	\$100,000.00	10,000.00	\$10.00				
Q1 .	\$101,250.00	1.25%	0.2375%	\$240.47	\$0.00	\$101,009.53	9,976.25	\$10.13	-\$240.47			
Q2 .	\$102,272.16	1.25%	0.2375%	\$242.90	\$10,000.00	\$92,029.26	8,977.10	\$10.25	-\$486.37			
Q3 .	\$93,179.63	1.25%	0.2375%	\$221.30	\$0.00	\$92,958.33	8,955.77	\$10.38	-\$713.75			
Q4 .	\$94,120.30	1.25%	0.2375%	\$223.54	\$10,000.00	\$83,896.77	7,982.98	\$10.51	-\$946.21			

1) 5% growth, applied quarterly is 1.25%

2) As a percentage of Cycle Investment Value

3) Value with Contract Value GLWB Rider fee minus value with no Contract Value GLWB Rider fee

Example 5. The following two tables illustrate the impact of the Return of Premium GLWB Rider fees. The example assumes withdrawals of \$10,000 are requested from the Cycle Investment at the end of the second quarter and at the end of the year. Fees of 1.20% for the Return of Premium GLWB Rider (ROP) are deducted from the Cycle Investment Value quarterly. At the beginning of the Cycle Term, the number of Cycle Investment Units owned by the Contract Owner is 10,000 and the Cycle Investment Unit Value is \$10 for a total Cycle Investment Value of \$100,000. The following two tables demonstrate the impact on Cycle Investment Value from deducting the Return Of Premium GLWB Rider fees:

No ROP	GLWB	Rider	Fee
--------	------	-------	-----

Year	Cycle Investment Value (CIV)	¹⁾ AV Growth	²⁾ Quarterly ROP GLWB Fee Percentage	ROP GLWB Fee	Withdrawals	CIV After Fees and Withdrawals	Units	Unit Value	3) Impact of ROP GLWB Fee
0	\$100,000.00				\$0.00	\$100,000.00	10,000.00	\$10.00	_
Q1 .	\$101,250.00	1.25%		_	\$0.00	\$101,250.00	10,000.00	\$10.13	_
Q2 .	\$102,515.63	1.25%		_	\$10,000.00	\$92,515.63	9,024.54	\$10.25	_
Q3 .	\$93,672.08	1.25%		_	\$0.00	\$93,672.08	9,024.54	\$10.38	_
Q4 .	\$94,842.98	1.25%			\$10,000.00	\$84,842.98	8,073.01	\$10.51	—

Annual ROP GLWB Fee 1.15%

Year	Cycle Investment Value (CIV)	¹⁾ AV Growth	²⁾ Quarterly ROP GLWB Fee Percentage	ROP GLWB Fee	Withdrawals	CIV After Fees and Withdrawals	Units	Unit Value	3) Impact of ROP GLWB Fee
0	\$100,000.00				\$0.00	\$100,000.00	10,000.00	\$10.00	_
Q1 .	\$101,250.00	1.25%	0.2875%	\$291.09	\$0.00	\$100,958.91	9,971.25	\$10.13	-\$291.09
Q2 .	\$102,220.90	1.25%	0.2875%	\$293.89	\$10,000.00	\$91,927.01	8,967.12	\$10.25	-\$588.62
Q3 .	\$93,076.10	1.25%	0.2875%	\$267.59	\$0.00	\$92,808.51	8,941.34	\$10.38	-\$863.57
Q4 .	\$93,968.61	1.25%	0.2875%	\$270.16	\$10,000.00	\$83,698.45	7,964.11	\$10.51	-\$1,144.52

5% growth, applied quarterly is 1.25% 1)

2) 3) As a percentage of Cycle Investment Value

Value with Return Of Premium GLWB Rider fee minus value with no Return Of Premium GLWB Rider fee

Cycle Investment Unit Value

For each Cycle Investment, we will establish the Cycle Investment Unit Value on the Start Date, and calculate the Cycle Investment Unit Value on each Cycle Business Day and on the Cycle End Date. The methods used to calculate the Cycle Investment Unit Value on each Cycle Business Day and on the Cycle End Date are different.

On the Start Date. For each Cycle Investment we establish an Initial Cycle Investment Unit Value at \$10.00 on the Cycle Start Date.

During the Cycle Term. For each Cycle Investment, we determine the Cycle Investment Unit Value as of each Cycle Business Day based on its Fair Value and the Buffer Rate and Floor Rate do not apply.

We have contracted with S&P Global Market Intelligence, an independent analytics firm, to be the Fair Value Calculation Agent to compute the Fair Value of a Cycle Investment Unit.

The Fair Value of a Cycle Investment is determined by the Fair Value Calculation Agent as of the end of each Cycle Business Day. The Fair Value reflects the current value of certain financial instruments. These financial instruments are intended to provide a return equal to the change in Index Value at the end of the Cycle Term subject to the Cap Rate or Participation Rate and subject to the Floor Rate or Buffer Rate. The Fair Value is based on a variety of factors considered by the Fair Value Calculation Agent, which include the change in the Index Value from the Cycle Start Date, volatility of the Index, changes in prevailing interest rates, dividend yield on the index, changes in index level, and the time remaining to the Cycle End Date. The Fair Value is determined using a formula which is based on the economic value of a hypothetical investments at the time of the valuation designed to match Cycle Investment value at the Cycle End Date. The value of each of these financial instruments is determined by the Fair Value Calculation Agent using standard financial industry calculations.

On each Business Day prior to the Cycle's End Date, we will use the Fair Value for each Cycle, as provided by the Fair Value Calculation Agent, to calculate the Fair Value per Cycle Investment Unit outstanding.

See "Fair Value Formulas for Cycle Investments" in the Statement of Additional Information for more detailed information about how the Fair Value Calculation Agent determines the Fair Value. See "Cycle Investment Unit Value Examples" in the Statement of Additional Information for illustrations of how Cycle Investment Unit Values are computed.

Cycle Investments do not involve an investment in any underlying portfolio of securities or financial instruments. Individuals should consult their financial professional about the risks, benefits, and other features of the Cycle Investments, and whether the Cycle Investments are appropriate based upon their financial situations and objectives. Please consider carefully the important information contained in this prospectus before investing in a Cycle Investment.

THE SUBACCOUNT INVESTMENT OPTIONS

The Subaccounts are offered through the Midland National Life Separate Account C (the "Registered Separate Account"). The Registered Separate Account is divided into Subaccounts, each of which invests exclusively in shares of one Investment Portfolio. You may allocate part or all of your premium payment to one or more Subaccounts. Your Accumulation Value in a Subaccount will vary based on the investment experience of the corresponding Investment Portfolio in which the Subaccount invests. There is a risk of loss of the entire amount invested. You bear the risk of any decline in the Accumulation Value of your Contract resulting from the performance of the Investment Options you have chosen.

Information regarding each Investment Portfolio, including (i) its name, (ii) its type, (iii) its investment adviser any any subinvestment adviser, (iv) current expenses, and (v) performance is available in an appendix to this prospectus. See "APPENDIX A – INVESTMENT OPTIONS AVAILABLE UNDER THE CONTRACT". Each Portfolio Company has issued a prospectus that contains more detailed information about the Portfolio Company, which can be amended from time to time and can be found online at https://www.midlandnational.com/oakeliteadv. You can also request this information at no cost by calling 866-747-3421 or sending an email request to SecuritiesPI@sfgmembers.com.

The Investment Portfolios available under the Contracts are not available for purchase directly by the general public, and are not the same as the mutual funds with very similar or nearly identical names that are sold directly to the public. However, the investment objectives and policies of the Investment Portfolios are very similar to the investment objectives and policies of other (publicly available) mutual funds that have very similar or nearly identical names and that are or may be managed by the same investment adviser or manager. Nevertheless, the investment performance and results of any of the Investment Portfolios that are available under the Contracts may be lower, or higher, than the investment results of such other (publicly available) mutual funds. There can be no assurance, and no representation is made, that the investment results of any of the available Investment Portfolios will be comparable to the investment results of any of the available Investment Portfolios will be comparable adviser or manager and the same investment objectives and policies and a very similar or nearly identical name.

The Investment Portfolios offered through the Contract were selected by Midland National based on several criteria, including asset class coverage, the alignment of investment objectives of a portfolio with our hedging strategy, the strength of the manager's reputation and tenure, brand recognition, performance, and the capability and qualification of each sponsoring investment firm. Of course, we also consider whether the portfolio's adviser is an affiliate of ours. We also consider whether the Investment Portfolio, its adviser, sub-adviser, or distributor (or an affiliate) can provide marketing and distribution support for the sale of the policies. Another factor that we consider during the selection process is whether the Investment Portfolio or one of its service providers (e.g., the investment adviser or sub-advisers) will make payments to us or our affiliates in connection with certain administrative, marketing and support services, and the amount of any such payments, or whether affiliates of the Funds can provide marketing and distribution support for sales of the Contracts.

The Investment Portfolios, their managers, or affiliates thereof, may make payments to Midland National and/or its affiliates. These payments may be derived, in whole or in part, from the fees disclosed in the Investment Portfolios' prospectuses including investment advisory fees, 12b-1 fees and other expenses including service fees (if applicable) charged annually by each Investment Portfolio. Owners, through their indirect investment in the Investment Portfolios, bear the costs of these fees. The amount of these payments may be substantial, may vary between Investment Portfolios, and generally are based on a percentage of the assets in the Investment Portfolios that are attributable to the Contracts and other variable insurance products issued by Midland National. These percentages currently range up to 0.50% annually. Midland National may use these payments for any corporate purpose, including payment of expenses that Midland National and/or its affiliates incur in promoting, issuing, marketing, and administering the Contracts, and, that we incur in our role as intermediary, in promoting and marketing the Investment Portfolios. Midland National and its affiliates may profit from these payments.

You are responsible for choosing the Subaccounts, and the amounts allocated to each, that are appropriate for your own individual circumstances and by your investment goals, financial situation, and risk tolerance. Since investment risk is borne by your decisions regarding investment allocations should be carefully considered and periodically re-evaluated.

Other Investment Portfolios (or available classes) may have lower fees and better overall investment performance.

In making your investment selections, we encourage you to thoroughly investigate all of the information regarding the Investment Portfolios that are available to you, including each Investment Portfolio's prospectus, statement of additional information and annual and semi-annual reports. Other sources such as the fund company's website or newspapers and financial and other magazines provide more current information, including information about any regulatory actions or investigations relating to an Investment Portfolio. You should monitor and periodically re-evaluate your allocations to determine if they are still appropriate.

You bear the entire risk for the allocation of your premiums and Accumulation Value among the Investment Options. We are not responsible for any investment or other advice or services that you may receive, including the advice and services provided by your Advisor.

We do not recommend or endorse any particular Investment Portfolio or Portfolios and we do not provide investment advice.

Availability of the Investment Portfolios

We cannot guarantee that each Investment Portfolio will always be available for investment through the Contracts.

We reserve the right, subject to applicable law, to make additions to, deletions from, or substitutions for the shares of an Investment Portfolio that are held in the Subaccount. New or substitute Investment Portfolios may have different fees and expenses and their availability may be limited to certain classes of purchasers. If the shares of an Investment Portfolio are no longer available for investment or if, in our judgment, further investment in any portfolio should become inappropriate, we may redeem the shares of that Investment Portfolio and substitute shares of another Investment Portfolio. We will not substitute any shares without notice and prior approval of the SEC and state insurance authorities, to the extent required by the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or other applicable law.

Your Accumulation Value (Contract Value allocated to the Subaccounts)

Your Accumulation Value is the sum of the amounts you have invested in the Subaccounts. Your Accumulation Value will vary daily to reflect the investment performance of the Investment Portfolios you select, any premium payments, partial withdrawals, surrenders, and charges assessed in connection with the Contract and any optional benefit riders you select. Transaction charges are made on the effective date of the transaction. Charges against the Subaccounts for the Separate Account Annual Expense charge are reflected daily. Charges against the Subaccounts for any optional benefit riders you select at the end of each calendar quarter.

There is no guaranteed minimum Accumulation Value for amounts allocated to the Subaccounts. You bear the investment risk. A Subaccount's performance will cause your Accumulation Value to go up or down each Valuation Period.

Accumulation Units

The amount you invest in each Subaccount is represented by the value of the Accumulation Unit Value times the number of Accumulation Units credited to you. Premium payments allocated to and Accumulation Value transferred to a Subaccount are used to purchase Accumulation Units. Accumulation Units are sold or redeemed when you make a surrender, partial withdrawal or transfer amounts from a Subaccount to a Cycle Investment, and to purchase an Annuity Option or pay the Death Benefit when the Owner dies. If you choose to pay the Advisory Fee from your Contract Value, we will redeem Accumulation Units to effect these deductions. We also redeem units to pay Transaction Expenses. See the "Fee Table" for more information about Transaction Expenses.

We calculate the number of Accumulation Units purchased or redeemed in a Subaccount by dividing the dollar amount of the transaction by the Subaccount's Accumulation Unit Value at the end of the day, if it is a Business Day. If it is not a Business Day, we will use the Accumulation Unit Value on the next Business Day. The number of Accumulation Units credited to you will not vary because of changes in Accumulation Unit Values.

The Unit Values fluctuate with the investment performance of the corresponding portfolios. Accumulation Unit Values reflect investment income, the Investment Portfolios' realized and unrealized capital gains and losses, and the Investment Portfolios' expenses. The Accumulation Unit Values also reflect the daily asset charges we deduct from your Subaccount Accumulation Value currently at an effective annual rate of 0.25% for the Separate Account Annual Expense charge and quarterly asset charges we deduct from your Subaccount Accumulation Value for any optional benefit riders you select. Additional information about the Accumulation Unit Values is contained in the SAI.

Transfers of Accumulation Value

You generally may transfer amounts among the Subaccounts prior to Maturity Date, unless otherwise noted. The minimum amount that may be transferred in a single day is \$100 or 100% of the Contract Value allocated to the Subaccount if less than \$100. The minimum amount may come from or be transferred to more than one Subaccount. Completed transfer requests received at our Customer Service Center in Good Order before the New York Stock Exchange closes for regular trading (usually 3:00 p.m. Central Time) are priced at the Accumulation Unit Value determined at the close of that Valuation Period. If we receive your completed transfer request at the Accumulation Unit Value determined at the close of the transfer request at the Accumulation Unit Value determined at the close of the transfer request at the Accumulation Unit Value determined at the close of the transfer request at the Accumulation Unit Value determined at the close of the transfer request at the Accumulation Unit Value determined at the close of the transfer request at the Accumulation Unit Value determined at the close of the next Valuation Period.

For information regarding telephone or facsimile requests, see "Administrative Procedures". Transfers may be delayed under certain circumstances. See "Payment of Contract Proceeds". We currently do not charge for transfers between Subaccounts, but reserve the right to charge \$15 per transfer for transfers in excess of 15 per Contract year. If assessed, this charge will be deducted from the amount that is transferred prior to the allocation to a different Subaccount. The fee is waived for transfers in connection with active Dollar Cost Averaging or automatic rebalancing programs.

To the extent permitted by applicable law, we reserve the right to eliminate and/or restrict the transfer privilege in any manner we deem appropriate for some, all or specific Owners on a non-discriminatory basis.

This transfer discussion applies only to transfers to and from the Subaccounts.

Transfer Limitations

Frequent, large, programmed or short-term transfers among Subaccounts, such as those associated with "market timing" transactions, can adversely affect the Investment Portfolios and the returns achieved by Owners. In particular, such transfers may dilute the value of the Investment Portfolios' shares, interfere with the efficient management of the Investment Portfolios' investments, and increase brokerage and administrative costs of the Investment Portfolios. In order to try to protect our Owners and the Investment Portfolios

from potentially harmful trading activity, We have implemented certain market timing and excessive trading policies and procedures (the "Market Timing Procedures"). Our Market Timing Procedures are designed to detect and prevent frequent or short-term transfer activity among the Subaccounts that may adversely affect other Owners or Investment Portfolio shareholders.

More specifically, currently our Market Timing Procedures are intended to detect potentially harmful trading or transfer activity by monitoring for excessive trading. We currently define excessive trading as:

- More than one purchase and sale of the same Subaccount within a 60-calendar day period, commonly referred to as a "round trip". Two or more "round trips" involving the same Subaccount within a 60-calendar day period is considered excessive trading.
- Six round-trips involving the same Subaccount within a twelve month period.

We will review transfer requests, daily blotters, and transaction logs in an attempt to identify transfers that exceed these transfer parameters. We will review those transfers (and other transfers in the same Contract) to determine if, in our judgment, the transfers are part of a market timing strategy or otherwise have the potential to be harmful. We will honor and process the second transfer request, but if we believe that the activity is potentially harmful, we will suspend that Contract's transfer privileges and we will not accept another transfer request telephonically or electronically (fax, internet, etc.) for 14 Business Days. We will attempt to inform the Owner (or Advisor) by telephone that their transfers have been deemed potentially harmful to others and that their telephone and electronic transfer privilege is suspended for 14 days. If we do not succeed in reaching the Owner or Advisor by phone, we will send a letter by first class mail to the Owner's address of record.

We reserve the right to apply our market timing procedures to all Subaccounts available under the Contract, including Subaccounts that invest in Investment Portfolios that affirmatively permit frequent and short-term trading in other variable annuity Contracts offered by us or other insurance companies. Therefore, if you allocate premiums or your Accumulation Value to such a Subaccount, you may indirectly bear the effects of market timing or other frequent trading. These Investment Portfolios might not be appropriate for long-term investors. For a complete description of each Investment Portfolios' trading policies, review each Investment Portfolios' prospectus.

In addition to our own market timing procedures, managers of the Investment Portfolios might contact us if they believe or suspect that there is market timing or other potentially harmful trading, and if so we will take appropriate action to protect others. In particular, we may, and we reserve the right to, reverse a potentially harmful transfer. We will inform the relevant Owner and/or Advisor and the Owner will bear any investment loss of such reversal.

To the extent permitted by applicable law, we reserve the right to delay or reject a transfer request at any time that we are unable to purchase or redeem shares of any Investment Portfolios available through Separate Account C, because of any refusal or restriction on purchases or redemptions of Investment Portfolio shares on the part of the Investment Portfolio's managers pursuant to the Investment Portfolio's policies and procedures respecting market timing activities or other potentially abusive transfers. If this occurs, we will attempt to contact you by telephone for further instructions. If we are unable to contact you within 5 Business Days after We have been advised that your transfer request has been refused or delayed by the Investment Portfolio manager, the amount intended for transfer will be retained in or returned to the originating Subaccount. You should also be aware that as required by Rule 22c-2 under the 1940 Act, We have entered into information sharing agreements with each of the fund or trust company whose Investment Portfolios are offered through the Contract. We share your trading information under these agreements as necessary for the fund and trust companies to monitor Investment Portfolio trading and this may include personal Contract information, including names and social security numbers or other tax identification numbers. As a result of this information sharing, a fund or trust company may direct us to restrict a Contract Owner's transactions if the fund or trust company determines that the Contract Owner violated the Investment Portfolio's excessive/frequent trading policy. This could include the fund or trust company directing us to reject any future allocations of premium payments or transfers from a Subaccount or Cycle Investment to any Subaccount investing Investment Portfolio or all Investment Portfolios within the fund family. We are contractually obligated to comply with all restrictions imposed by the Investment Portfolios. You should read the prospectuses of the Investment Portfolios for more details on their ability to refuse or restrict purchases or redemptions of their shares.

In our sole discretion, we may revise our Market Timing Procedures at any time without prior notice as we deem necessary or appropriate to better detect and deter frequent, programmed, large, or short-term transfers that may adversely affect other Owners or Investment Portfolio shareholders, to comply with state or federal regulatory requirements, or to impose additional or alternate restrictions on market timers (such as dollar or percentage limits on transfers). We may change our parameters to monitor for a different number of transfers with different time periods, and we may include other factors such as the size of transfers made by Owners within given periods of time, as well as the number of "round trip" transfers into and out of particular Subaccounts for purposes of applying the parameters used to detect potential market timing and other potentially harmful activity. We may aggregate transfers made in two or more Contracts that We believe are connected (for example, two Contracts with the same Owner, or owned by spouses, or owned by different partnerships, trusts, or corporations that are under common control, etc.).

We do not include transfers made pursuant to the Dollar Cost Averaging program and Investment Portfolio rebalancing program in these limitations. We may vary our market timing procedures from Subaccount to Subaccount, and may be more restrictive with regard to certain Subaccounts than others. We may choose not to apply these detection methods to Subaccounts investing in Investment Portfolios that, in our judgment, would not be particularly attractive to market timers or otherwise susceptible to harm by frequent transfers.

We reserve the right to place restrictions on the methods of implementing transfers for all Owners that we believe might otherwise engage in trading activity that is harmful to others. For example, we might only accept transfers by original "wet" Owner signature

conveyed through the U.S. mail (that is, we can refuse transfer requests submitted by phone, facsimile, e-mail or by any other electronic means, or overnight courier service). We also reserve the right to implement and administer redemption fees imposed by one or more of the Investment Portfolios in the future.

Contract Owners seeking to engage in frequent, programmed, large, or short-term transfer activity may deploy a variety of strategies to avoid detection. Our ability to detect and deter such transfer activity is limited by operational systems and technological limitations. In addition, the terms of the Contract may also limit our ability to restrict or deter harmful transfers. Furthermore, the identification of Owners determined to be engaged in transfer activity that may adversely affect other Owners or Investment Portfolios' shareholders involves judgments that are inherently subjective. Accordingly, despite our best efforts, we cannot guarantee that our Market Timing Procedures will detect every potential market timer. Some market timers may get through our controls undetected and may cause dilution in Accumulation Unit Values to others. We apply our Market Timing Procedures consistently to all Owners without special arrangement, waiver, or exception. We may vary our Market Timing Procedures among our other variable insurance products to account for differences in various factors, such as operational systems and Contract provisions. In addition, because other insurance companies and/or retirement plans may invest in the Investment Portfolios, we cannot guarantee that the Investment Portfolios will not suffer harm from frequent, programmed large, or short-term transfers among Subaccounts of variable policies issued by other insurance companies or among Subaccounts available to retirement plan participants.

PROCESSING SURRENDERS AND PARTIAL WITHDRAWALS - CYCLE INVESTMENT & SUBACCOUNTS

You may withdraw all or part of your Surrender Value by sending a written request to our Customer Service Center in Good Order. The Surrender Value is the Contract Value minus any applicable state premium tax charge. Partial withdrawals must be made in amounts of \$1,000 or more (except for RMDs, systematic withdrawals and Advisory Fee deductions) and cannot reduce your Contract Value to less than \$1,000. If a partial withdrawal results in your Contract Value becoming less than \$1,000, then the entire Surrender Value must be withdrawn. A full surrender request, regardless of the Contract Value, must be submitted in writing and accompanied by your Contract. We reserve the right to change this process at any time. For a full surrender, you must send in your Contract with your surrender request or sign a lost Contract statement.

You may request partial withdrawals up to \$50,000 via telephone, four times a calendar year per Contract, provided prior written authorization has been received by our Customer Service Center. You will be required to verify personally identifiable information at the time you request a partial withdrawal. If there are joint Owners, both Owners must be on the telephone at the time of request.

Telephone authorization will remain in effect until we receive written notification from you to terminate this authorization. If the Contract has joint Owners, both Owners are required to sign the written notification to terminate telephone authorization. We may discontinue this program at any time at our sole discretion. There are some restrictions on telephone partial withdrawals; please call our Customer Service Center with any questions.

We may record telephone calls and use other procedures to verify information and confirm that instructions are genuine. We will not be liable for losses or expenses arising from telephone instructions reasonably believed to be genuine. We reserve the right to restrict, suspend or eliminate the use of, or modify the requirements for making, telephone partial withdrawals at any time.

Any required tax withholding will be deducted from the amount paid. In addition, upon full surrender a state premium tax charge, if applicable, may also be subtracted.

Completed surrender or partial withdrawal requests received in Good Order at our Customer Service Center before the New York Stock Exchange closes for regular trading (usually 3:00 p.m. Central Time) are priced at the Accumulation Unit Value and Cycle Investment Unit Value determined at the close of that regular trading session of the New York Stock Exchange. If we receive your completed surrender or partial withdrawal request in Good Order after the close of a Valuation Period, we will process the surrender request at the unit value determined at the close of the next Valuation Period.

We will generally pay the surrender or partial withdrawal amount within seven days after we receive a properly completed surrender or partial withdrawal request in Good Order. See "Administrative Procedures" later in this prospectus. We may defer payment for more than seven days when:

- trading on the New York Stock Exchange is restricted as defined by the SEC;
- the New York Stock Exchange is closed (other than customary weekend and holiday closing);
- an emergency exists or if for any reason it is not reasonably practicable to dispose of or fairly value the securities held in an Investment Option;
- for such other periods as the SEC may by order permit for the protection of Owners; or
- your premium check has not cleared your bank.

We also may defer payment of any withdrawal proceeds or other payment from a Cycle Investment for up to six months if the insurance regulatory authority of the state in which the Contract is issued approves such deferral. Please note that if payment proceeds are drawn from both the Subaccounts and the Cycle Investments, and payment is deferred under any of the circumstances specified above, it is possible that the payment will be split and you will receive the proceeds from the Subaccount and the proceeds from the Cycle Investments at different times. For example, if you instruct us to deduct a withdrawal from both the Subaccounts and the Cycle Investments, and the insurance regulatory authority in your state has approved the deferral of payments of our General Account

obligations, you may receive the amount deducted from the Subaccounts within seven days and the amount deducted from the Cycle Investments at a later date (up to six months later).

See "Payment of Contract Proceeds".

If we defer payment for 30 or more days, then during the period of deferment, we will pay interest at the rate required by the jurisdiction in which this Contract is delivered.

Unless you specify otherwise, your partial withdrawal will be deducted from all Subaccounts in the same proportion as your Contract Value bears to each Subaccount. If your Accumulation Value is insufficient to fulfill your withdrawal request and your withdrawal request does not specifically instruct us to deduct the withdrawal from the Cycle Investment(s), we will consider the withdrawal request to be not in Good Order and we will not process the withdrawal request.

Withdrawals from Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date is determined by Cycle Investment Unit Value, which is based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. This means, on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, if the Index is performing positively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect lower gains (because of the Fair Value calculation), and, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect higher losses (because the Floor and Buffer Rates do not apply) than on the Cycle End Date. If you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if you waited until the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower.

Surrenders and partial withdrawals will generally have Federal income tax consequences that can include income tax penalties and tax withholding. Surrenders and partial withdrawals may be restricted under certain qualified Contracts. You should consult with and rely on your tax advisor before making a surrender or partial withdrawal. See "FEDERAL TAX STATUS" later in the prospectus.

In a series of recent private letter rulings ("PLRs"), the IRS has recognized that investment advisor fees paid out of Contract Value will, in certain circumstances and subject to conditions, not be treated as taxable distributions from a Non-Qualified Contract, will not be taxable to the Contract Owner, are not reportable to the IRS as distributions from the Contract and are not subject to the 10% tax penalty for Contract Owners who are under age $59^{1}/_{2}$. We have received such a private letter ruling from the IRS and intend to tax report in accordance with that ruling. Accordingly, advisory fees will be treated as non-taxable distributions for reporting purposes by the Company. However, these rulings generally only can be relied upon by the taxpayers who obtained them, and the IRS is not bound by these rulings with respect to your tax treatment under your Contract. Regardless of how we treat the deduction of Advisory Fees for tax reporting purposes, there is a risk that federal and state taxing authorities may determine that these deductions are subject to federal and state income taxes, including a 10% tax penalty if you are under age $59^{1}/_{2}$. In all events, we will administer the Contract to comply with these PLRs and any other federal tax requirements. Please see "Advisory Fees Deducted from Contract Value" and "Federal Tax Status" later in the prospectus for more information.

BENEFITS UNDER THE CONTRACT

The following table summarizes information about the benefits available under the Contract.

Name of Benefit	Purpose	Is Benefit Standard or Optional	Maximum Fee	Brief Description of Restrictions / Limitations
Systematic Withdrawal Program	Allows you to set up an automatic payment	Standard	No Charge	• Each payment must be at least \$100 (unless we consent otherwise).
	from your Subaccount Investments			• Subject to any applicable income taxes, including a possible 10% federal tax penalty if taken before age 59 ¹ / ₂ .
Dollar Cost Averaging ("DCA") Program	Allows you to systematically transfer a set amount each month from a Subaccount to other	Standard	No Charge	• Your Accumulation Value must be at least \$10,000 to initiate the DCA program.
				• The minimum amount that you may transfer monthly is \$100, quarterly is \$300, and semi- annually is \$600 and annually is \$1,200.
	Subaccounts.			• Not available during the Free Look Period. Not available if you elect Portfolio Rebalancing.
				• Transfers only available among Subaccounts – Cycle Investments are not eligible.

Portfolio Rebalancing Program	Allows us to automatically rebalance your Accumulation Value to return to your original percentage allocations.	Standard	No Charge	 Your Accumulation Value must be at least \$10,000 to initiate the Portfolio Rebalancing Program. We will terminate the program if you direct any subsequent reallocation, contribution or partial withdrawal on other than a pro-rata basis. We reserve the right to end the portfolio rebalancing program by sending you and your Advisor one month's notice. You may not elect Portfolio Rebalancing if you have an active DCA program. Not available if you elect DCA. Transfers only available among Subaccounts – Cycle Investments are not eligible
Contract Value Death Benefit	Pays your beneficiary your Contract Value.	Standard	No Charge	 Terminates upon the Maturity Date or change of ownership. If you elect to pay Advisory Fees from your Contract Value, this deduction will reduce the Contract Value, the deduction will reduce the
				Contract Value and therefore the Death Benefit.
Return of Premium Death Benefit Rider	Pays your beneficiary	Optional	0.15% (as an appualized	• Only available at Contract issue.
Death Denent Maci	Contract Value, or (ii)		percentage	• Only available at Issue Ages 0-75 (based on the oldest Owner).
	payments, adjusted		Benefit Base)	• Cannot be voluntarily terminated.
	for Gross Partial Withdrawals.			• Terminates upon the Maturity Date or change of ownership.
				 Cannot be elected with the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit Rider.
				• Withdrawals (including Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider) will reduce the value of the benefit in the same proportion that the Gross Partial Withdrawal reduced the Contract Value, which may be more than the amount withdrawn.
				• If you elect to pay Advisory Fees from your Contract Value, this deduction will reduce the Contract Value but will not reduce the Return of Premium Death Benefit.
Annual Ratchet Death Benefit Rider	Pays your beneficiary	Optional	0.40% (as an	• Only available at Contract issue.
Denent Kidei	Contract Value, or (ii)		percentage Repefit Rase)	• Only available at Issue Ages 0-75 (based on the oldest Owner).
	payments, adjusted		Denent Dase)	Cannot be voluntarily terminated.
	for Gross Partial Withdrawals, with the			• Terminates upon the Maturity Date or change of ownership.
	potential for annual "step ups" on each			Cannot be elected with the Return of Premium Death Benefit Rider
	Contract Anniversary prior to the oldest Owner's age 85.			• The value of the benefit is no longer eligible for step ups on or after the oldest Owner's 85th birthday.
				• Withdrawals (including Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider) will reduce the value of the benefit in the same proportion that the Gross Partial Withdrawal reduced the Contract Value, which may be more than the amount withdrawn.
				• If you elect to pay Advisory Fees from your Contract Value, this deduction will reduce the Contract Value but will not reduce the Return of Premium Death Benefit.

Contract Value GLWB Rider	Guarantees you can withdraw the Lifetime Payment Amount each Contract Year regardless of investment performance, with an initial Benefit Base equal to your Contract Value on the date you first exercise the benefit.	Optional	0.95% (as an annualized percentage Benefit Base)	 Only available at Contract issue. Only available at Issue Ages 50-85 (based on the youngest Owner). Cannot be voluntarily terminated. Cannot be elected with the Return of Premium GLWB Rider. Cannot be elected under Qualified Contracts purchased through an Inherited IRA or under Non-Qualified Stretch Contracts. Additional premium payments are not permitted after the first 6 months following Contract issue. Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals will reduce the Benefit Base in the same proportion that the Gross Partial Withdrawal reduced the Contract Value, which may be more than the amount withdrawn and may terminate the rider
Return of Premium GLWB Rider	Guarantees you can withdraw the Lifetime Payment Amount each Contract Year regardless of investment performance, with an initial Benefit Base equal to the greater of (i) your Contract Value on the date you first exercise the benefit or (ii) your total premium payments, adjusted for Gross Partial Withdrawals, as of the date you first exercise the benefit.	Optional	1.15% (as an annualized percentage Benefit Base)	 Only available at Contract issue. Only available at Issue Ages 50-85 (based on the youngest Owner). Cannot be voluntarily terminated. Cannot be elected with the Contract Value GLWB Rider. Cannot be elected under Qualified Contracts purchased through an Inherited IRA or under Non-Qualified Stretch Contracts. Additional premium payments are not permitted after the first 6 months following Contract issue. Any withdrawal prior to beginning Lifetime Payments will reduce the initial Benefit Base in the same proportion that the Gross Partial Withdrawal reduced the Contract Value, which may be more than the amount withdrawn. Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals will reduce the Gross Partial Withdrawal reduced the contract Value, the Gross Partial Withdrawal reduced the reduced the Contract Value, which may be more than the amount withdrawn.
Health Activated Income Multiplier	Increases the Lifetime Payment Amount under one of the GLWB Riders in a particular Contract Year if one of the Covered Person(s) is unable to perform certain daily living activities due to a health condition.	Optional	No Charge	 Only available under one of the GLWB Riders. Only available after the 2nd Contract Anniversary. May be elected a maximum of five Contract Years. Health condition eligibility requirements must be met.

Systematic Withdrawals

The systematic withdrawal feature allows you to have a portion of your Contract Value withdrawn automatically. For example, you may elect to have \$500 withdrawn from your Contract Value automatically every month.

These withdrawals occur only: (1) while the Owner is living, (2) before the Maturity Date, and (3) after the Free Look Period. You may elect this option by sending a properly completed service form to our Customer Service Center. You may designate the systematic withdrawal amount and the frequency of the systematic withdrawals, which may be monthly, quarterly, semi-annually or annually. See your Contract for details on systematic withdrawal options and when each begins.

Unless we receive instructions from you, we will deduct all Systematic Withdrawals (except Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider) pro-rata from the Subaccounts until your Accumulation Value is exhausted, then from the Cycle Investments on a pro-rata basis, then from the Default Account. You may instruct us to take Systematic Withdrawals from all Investment Options – all Investment Portfolios Available Under the Contract Investment Options and all Cycle Investments – on a pro-rata basis. If you take a Systematic Withdrawal from a Cycle Investment during the Cycle Term prior to the Cycle End Date, you will receive the Cycle Investment Unit Value times the number of Cycle Investment Units withdrawn and the Floor Rate or Buffer Rate will not apply.

Systematic Withdrawals after you elect to begin Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider are taken pro-rata across all investments, including the Cycle Investments and the Default Account, in the same proportion that each investment option bears to the total Contract Value. An Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal will reduce the Benefit Base of your GLWB Rider by the same proportion that the Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal reduced the Contract Value, which may be more, even significantly more, than the amount withdrawn and may terminate the rider. If you take an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal on any day prior to the Cycle End Date of your Cycle Investment, you could significantly reduce or eliminate your Benefit Base. This is because prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Value is based on the Fair Value, which will fluctuate during the Cycle Term. See "Valuation of a Cycle Investment" for more information about the Fair Value calculation. See "Guaranteed Living Withdrawal Benefits" for more information about Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals.

The Cycle Investment Unit Value prior to the Cycle End Date is based on the Fair Value of the Cycle.

Prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value will be based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. This means, on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, if the Index is performing positively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect lower gains (because of the Fair Value calculation), and, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect higher losses (because the Floor and Buffer Rates do not apply) than on the Cycle End Date. If you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if you take a withdrawal, including Systematic Withdrawals, prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if you waited until the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower. You should consult with a financial professional before taking Systematic Withdrawals from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date.

If the New York Stock Exchange is closed for regular trading on the day when the withdrawal is to be made, then we will process your withdrawal at the Accumulation Unit Value and/or Cycle Investment Unit Value determined at the close of the next Valuation Period.

You can stop or modify the systematic withdrawals by sending us a Written Notice. A proper Written Notice must include the consent of any effective assignee or irrevocable Beneficiary, if applicable.

Each systematic withdrawal must be at least \$100. Each request for withdrawal amounts of less than \$100 will be reviewed on a caseby-case basis. We reserve the right to change the frequency of payments or discontinue payments if the payment is less than \$100. Upon payment, we reduce your Contract Value by an amount equal to the payment proceeds. In no event will the payment of a systematic withdrawal exceed the Surrender Value. The Contract will automatically terminate if a systematic withdrawal causes the Contract's Surrender Value to equal zero.

To the extent, if any, that there is gain in the Contract, systematic withdrawals generally are included in the Owner's gross income for tax purposes (as ordinary income) in the year in which the withdrawal occurs, and may be subject to a penalty tax of 10% before age $59^{1}/_{2}$. Additional terms and conditions for the systematic withdrawal program are set forth in your Contract and in the application for the program.

Dollar Cost Averaging (DCA)

The Dollar Cost Averaging (DCA) program enables you to make monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual transfers of a predetermined dollar amount from the DCA source account into one or more of the Subaccounts.

For example, you can instruct us to transfer \$1,000 on the first of each month to an Investment Portfolio that you have selected. Hypothetically, the \$1,000 allocation may have bought 50 Accumulation Units of the Investment Portfolio in January, 65 Accumulation Units in February, and 45 Accumulation Units in March. In these three months, you allocated \$3,000 to the Investment Portfolio which has resulted in 160 Accumulation Units. The value of each Accumulation Unit is an average of the three values used at the time of allocation. If you had allocated the entire \$3,000 at one time, the total value might be higher or lower.

You may elect the DCA program on a monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual basis. Your Accumulation Value must be at least \$10,000 to initiate the DCA program. The minimum amount that you may transfer monthly using DCA is \$100, quarterly is \$300, semi-annually is \$600 and annually is \$1,200.

You may select any Subaccount as the source account. The source account must have a minimum beginning balance of \$1,200. The DCA program may reduce the impact of market fluctuations by allocating Accumulation Value to Subaccounts over time. The DCA program does not ensure a profit nor protect against a loss in declining markets.

You may elect only one DCA program at any time. You must complete the proper request form and send it (in Good Order) to our Customer Service Center. The minimum amount of time at set-up is 3 months. There is no maximum set-up time limit. We reserve

the right to limit or change the minimum and maximum timeframes for the DCA program. You may qualify to begin a DCA program by paying a premium with the DCA request form, allocating premiums, or transferring amounts to the DCA source account. The DCA request form will specify:

- the DCA source Subaccount from which transfers will be made,
- the total monthly amount to be transferred to the other Subaccount(s), and
- how that monthly amount is to be allocated among the Subaccounts.

Once you elect DCA, you may allocate additional premium payments to the DCA source Subaccount by sending them in with a DCA request form or written instructions. Any premium payments received while the DCA program is in effect will be allocated using the allocation percentages from the DCA request form, unless you specify otherwise. All amounts in the DCA source Subaccount will be available for transfer under the DCA program.

If requested at issue, the DCA will start on the same day of the month as the Issue Date in the second Contract Month. If requested after issue, it will start on the same day of the month as the Issue Date during Contract Month after the request is received. **The DCA is not available until the end of the Free Look Period.**

You may stop the DCA program at any time by sending us Written Notice. The DCA program will automatically terminate when the source Subaccount does not have sufficient Accumulation Value to fund the DCA transfers. We reserve the right to end the DCA program by sending you and your Advisor one month's notice. You may not elect a DCA program together with a Portfolio Rebalancing program.

We do not charge any specific fees to participate in a DCA program.

The DCA applies only to the Subaccounts. It is not available for the Cycle Investment Options.

If you are enrolled in a dollar cost averaging, automatic rebalancing or a comparable program when an underlying Investment Portfolio merger, substitution or liquidation takes place, unless otherwise noted in a communication from us, your Accumulation Value invested in such Subaccounts will be transferred automatically to the designated surviving Subaccount, in the case of mergers; the replacement Subaccount, in the case of substitutions; and in the Default Account in the case of liquidations. Your DCA or automatic rebalancing enrollment instructions will be automatically updated to reflect the surviving Subaccount, the replacement

Subaccount or the Default Account, as the case may be, for any continued and future transfers or premium payments.

Portfolio Rebalancing

If you elect the Portfolio Rebalancing program, we will automatically reset your Accumulation Value allocated to each Subaccount to percentage levels that you request. If you elect this option, we will transfer amounts among the Subaccounts necessary to "rebalance" the Accumulation Value to your specified percentages. You may direct us to perform the rebalancing on a quarterly, semi-annual, or annual basis.

For example, assume that you want your initial premium payment split between two Investment Portfolios. You want 40% in Investment Portfolio A and 60% in Investment Portfolio B. Hypothetically, over the next $2^{1/2}$ months "A" does very well while "B" performs poorly. At the end of the first quarter, "A" now represents 50% of your holdings because of its increase in value. If you have chosen to have your holdings rebalanced quarterly, on the first day of the next quarter, we will sell some of your units in "A" to bring its value back to 40% and use the money to buy more units in "B" to increase those holdings to 60%.

Portfolio rebalancing will occur on the same day of the month as the Issue Date. If the rebalance date does not fall on a Business Day, the rebalancing will be processed on the next Business Day. If you do not select a rebalancing period, we will rebalance your Subaccounts on a quarterly basis. Rebalancing will be based on your most recent investment directions.

Portfolio rebalancing may result in transferring amounts from a Subaccount earning a relatively high return to one earning a relatively low return. Your Accumulation Value must be at least \$10,000 to initiate a portfolio rebalancing program. Contact us at our Customer Service Center to elect the portfolio rebalancing program.

Portfolio rebalancing will remain in effect until we receive your written termination request. We will also terminate the program if you direct any subsequent reallocation, contribution or partial withdrawal on other than a pro-rata basis. We reserve the right to end the portfolio rebalancing program by sending you and your Advisor one month's notice. You may not elect portfolio rebalancing if you have an active DCA program.

There is no charge for portfolio rebalancing transfers, and rebalancing transfers do not count towards your transfer limits.

Portfolio rebalancing applies only to the Subaccounts. It is not available or the Cycle Investment options.

If you are enrolled in a dollar cost averaging, automatic rebalancing or a comparable program when an underlying Investment Portfolio merger, substitution or liquidation takes place, unless otherwise noted in a communication from us, your Accumulation Value invested in such Subaccounts will be transferred automatically to the designated surviving Subaccount, in the case of mergers; the replacement Subaccount, in the case of substitutions; and in the Default Account in the case of liquidations. Your DCA or automatic rebalancing enrollment instructions will be automatically updated to reflect the surviving Subaccount, the replacement Subaccount or the Default Account, as the case may be, for any continued and future transfers or premium payments.

Death Benefits

If an Owner dies before the Maturity Date and while the Contract is still in force, we will pay a Death Benefit to your designated Beneficiary. The Death Benefit is payable on receipt in Good Order (at our Customer Service Center) of satisfactory proof of the Owner's death, an election of how the Death Benefit is to be paid, and any other required documents or forms. The amount of the Death Benefit is based on which death benefit option is elected and determined as of the Business Day that our Customer Service Center receives the required documentation in Good Order.

The Contract offers a standard Death Benefit, the Contract Value Death Benefit, at no additional charge. When you purchase the Contract, you may select either the optional Return of Premium Death Benefit or the optional Annual Ratchet Death Benefit for an additional charge if the oldest Owner is younger than Issue Age 76.

Contract Value Death Benefit. The Contract Value Death Benefit will equal the Contract Value as of the Business Day that the Death Benefit is determined. For example, if your Contract Value is \$100,000 on the date of death, September 1st, and declines to \$90,000 on September 10th, which is the date that our Customer Service Center receives the required documentation in good order, your Death Benefit will equal \$90,000. If you elect to pay Advisory Fees from your Contract Value, this deduction will reduce the Contract Value and therefore the Contract Value Death Benefit on a dollar-for- dollar basis. You should discuss with your Advisor the impact of deducting Advisory Fees from your Contract Value prior to making an election.

For example, assume you purchase the Contract with an initial premium payment of \$100,000, you invest all of your money into the Subaccounts and your investment earns a 5% return each year after the deduction of the Separate Account Annual Expense charge and Annual Portfolio Expenses. The following table illustrates your Contract Value and Contract Value Death Benefit at the end of each Contract Year based on these assumptions:

Contract Year	Contract Value / Death Benefit if you elect <i>not</i> to deduct Advisory Fees from Contract Value	Contract Value / Death Benefit if you elect to deduct 1.5% annual Advisory Fees from Contract Value
1	\$105,000.00	\$103,425.00
2	\$110,250.00	\$106,967.31
3	\$115,762.50	\$110,630.94
4	\$121,550.63	\$114,420.05
5	\$127,628.16	\$118,338.93
6	\$134,009.56	\$122,392.04
7	\$140,710.04	\$126,583.97
8	\$147,745.54	\$130,919.47
9	\$155,132.82	\$135,403.46
10	\$162,889.46	\$140,041.03

Any death benefit payment or optional benefit charge deduction attributable to the Cycle Investments and paid prior to the Cycle End Date will be based on the Cycle Investment Unit Value, which is based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. This means if the Index is performing positively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect lower gains (because of the Fair Value calculation), and, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect higher losses (because the Floor and Buffer Rates do not apply) than on the Cycle End Date.

Return of Premium Death Benefit. The Return of Premium Death Benefit will equal the greater of (i) the Contract Value, or (ii) the sum of your initial premium payment plus any subsequent premium payments, less an adjustment for each Gross Partial Withdrawal. Any Advisory Fees deductions from your Contract Value do not reduce the value of the Return of Premium Death Benefit. Withdrawals, including Lifetime Payments under one of the GLWB Riders, will reduce the value of the Return of Premium Death Benefit. Death Benefit, and this reduction may be more, even significantly more, than the amount withdrawn.

The adjustment for Gross Partial Withdrawals will reduce the Death Benefit by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Contract Value, calculated as follows:

Death Benefit after Gross Partial Withdrawal = Death Benefit before Gross Partial Withdrawal * (1 – [Gross Partial Withdrawal Amount] / [Contract Value before Gross Partial Withdrawal])

If the value of the Return of Premium Death Benefit is greater than the Contract Value at the time of the Gross Partial Withdrawal, then the Death Benefit will be reduced by an amount greater than the amount withdrawn.

For example, assume you purchase the Contract with an initial premium payment of \$100,000 and make \$10,000 in additional premium payments. If you requested a \$15,000 withdrawal at a time when the Contract Value is \$95,000, the Return of Premium Death Benefit would be reduced from \$110,000 to \$92,631.58 or a reduction of the Return of Premium Death Benefit by \$17,368.42, which is more than the \$15,000 amount withdrawn. Alternatively, if you requested a \$15,000 withdrawal at a time when the Contract Value is \$130,000, the Return of Premium Death Benefit would be reduced from \$110,000 to \$97,307.69 or a reduction of the Return of Premium Death Benefit by \$12,692.31, which is less than the \$15,000 amount withdrawn. In each case, if the Contract Value is greater than the Return of Premium Death Benefit on the date the Death Benefit is determined, your Death Benefit will equal the Contract Value (as described in "Contract Value Death Benefit" above).

We assess a charge for the Return of Premium Death Benefit at the end of each calendar quarter at an annual rate of 0.15% of the Benefit Base. This charge is deducted pro-rata across all investments, including the Cycle Investments and the Default Account. The charge will continue to be deducted for the life of the Contract, and you cannot voluntarily terminate the Return of Premium Death Benefit without surrendering or annuitizing your Contract. It is possible that the Return of Premium Death Benefit will be no greater than the Contract Value Death Benefit. There is a risk that any financial return provided by the Return of Premium Death Benefit will ultimately be less than the fees you paid for the benefit.

Charges deducted from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date are based on the Fair Value calculation. Prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value will be based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. If a deduction is taken to pay charges on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if a deduction is taken to pay charges on any day prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if the deduction was taken on the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower. These charge deductions will also reduce your Contract Value.

Annual Ratchet Death Benefit. The Annual Ratchet Death Benefit will equal the greater of (i) the Contract Value, or (ii) the sum of your initial premium payment plus any subsequent premium payments, less an adjustment for each Gross Partial Withdrawal, with the potential for annual "step ups" on each eligible Contract Anniversary. Any Advisory Fees from your Contract Value do not reduce the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit. Withdrawals, including Lifetime Payments under one of the GLWB Riders, will reduce the value of the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit, and this reduction may be more, even significantly more, than the amount withdrawn.

The adjustment for withdrawals will reduce the Death Benefit by the same proportion that the Gross Partial Withdrawal reduced the Contract Value, calculated as follows:

Death Benefit after Gross Partial Withdrawal = Death Benefit before Gross Partial Withdrawal * (1 – [Gross Partial Withdrawal Amount] / [Contract Value before Gross Partial Withdrawal])

If the value of the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit is greater than the Contract Value at the time of the Gross Partial Withdrawal, then the Death Benefit will be reduced by an amount greater than the amount withdrawn.

On each Contract Anniversary before the oldest Owner's 85th birthday, we compare the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit to your Contract Value. If your Contract Value is greater, the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit will be stepped-up to equal the Contract Value on that Contract Anniversary. Afterwards, the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit will continue to be increased by subsequent premium payments and decreased by withdrawals as described above. Withdrawals (including Lifetime Payments under one of the GLWB Riders) and deductions (including Advisory Fee deductions and deductions for optional benefit charges) will reduce the Contract Value dollar-for-dollar, which reduces the likelihood of increasing the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit through a step up on the Contract Anniversary.

On and after the oldest Owner's 85th birthday, the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit is no longer eligible to be stepped-up, but it will continue to be adjusted for subsequent premium payments and withdrawals.

For example:

- Assume you purchase the Contract with an initial premium payment of \$100,000 at Issue Age 75.
- During the first Contract Year, you make a \$10,000 additional premium payment. At the time of the premium payment, your Annual Ratchet Death Benefit is \$110,000, which is the sum of your purchase payments.
- At the end of the first Contract Year, your Contract Value has declined to \$95,000 due to poor investment performance. Because your Contract Value is lower than the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit, the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit does not step up on this Contract Anniversary. Your Annual Ratchet Death Benefit remains \$110,000.
- During the second Contract Year, you request a \$15,000 withdrawal at a time when the Contract Value is \$95,000. At the time of the withdrawal, the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit is reduced from \$110,000 to \$92,631.58, or a reduction of the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit by \$17,368.42, which is more than the \$15,000 amount withdrawn. Alternatively, if you requested a \$15,000 withdrawal at a time when the Contract Value was \$130,000, the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit would be reduced from \$110,000 to \$97,307.69, or a reduction of the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit by \$12,692.31, which is less than the \$15,000 amount withdrawn.

- At the end of the second Contract Year, your Contract Value has increased to \$100,000 due to positive investment performance. Because your Contract Value is higher than the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit, the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit is stepped up to \$100,000 on this Contract Anniversary.
- Your Annual Ratchet Death Benefit will continue to be increased by additional premium payments at the time of the premium payment, decreased by withdrawals at the time of the withdrawal, and may be stepped up on each Contract Anniversary until the date you turn 85 years old. Each Contract Anniversary on or after your 85th birthday, your Annual Ratchet Death Benefit will no longer be stepped up, even if the Contract Value is greater than the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit.
- In all cases, if the Contract Value is greater than the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit on the date the Death Benefit is determined, your Death Benefit will equal the Contract Value (as described in "Contract Value Death Benefit" above).

We assess a charge for the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit at the end of each calendar quarter at an annual rate of 0.40% of the Benefit Base. This charge is deducted pro-rata across all investments, including the Cycle Investments and the Default Account. The charge will continue to be deducted for the life of the Contract, and you cannot voluntarily terminate the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit without surrendering or annuitizing your Contract. It is possible that the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit will be no greater than the Contract Value Death Benefit. There is a risk that any financial return provided by the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit will ultimately be less than the fees you paid for the benefit.

Charges deducted from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date are based on the Fair Value calculation. Prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value will be based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. If a deduction is taken to pay charges on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if a deduction is taken to pay charges on any day prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if the deduction was taken on the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower. These charge deductions will also reduce your Contract Value.

Designation of your Beneficiary. You name one or more Beneficiaries in your Contract application. A Beneficiary is revocable unless otherwise stated in the Beneficiary designation. You may change a revocable Beneficiary during your lifetime. We must receive a Written Notice (signed and dated) informing us of the change. Upon receipt and acceptance at our Customer Service Center, a change takes effect as of the date that the Written Notice is recorded by us. We will not be liable for any payment made before we receive and accept the Written Notice to change your Beneficiary.

If no primary Beneficiary is living when the Owner dies, the Death Benefit will be paid to the contingent Beneficiary, if any. If no Beneficiary is living when the Owner dies, then we will pay the Death Benefit to the Owner's estate. If the sole Beneficiary is not the spouse, the surviving joint Owner will be the designated primary Beneficiary and any other Beneficiaries on record will be treated as contingent Beneficiaries.

For non-qualified Contracts, if an Owner dies prior to the Maturity Date, then the Death Benefit must be paid within 5 years of the Owner's death (other than amounts payable to, or for the benefit of, the surviving spouse of the Owner). For joint Owners the Death Benefit is paid upon the first death.

If you name your spouse as the Beneficiary and the spouse (1) was married to the deceased Owner, as recognized by Federal law, as of the date of the deceased Owner's death, and (2) is the sole primary Beneficiary, your surviving spouse may choose to continue the Contract, which will then be treated as his/her own Contract. If your spouse chooses to continue the Contract under spousal continuance, by current company practice they will receive the Death Benefit. The increase in Contract Value from the Death Benefit payout will be allocated among Investment Options in accordance with the current allocations for the Contract and may be, under certain circumstances, considered earnings. If you are currently invested in Cycle Investments, the increase in Contract Value from the Death Benefit payout will be allocated to the Default Account in the proportionate amount of Cycle Investments to the Contract Value.

Those allocations will remain in the Default Account until you provide us with alternative allocation instructions. If you selected one of the optional Death Benefit riders when you purchased your Contract and your spouse chooses to continue the Contract under spousal continuance, the optional Death Benefit rider will terminate and the charge for the rider will no longer be deducted under the continued Contract. If the applicable Death Benefit is greater than the Contract Value, the Contract Value under the continued Contract will be increased to match the Death Benefit before the rider terminates. The Death Benefit under the contract will be the standard Contract Value Death Benefit. Spousal continuance is not permitted under Non-Qualified Stretch Contracts.

If you selected one of the optional GLWB Riders when you purchased your Contract and your spouse chooses to continue the Contract under spousal continuance:

- If Lifetime Payments have not yet begun, the GLWB Rider will not terminate and the charge for the rider will continue to be deducted under the continued Contract. The Lifetime Payment Amount will be determined based on your spouse's age at the time he or she elects to begin Lifetime Payments, and is eligible for any remaining Benefit Base step ups.
- If Lifetime Payments have begun for an individual Covered Person, the GLWB Rider will terminate and the charge for the rider will no longer be deducted under the continued Contract. No further Lifetime Payments will be made.

• If Lifetime Payments have begun for joint Covered Lives, the GLWB Rider will not terminate and the charge for the rider will continue to be deducted under the continued Contract. The Lifetime Payment Amount at the time of spousal continuance will continue to be paid to your spouse in accordance with the terms of the GLWB Rider.

If the sole Beneficiary is not the spouse, the surviving joint Owner, if any, will be the designated primary Beneficiary and any other Beneficiaries on record will be treated as contingent Beneficiaries.

Under a non-qualified Contract other than a Non-Qualified Stretch Contract, when a Death Benefit is paid on the death of an Owner or a joint Owner and a payment option is selected, the payment option must be an annuity for the life of the Payee or for a period extending no longer than the Payee's life expectancy, and payments must begin within one year of the date of death. In certain circumstances, required minimum distribution rules for qualified Contracts may require the Death Benefit to be paid out within ten years. For Non-Qualified Stretch Contracts, the Death Benefit must be paid out no later than the end of the Owner's stretch period in accordance with Section 72(s) of the Internal Revenue Code. See "Federal Tax Status" for more information later in this prospectus.

In the case of multiple primary Beneficiaries, the amount received by each primary Beneficiary will be their proportional share of the Death Benefit as of each primary Beneficiary's required documentation is in Good Order. If no optional Death Benefit rider is elected, the Death Benefit is the Contract Value at the time we receive the required documentation in Good Order for each primary Beneficiary. If the Return of Premium Death Benefit Rider is elected, the Death Benefit is the greater of the Contract Value and total premium payments, adjusted for withdrawals, determined at the time the first primary Beneficiary claim is in Good Order. Once the greater of the Contract Value and total premium payments, adjusted for withdrawals, digusted for withdrawals, is determined, each remaining primary Beneficiary's proportion of the Death Benefit is subject to the performance of the elected Investment Options until required documentation for their portion of the Death Benefit is in Good Order. If the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit, determined at the time the first primary Beneficiary s, adjusted for withdrawals, and the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit, determined at the time the first primary Beneficiary claim is in Good Order. Once the greater of the Contract Value, total premium payments, adjusted for withdrawals, and the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit, determined at the time the first primary Beneficiary claim is in Good Order. Once the greater of the Contract Value, total premium payments, adjusted for withdrawals, and the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit, s determined, each remaining primary Beneficiary's proportion of the Death Beneficiary claim is in Good Order. Once the greater of the Contract Value, total premium payments, adjusted for withdrawals, and the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit, is determined, each remaining primary Beneficiary's proportion of the Death Benefit is subject to the performance of the elected Investment Options until required documentation for their portion of the Death Benefit is in Good Order.

After the date on which we receive an original death certificate or a copy of the death certificate via facsimile, the Beneficiary has the option of transferring the Accumulation Value to the short term Investment Option(s) before the date on which the first complete Death Benefit claim is received. If there are multiple Beneficiaries then they all must join in such a transfer request or the Company will not be able to honor the request.

If the Owner dies on or after income payments have begun, then any remaining amounts, must be paid at least as rapidly as the benefits were being paid at the time of the Owner's death. Other rules relating to distributions at death apply to Qualified Contracts.

If any Owner is a non-natural person, the Death Benefit is paid upon the death of the Annuitant.

If joint Owners die within 24 hours of one another, they are considered to have died simultaneously and the eldest is presumed to have died first.

Naming different persons as Owner and Annuitant can affect whether the Death Benefit is payable, the amount of the benefit, and who will receive it. Use care when naming Owners, Annuitants, and Beneficiaries, and consult your Advisor if you have questions. State premium taxes may be deducted from the Death Benefit proceeds.

Every state has unclaimed property laws which generally declare annuity contracts to be abandoned after a period of inactivity of 3 to 5 years from the Contract's Maturity Date or date the Death Benefit is due and payable. For example, if the payment of a Death Benefit has been triggered, but, if after a thorough search, we are still unable to locate the Beneficiary of the Death Benefit, or the Beneficiary does not come forward to claim the Death Benefit in a timely manner, the Death Benefit will be paid to the abandoned property division or unclaimed property office of the state in which the Beneficiary or the Owner last resided, as shown on our books and records, or to our state of domicile. This "escheatment" is revocable, however, and the state is obligated to pay the Death Benefit (without interest) if your Beneficiary steps forward to claim the Death Benefit with the proper documentation. To prevent such escheatment, it is important that you update your Beneficiary designations, including full names and complete addresses, if and as they change. Such updates should be communicated in writing, by telephone, or other approved electronic means at our Customer Service Center.

Guaranteed Living Withdrawal Benefits

When you purchase the Contract, you may select one of the two optional GLWB Riders for an additional charge if the youngest Owner is at least Issue Age 50 and younger than Issue Age 86. The GLWB Riders guarantee you can withdraw the Lifetime Payment Amount each Contract Year regardless of investment performance. The Lifetime Payment Amount is a percentage (the "Lifetime Payment Percentage") of the value of the GLWB (the "Benefit Base"), calculated as described below. The GLWB Riders are not available under Qualified Contracts purchased through an Inherited IRA or under Non-Qualified Stretch Contracts.

Lifetime Payments withdrawn while the Contract Value is greater than zero will reduce the Contract Value and are withdrawals of your money. We do not make Lifetime Payments to you out of our general account assets unless your Contract Value is reduced to zero for any reason other than a Gross Partial Withdrawal that exceeds the Lifetime Payment Amount (an "Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal"). It is possible that this will never occur and we will never make Lifetime Payment As to

you from our assets. Any amounts paid by us under a GLWB Rider in excess of the Contract Value are subject to our financial strength and claims-paying ability.

Prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value will be based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. This means, on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, if the Index is performing positively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect lower gains (because of the Fair Value calculation), and, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect higher losses (because the Floor and Buffer Rates do not apply) than on the Cycle End Date. If you take a withdrawal, including withdrawals of your Lifetime Payment Amount, on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if a withdrawal is taken on any day prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if you waited until the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower.

Lifetime Payments under the GLWB Riders withdrawn from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date are subject to the Fair Value calculation and proportional reduction in Cycle Investment Units described above. A GLWB Rider may not be appropriate for you if you intend or need to (i) take Gross Partial Withdrawals before you elect to exercise your GLWB Rider benefits, which may reduce your initial Benefit Base when you choose to begin Lifetime Payments under the rider; or (ii) take Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals after you elect to exercise your GLWB Rider benefits, which will reduce your Benefit Base. A GLWB Rider could be appropriate if you want to have the contingent guarantee in place to continue to receive lifetime income if your Contract Value is reduced to zero from poor investment performance and/or withdrawals that are not Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals. It is possible that this will never occur and we will never make Lifetime Payments to you from our assets. You should discuss with your Advisor before electing a GLWB Rider.

If you elect a GLWB Rider, additional premium payments are only permitted during the first 6 months after Contract issue. This will limit your ability to increase your Contract Value, the value of the GLWB Rider, and the value of the Death Benefit (including the optional Return of Premium Death Benefit or Annual Ratchet Death Benefit) by making additional premium payments.

There are two GLWB Riders available under the Contract: the Contract Value GLWB Rider and the Return of Premium GLWB Rider. Your initial Benefit Base when you begin Lifetime Payments will differ depending on which of these riders you elected when you purchased the Contract (See "Calculating the Benefit Base" below). Each of the GLWB Riders has its own charge that we assess for the life of your Contract (See "GLWB Rider Charge" below). If you are considering purchasing a GLWB Rider, you should carefully compare the features and charges under the GLWB Riders to determine which GLWB Rider is right for you.

Beginning your Lifetime Payments. You may elect to exercise your GLWB Rider and begin Lifetime Payments by submitting a written request to our Customer Service Center. The initial Benefit Base will be established on the date we receive your request in Good Order (the "GLWB Exercise Date"). You may elect Lifetime Payments for a single Covered Person or jointly for you and your spouse. This election cannot be changed. If you elect joint coverage, the Lifetime Payment Percentage will be based on the age of the younger Covered Person and the Lifetime Payment Percentage will be less than the Lifetime Payment Percentage for a single Covered Person.

Withdrawals after you elect to begin Lifetime Payments are taken pro-rata across all investments, including the Cycle Investments and the Default Account, in the same proportion that each investment option bears to the total Contract Value. An Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal will reduce the Benefit Base of your GLWB Rider by the same proportion that the Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal reduced the Contract Value, which may be more, even significantly more, than the amount withdrawn and may terminate the rider. **If you take an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal on any day prior to the Cycle End Date of your Cycle Investments, you could significantly reduce or eliminate your Benefit Base.** This is because prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Value is based on the Fair Value, which will fluctuate during the Cycle Term. See "Valuation of a Cycle Investment" for more information about the Fair Value calculation. See "Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals" below for more information about Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals.

Lifetime Payments may be subject to state and federal income taxes, including a tax penalty before age 59 1/2.

You should carefully consider when to begin Lifetime Payments. There is a risk that you will not begin taking withdrawals under the GLWB Rider at the most financially beneficial time for you. If you begin taking withdrawals too soon or delay taking withdrawals for too long, you may limit the value of the GLWB Rider. Taking withdrawals early will increase the time in which you will be able to receive Lifetime Payments, but will reduce the Lifetime Payment Amount because the initial Benefit Base is established and the Lifetime Payment Percentage is locked in on the GLWB Exercise Date. Taking withdrawals later will increase the Lifetime Payment Amount because the Lifetime Payment percentage increases the longer you hold the Contract before beginning Lifetime Payments, but delaying taking withdrawals will shorten the time in which you will be able to receive Lifetime Payments.

Determining the Lifetime Payment Amount. The Lifetime Payment Amount is the maximum amount you may withdraw each Contract Year without reducing your Benefit Base. If you elect to pay Advisory Fees from your Contract Value, this deduction will not count towards your Lifetime Payment Amount for the Contract Year.

On the GLWB Exercise Date, your Lifetime Payment Amount is determined by multiplying your initial Benefit Base by the applicable Lifetime Payment Percentage is based on your Issue Age and the increase in your Attained Age since you purchased your Contract. Once you elect to begin Lifetime Payments, your Lifetime Payment Percentage will not change for the life of the Contract. The Lifetime Payment Percentage is set forth in the Rate Sheet Supplement that was in effect

when we received your application and initial premium payment for the Contract in Good Order. See "Rate Sheet Supplement Information."

On each Contract Anniversary after the GLWB Exercise Date, we will calculate the Lifetime Payment Amount for the next Contract Year by multiplying your Benefit Base on that Contract Anniversary (calculated as described below) by your Lifetime Payment Percentage. The Lifetime Payment Amount for a Contract Year is not cumulative; any portion of your Lifetime Payment Amount that you do not withdraw is not added to the next Contract Year's Lifetime Payment Amount.

For Qualified Contracts, if your RMD is greater than your Lifetime Payment Amount, the Lifetime Payment Amount will be increased to the RMD.

Under certain circumstances, we may increase your Lifetime Payment Amount for a particular Contract Year. See "Health Activated Income Multiplier."

Calculating the Benefit Base. The initial Benefit Base is established on the GLWB Exercise Date. Your initial Benefit Base will differ depending on which GLWB Rider you elected when you purchased the Contract.

Contract Value GLWB Benefit Base. The initial Benefit Base will equal the Contract Value on the GLWB Exercise Date.

Your initial Benefit Base under the Contract Value GLWB could be less than the total premium payments you have made, even if you have not taken any Gross Partial Withdrawals, as a result of poor investment performance, charges deducted and Advisory Fees paid from your Contract Value from the Issue Date to the GLWB Exercise Date.

On and after the GLWB Exercise Date, the Benefit Base will be reduced for Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals as described under "Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals" below, and may be increased by step ups on each Contract Anniversary as described under "Benefit Base Step Ups" below.

Return of Premium GLWB Benefit Base. The initial Benefit Base will equal the greater of (i) the Contract Value on the GLWB Exercise Date, or (ii) the sum of your premium payments on the GLWB Exercise Date, less an adjustment for each Gross Partial Withdrawal prior to the GLWB Exercise Date. If you elect to pay Advisory Fees from your Contract Value, this deduction will not impact the Return of Premium GLWB Benefit Base. Gross Partial Withdrawals before the Benefit Base is established will reduce the initial Return of Premium GLWB Benefit Base, and this reduction may be more, even significantly more, than the amount withdrawn.

The adjustment for Gross Partial Withdrawals will reduce the initial Return of Premium GLWB Benefit Base by the same proportion that the Gross Partial Withdrawal reduced the Contract Value, calculated as follows:

Return of Premium GLWB Benefit Base after Gross Partial Withdrawal = Return of Premium GLWB Benefit Base before Gross Partial Withdrawal * (1 – [Gross Partial Withdrawal amount] / [Contract Value before Gross Partial Withdrawal])

If the Return of Premium GLWB Benefit Base is greater than the Contract Value at the time of the Gross Partial Withdrawal, then the Return of Premium GLWB Benefit Base will be reduced by an amount greater than the amount withdrawn.

For example, assume you purchase the Contract with an initial premium payment of \$100,000 and make \$10,000 in additional premium payments. If you requested a \$15,000 withdrawal at a time when the Contract Value is \$95,000, the withdrawal would reduce the initial Return of Premium GLWB Benefit Base from \$110,000 to \$92,631.58 or a reduction of the initial Return of Premium GLWB Benefit Base by \$17,368.42, which is more than the \$15,000 amount withdrawn. Alternatively, if you requested a \$15,000 withdrawal at a time when the Contract Value is \$130,000, the withdrawal would reduce the initial Return of Premium GLWB Benefit Base from \$110,000 to \$97,307.69 or a reduction of the initial Return of Premium GLWB Benefit Base from \$110,000 to \$97,307.69 or a reduction of the initial Return of Premium GLWB Benefit Base by \$12,692.31, which is less than the \$15,000 amount withdrawn. In each case, if the Contract Value is greater on the GLWB Exercise Date, your initial Benefit Base will equal the Contract Value.

Even if you do not take any Gross Partial Withdrawals prior to the GLWB Exercise Date, it is possible your initial Benefit Base under the Return of Premium GLWB Rider will be no greater than the initial Benefit Base you would have received under the Contract Value GLWB Rider, for which a lower charge is assessed. If your Contract Value is greater than the Return of Premium GLWB Benefit Base on the GLWB Exercise Date, your initial Benefit Base will equal the Contract Value and you will have paid a higher charge without receiving a higher initial Benefit Base. You will remain subject to the higher charge for the Return of Premium GLWB Rider for the life of the Contract, even if your initial Benefit Base established on the GLWB Exercise Date is no greater than the Contract Value.

On and after the GLWB Exercise Date, the Benefit Base will be reduced for Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals as described under "Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals" below, and may be increased by step ups on each Contract Anniversary as described under "Benefit Base Step Ups" below.

Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals. On and after the GLWB Exercise Date, the Benefit Base will not be reduced by Gross Partial Withdrawals, provided your aggregate Gross Partial Withdrawals during the Contract Year do not exceed the Lifetime Payment Amount for that Contract Year. Aggregate Gross Partial Withdrawals during any Contract Year that exceed the Lifetime Payment Amount are "Excess Gross Partial Withdrawals." An Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal will reduce the Benefit Base by the same proportion that the Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal reduced the Contract Value, which may be more, even significantly more, than the amount withdrawn and may terminate the rider. This reduction is calculated as follows:

Benefit Base after Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal = Benefit Base before Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal * (1 – [Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal amount] / [Contract Value after reduction for any portion of Gross Partial Withdrawal up to the Lifetime Payment Amount but before any Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal amount])

For example, assume the Benefit Base is \$110,000 and the Lifetime Payment Amount for the Contract Year is \$10,000. You request a \$15,000 withdrawal at a time when the Contract Value is \$100,000. The first \$10,000 of your withdrawal is your Lifetime Payment Amount and is not an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal. This portion of the withdrawal reduces your Contract Value to \$90,000, but does not affect your Benefit Base. The remaining \$5,000 of the withdrawal is an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal. The Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal will reduce your Contract Value to \$85,000, a dollar-for-dollar reduction, but it will reduce your Benefit Base from \$110,000 to \$103,888.89, or a reduction of the Benefit Base by \$6,111.11, which is more than the \$5,000 Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal amount. On the next Contract Anniversary when your Lifetime Payment Amount for that Contract Year is determined, your Lifetime Payment Amount will be lower because your Benefit Base is lower.

Withdrawals after you elect to begin Lifetime Payments are taken pro-rata across all investments, including the Cycle Investments and the Default Account, in the same proportion that each investment option bears to the total Contract Value. If you take an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal on any day prior to the Cycle End Date of your Cycle Investments, you could significantly reduce or eliminate your Benefit Base. This is because prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Value is based on the Fair Value, which will fluctuate during the Cycle Term. See "Valuation of a Cycle Investment" for more information about the Fair Value calculation.

Benefit Base Step Ups. On each Contract Anniversary after the GLWB Exercise Date, we compare the Benefit Base to your Contract Value. If your Contract Value is greater, the Benefit Base will be stepped up to equal the Contract Value on that Contract Anniversary. Withdrawals (including Lifetime Payments) and deductions (including Advisory Fee deductions and deductions for optional benefit charges) will reduce the Contract Value dollar-for-dollar, which reduces the likelihood of increasing the Benefit Base through a step up on the Contract Anniversary.

Effect of Contract Value falling to Zero. If your Contract Value is reduced to zero for any reason before the GLWB Exercise Date, the GLWB Rider will terminate without value. After the GLWB Exercise Date, if your Contract Value is reduced to zero for any reason *other than an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal* (i.e., due to poor investment performance or the deduction of charges, including Advisory Fee deductions), then we will continue to pay the Lifetime Payment Amount from our general account assets each year until the death of the Covered Person(s). At that time, the GLWB Rider Charge will no longer be assessed. If your Contract Value is reduced to zero after the GLWB Exercise Date as a result of an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal, the GLWB Rider will terminate without value.

Contract Value GLWB Rider Example. You purchase the Contract at age 65 with a \$100,000 initial premium payment and elect the Contract Value GLWB Rider. Under the Rate Sheet Supplement in effect at the time we received your application and initial premium payment in Good Order, the Lifetime Payment Percentage for a Single Covered Person based on Issue Age 65 is 5.00%, and the Lifetime Payment Percentage increase for each Attained Age after Contract Issue before Lifetime Payments is 0.125%. At Attained Age 75 (10 Attained Age increases later), you elect to begin withdrawing Lifetime Payments by submitting a written request to our Customer Service Center at a time when your Contract Value is \$165,000. Your initial Benefit Base will also be \$165,000. Your Lifetime Payment Percentage will be 6.25% (which is 5.00% plus 0.125% for each of the 10 Attained Age increases before you elected to begin Lifetime Payments). Your Lifetime Payment Percentage). On your next Contract Anniversary, your Contract Value is greater than your Benefit Base, your Benefit Base is stepped up to equal your Contract Value. Your Lifetime Payment Amount for the next Contract Year will be \$10,812.50 (which is your s\173,000 Benefit Base multiplied by your 6.25% Lifetime Payment Percentage). As long as your cumulative withdrawals during a Contract Year do not exceed your Lifetime Payment Amount for that Contract Year, your Benefit Base will never be reduced. If your Contract Value is reduced to zero for any reason other than an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal, we will pay the Lifetime Payment Amount for our general account assets each year until your death.

Return of Premium GLWB Rider Example. You purchase the Contract at age 65 with a \$100,000 initial premium payment and elect the Return of Premium GLWB Rider. Under the Rate Sheet Supplement in effect at the time we received your application and initial premium payment in Good Order, the Lifetime Payment Percentage for a Single Covered Person based on Issue Age 65 is 5.00%, and the Lifetime Payment Percentage increase for each Attained Age after Contract Issue before Lifetime Payments is 0.125%. At Attained Age 75 (10 Attained Age increases later), you elect to begin withdrawing Lifetime Payments by submitting a written request to our Customer Service Center at a time when your Contract Value is \$90,000. Because your Contract Value is lower you're your total premium payments, your initial Benefit Base will be \$100,000. Your Lifetime Payment Percentage will be 6.25% (which is 5.00% plus 0.125% for each of the 10 Attained Age increases before you elected to begin Lifetime Payments). Your Lifetime Payment Amount for that Contract Year will be \$6,250 (which is your \$100,000 Benefit Base multiplied by your 6.25% Lifetime Payment Percentage). On your next Contract Anniversary, your Contract Value has increased to \$110,000. Because your Contract Value is greater than your Benefit Base, your Benefit Base is stepped up to equal your Contract Value. Your Lifetime Payment Amount for the next Contract Year will be \$6,875 (which is your new \$110,000 Benefit Base multiplied by your 6.25% Lifetime Payment Percentage). As long as your cumulative withdrawals during a Contract Year do not exceed your Lifetime Payment Amount for that Contract Year, your Benefit Base will never be reduced. If your Contract Value is reduced to zero for any reason other than an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal, we will pay the Lifetime Payment Amount from our general account assets each year until your death.

Effect of Owner Death. If you name your spouse as the Beneficiary and the spouse (1) was married to the deceased Owner, as recognized by Federal law, as of the date of the deceased Owner's death, and (2) is the sole primary Beneficiary, your surviving

spouse may choose to continue the Contract, which will then be treated as his/her own Contract. If your spouse chooses to continue the Contract under spousal continuance:

- If Lifetime Payments have not yet begun, the GLWB Rider will not terminate and the charge for the rider will continue to be deducted under the continued Contract. The Lifetime Payment Amount will be determined based on your spouse's age at the time he or she elects to begin Lifetime Payments, and is eligible for any Benefit Base step ups.
- If Lifetime Payments have begun for an individual Covered Person, the GLWB Rider will terminate and the charge for the rider will no longer be deducted under the continued Contract. No further Lifetime Payments will be made.
- If Lifetime Payments have begun for joint Covered Lives, the GLWB Rider will not terminate and the charge for the rider will continue to be deducted under the continued Contract. The Lifetime Payment Amount at the time of spousal continuance will continue to be paid to your spouse in accordance with the terms of the GLWB Rider.

Rate Sheet Supplement Information. The Rate Sheet Supplement contains the current Lifetime Payment Percentages for the GLWB Riders applicable to Contracts purchased while that Rate Sheet Supplement remains in effect. In order to receive the Lifetime Payment Percentages in any particular Rate Sheet Supplement, we must receive your application and initial premium payment in Good Order during the effective period for that Rate Sheet Supplement.

You should not purchase a GLWB Rider without first obtaining the applicable Rate Sheet Supplement. The current Rate Sheet Supplement is available (i) through your Advisor, (ii) by contacting us at 833-492-0022, (iii) on our website at https:// www.midlandnational.com/oakeliteadv, or (iv) at www.sec.gov under File Nos. 333-282591; 333-262682. We will file a new Rate Sheet Supplement at least 10 Business Days in advance of the effective date of the new rates. The Lifetime Payment Percentages from all superseded Rate Sheet Supplements can be found in Appendix D. The Lifetime Payment Percentage applicable to you is set forth in the Rate Sheet Supplement in effect *when we receive your application and initial premium payment in Good Order*. If we receive your application and initial premium payment in Good Order and a different Rate Sheet Supplement is in effect from the one that was in effect when you signed your application:

- If the subsequent Rate Sheet Supplement has *lower* Lifetime Payment Percentages than the Rate Sheet Supplement that was in effect when you signed your application, we will inform you and your Advisor and request confirmation that you accept the lower Lifetime Payment Percentages then in effect. You or your Advisor may also instruct us to issue the Contract without the GLWB Rider.
- If the subsequent Rate Sheet Supplement has *higher* Lifetime Payment Percentages than the Rate Sheet Supplement that was in effect when you signed your application, we will issue your Contract with the GLWB Rider at the higher Lifetime Payment Percentages then in effect.

Once your Contract and GLWB Rider are issued, the Lifetime Payment Percentage applicable to you will not change for the life of your Contract. Please refer to Appendix D for Lifetime Payment Percentages that apply to applications received before the current Rate Sheet Supplement was in effect.

Health Activated Income Multiplier. After the 2nd Contract Anniversary, the Health Activated Income Multiplier feature can increase your Lifetime Payment Amount in a particular Contract Year if one of the Covered Person(s) is unable to perform two of the following six activities of daily living for at least 90 consecutive calendar days: bathing, continence, dressing, eating, toileting, and transferring (moving into or out of a bed, chair or wheelchair). The Covered Person must have been able to perform all six activities on the Contract Issue Date, and you must provide us with proof of eligibility from a qualified physician satisfactory to us, which eligibility must be re-established on applicable Contract Anniversaries. You may elect the Health Activated Income Multiplier by sending Written Notice to our Customer Service Center in Good Order on or after the GLWB Exercise Date.

The Health Activated Income Multiplier may be elected over multiple non-consecutive Contract Years, up to a maximum of five Contract Years. Each time the Health Activated Income Multiplier is elected, all of the eligibility requirements must be met. If the eligibility requirements are no longer met or if you do not elect to use the Health Activated Income Multiplier during the next Contract Year, the Health Activated Income Multiplier will cease.

For any Contract Year in which the Health Activated Income Multiplier is elected, the Lifetime Payment Amount for that Contract Year (calculated as described above) will be multiplied by two. You may take Lifetime Payment Amounts in that Contract Year up to the doubled amount without triggering an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal and reducing your Benefit Base.

For example, assume that in Contract Year 5, your Lifetime Payment Amount is \$10,000. As a result of a health condition, you become unable to bath or dress yourself for 90 consecutive calendar days and elect the Health Activated Income Multiplier. You are then able to take Lifetime Payments up to \$20,000 in that Contract Year without triggering an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal and reducing your Benefit Base. Your health improves and on the next Contract Anniversary, you are able to dress or bath yourself again. At this time, you are no longer eligible for the Health Activated Income Multiplier for the next Contract Year, and you will only be able to take Lifetime Payments up to \$10,000 without triggering an Excess Gross Partial Withdrawal and reducing your Benefit Base. If, in the future, your health became impaired for 90 consecutive calendar days again, you could elect the Health Activated Income Multiplier up to four more times, provided you remained eligible.

GLWB Rider Charge. We assess a charge for the GLWB Rider at the end of each calendar quarter. This charge is deducted pro-rata across all investments, including the Cycle Investments and the Default Account. The charge will continue to be deducted for the life of the Contract, even if you never elect to begin receiving Lifetime Payments, and you cannot voluntarily terminate the GLWB rider

without surrendering or annuitizing your Contract. We will not refund the charges you have paid even if you never choose to begin Lifetime Payments or never receive any Lifetime Payments paid out of our general account assets. There is a risk that any financial return provided by the GLWB Rider will ultimately be less than the fees you paid for the benefit.

Charges deducted from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date are based on the Fair Value calculation. Prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value will be based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. If a deduction is taken to pay charges on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if a deduction is taken to pay charges on any day prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if the deduction was taken on the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower. These charge deductions will also reduce your Contract Value.

The charge for the Contract Value GLWB Rider is an annual rate of 0.95% of the Benefit Base. The charge is assessed quarterly.

The charge for the Return of Premium GLWB is an annual rate of 1.15% of the Benefit Base. The charge is assessed quarterly. If you elect the Return of Premium GLWB Rider, this charge will be assessed for the life of the Contract, even if your initial Benefit Base established on the GLWB Exercise Date is no greater than the Contract Value.

CHARGES, FEES AND ADJUSTMENTS

Transaction Expenses

Transfer Fee. We reserve the right to charge \$15 per transfer for transfers among Subaccounts and between Subaccounts and Cycle Investments in excess of 15 per Contract year. We do not currently assess this fee. If we charge this fee in the future, we will send you notice at least 10 Business Days prior to imposing the fee. If assessed, this fee will be deducted from the amount that is transferred prior to the allocation to the new Investment Option. The fee is waived for transfers in connection with active DCA or automatic rebalancing programs. We will not charge for any transfers of initial or additional premium payments that include allocation instructions for the next Cycle Start Date.

Transfer fees deducted from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date are based on the Fair Value calculation. If a deduction is taken to pay charges on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if a deduction is taken to pay charges on any day prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if the deduction was taken on the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower. These charge deductions will reduce your Contract Value.

Annual Contract Expenses

<u>Separate Account Annual Expenses</u>. We call this charge the Base Contract Expenses in the "Important Information You Should Consider About the Contract" and the "Fee Table" sections earlier in this prospectus.

The Separate Account Annual Expenses are composed of a mortality and expense risk charge currently assessed at an annual rate of 0.15% and an administrative fee currently assessed at an annual rate of 0.10% of your Accumulation Value. We deduct the charges on a daily basis through the calculation of the Accumulation Unit Value of the Subaccounts including the Default Account. This charge is not applied to Contract Value in the Cycle Investments.

The mortality risk we bear arises, in part, from our obligation to make monthly annuity payments regardless of how long the Annuitant or any individual may live. These payments are guaranteed in accordance with the annuity tables and other provisions contained in your Contract. This assures you that neither the longevity of the Annuitant, nor an unanticipated improvement in general life expectancy, will have any adverse effect on the monthly annuity payments the Annuitant will receive under the Contract. Our obligation, therefore, relieves the Annuitant from the risk that he or she will outlive the funds accumulated for retirement. We also assume the risk that other expense charges may be insufficient to cover the actual expenses we incur. The administration fee covers record keeping and other expenses we incur maintaining the Contracts.

The level of the charges is guaranteed for the life of the Contract and may not be increased after the Contract is issued. We expect to profit from these charges and may use the profit for any purpose including paying distribution expenses.

Investment Portfolio Charges

The Investment Portfolios impose management fees and other charges that are deducted from Investment Portfolio assets. The fees and expenses assessed by each Investment Portfolio will vary. See the Investment Portfolio prospectus for more information.

If an Investment Portfolio imposes liquidity fee or redemption fee on certain transactions (pursuant to SEC rules 2a-7 and 22c-2 under the Investment Company Act of 1940), the fee will be passed through and charged to the applicable Owner.

Optional Benefit Rider Charges

If you select one or more optional benefit riders available for an additional charge, we deduct the charge(s) for the benefit(s) at the end of each calendar quarter. The charge(s) is deducted pro-rata across all investments, including the Cycle Investments and the Default Account. The charge(s) will continue to be deducted for the life of the Contract.

Prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value will be based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. If a deduction is taken to pay charges on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if a deduction is taken to pay charges on any day prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date, it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if the deduction was taken on the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower. These charge deductions will also reduce your Contract Value.

It is possible that the Internal Revenue Service may take the position that fees deducted for certain optional benefit riders are deemed to be taxable distributions to you. In particular, the Internal Revenue Service may treat fees deducted for the optional benefits as taxable withdrawals, which might also be subject to a tax penalty if withdrawn prior to age 59½. Although we do not believe that the fees associated or any optional benefit provided under the Contract should be treated as taxable withdrawals, you should consult your tax advisor prior to selecting any optional benefit under the Contract.

State Premium Taxes

The Company reserves the right to deduct on full surrender, death, or the Maturity Date a charge for any state premium taxes levied by a state or any other government entity. State premium taxes vary based on your state of residence and currently range from 0% to 3.5%. State premium taxes are subject to change.

Other Taxes

At the present time, we do not deduct any charges for any federal, state, or local taxes (other than state premium taxes) that we incur which may be attributable to the Registered Separate Account or to the Contracts. We reserve the right to impose a charge for any such tax.

Adjustments for Fair Value

Before the end of a Cycle Term for a Cycle Investment we determine the Cycle Investment Unit Value that is used to calculate your Cycle Investment Value in the Cycle Investment by making an adjustment based on its Fair Value, which may be lower than your principal invested in the Cycle Investment. The Floor Rate or the Buffer Rate do not apply when we calculate the Fair Value. This means that under extreme conditions, you can lose up to 100% of your principal invested in a Cycle Investment if certain transactions occur prior to the Cycle End Date. The following transactions prior to the Cycle End Date will result an adjustment based on Fair Value:

- you make a withdrawal (including Lifetime Payments under the GLWB riders, withdrawals to pay Advisory Fees, systematic withdrawals and required minimum distributions);
- you transfer Contract Value from the Cycle Investment to the Subaccounts;
- you surrender the Contract;
- you annuitize the Contract; or
- a death benefit becomes payable.

The Fair Value of a Cycle Investment is determined by the Fair Value Calculation Agent as of the end of each Cycle Business Day. The Fair Value reflects the current value of certain financial instruments. These financial instruments are intended to provide a return equal to the change in Index Value at the end of the Cycle Term subject to the Cap Rate or Participation Rate and subject to the Floor Rate or Buffer Rate. The Fair Value is based on a variety of factors considered by the Fair Value Calculation Agent, which include the change in the Index Value from the Cycle Start Date, volatility of the Index, changes in prevailing interest rates, dividend yield on the index, changes in index level, and the time remaining to the Cycle End Date. The Fair Value is determined using a formula which is based on the economic value of a hypothetical investments at the time of the valuation designed to match Cycle Investment value at the Cycle End Date. The value of each of these financial instruments is determined by the Fair Value Calculation Agent using standard financial industry calculations. On each Business Day prior to the Cycle End Date, we will use the Fair Value for each Cycle Investment, as provided by the Fair Value Calculation Agent, to calculate the Fair Value per Cycle Investment Unit outstanding.See the Statement of Additional Information for more information about the Fair Value calculation, including examples illustrating its operation.

If you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date, the number of Cycle Investment Units is reduced by the same proportion that the withdrawal reduced the Cycle Investment Value (which is based on the Fair Value). This means that if you take a withdrawal prior to the Cycle End Date at a time when the Cycle Investment Value is lower than the Cycle Investment Value was on the Cycle Start Date,
it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if you waited until the Cycle End Date, and this will always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower.

The adjustment for Fair Value is not a fee or charge that is provided in consideration for any specific Contract features. The Fair Value of a Cycle Investment is related to the value of the derivative assets that we may hold in support of our financial obligations under the Contract. The use of the Fair Value shifts risk from us to investors in the Contract, protecting us from losses on those derivative assets when amounts are withdrawn or otherwise removed from a Cycle Investment prior to end of a Cycle Term.

You can obtain the Cycle Investment Unit Values for the Cycle Investments in which you invest by calling (833) 492-0022. This value can fluctuate daily, and the current value quoted may differ from the actual Cycle Investment Unit Value at the time of a transaction.

ADVISORY FEES DEDUCTED FROM CONTRACT VALUE

Your Advisor may charge an Advisory Fee for their asset management and/or investment advisory services. The Company is not a party to the Advisory Fee. The Advisory Fee that your Advisor charges you, if any, is solely between you and your Advisor, and is in addition to the fees and expenses described above. However, the Company allows you to have your Advisor's Advisory Fee deducted from your Contract Value, up to a maximum of 1.5% of your Contract Value annually.

You may choose to pay the Advisory Fee directly from a separate source or from your Contract Value. For the Advisory Fee to be paid from your Contract Value, your Advisor must send a written request to our Customer Service Center in Good Order authorizing the deduction and we will allow such deduction up to a maximum of 1.5% of your Contract Value annually.

Generally, we will not treat the Advisory Fee deducted from your Contract Value as a taxable withdrawal. This is because in a series of recent private letter rulings ("PLRs"), the IRS has recognized that investment advisor fees paid out of Contract Value will, in certain circumstances and subject to conditions, not be treated as taxable distributions from a Non-Qualified Contract, will not be taxable to the Contract Owner, are not be reportable to the IRS as distributions from the Contract and are not subject to the 10% tax penalty for Contract Owners who are under age $59\frac{1}{2}$. We have received such a private letter ruling from the IRS and intend to tax report in accordance with that ruling. Accordingly, advisory fees will be treated as non-taxable distributions for reporting purposes by the Company. However, these rulings generally only can be relied upon by the taxpayers who obtained them, and the IRS is not bound by these rulings with respect to your tax treatment under your Contract. Regardless of how we treat the deduction of Advisory Fees for tax reporting purposes, there is a risk that federal and state taxing authorities may determine that these deductions are subject to federal and state income taxes, including a 10% tax penalty if you are under age $59\frac{1}{2}$. In all events, we will administer the Contract to comply with these PLRs and any other federal tax requirements. Please see "Federal Tax Status – Advisory Fees" for more information about the tax consequences of deducting Advisory Fees from your Contract Value.

In order to comply with the requirements of these PLRs, your Advisory Fee arrangement must meet the following conditions:

- You must provide us with a written authorization that sets forth the amount of the Advisory Fees and the frequency with which the Advisory Fees should be deducted from your Contract Value and paid to your Advisor.
- The Advisory Fees must be determined in an arms-length transaction between you and your Advisor.
- The Advisory Fees may not exceed an amount equal to an annual rate of 1.5% of the Contract Value determined at the time and in the manner provided by the fee authorization, but in all events based on the Contract Value during the period to which the Advisory Fees relate.
- The Advisory Fees must be used to compensate your Advisor only for investment advice provided to you in connection with the Contract and not for any other services or accounts.
- During any period for which the Advisory Fee deduction is authorized, the Advisory Fees subject to such authorization must be paid solely from your Contract Value and you, as the Contract Owner, may not pay such Advisory Fees directly to the Advisor from any other accounts or assets nor can you direct the payment of fees for any other purpose or to any other person.

For more information about the tax consequences of Advisory Fees, please see "Federal Tax Status – Advisory Fees." You should consult with a tax advisor regarding the tax treatment of paying Advisory Fees from your Contract Value.

Once you authorize Advisory Fees to be deducted from your Contract Value, we will continue to make such payments unless you or your Advisor instruct us to terminate such payment. You may instruct us to terminate the Advisory Fee authorization at any time by sending a written request to our Customer Service Center in Good Order.

You may authorize the deduction of Advisory Fees from (1) all of the Subaccounts on a pro-rata basis, (2) a single Subaccount of your choosing or (3) all investments, including the Cycle Investments, on a pro-rata basis. If you authorize the deduction of Advisory Fees but do not specify a source, the Advisory Fee deductions will be taken pro-rata from the Subaccounts only. If you do not have any investment in the Subaccounts, the Advisory Fee deductions will be taken pro-rata across the Cycle Investments.

Prior to the Cycle End Date, the Cycle Investment Unit Value will be based on the Fair Value, and the Floor Rate and the Buffer Rate do not apply. This means, on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, if the Index is performing positively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect lower gains (because of the Fair Value calculation), and, if the Index is performing negatively, your Cycle Investment Unit Value could reflect higher losses (because the Floor and Buffer Rates do not apply) than on the Cycle End Date. Under both these scenarios, this means on any day prior to the Cycle End Date, if you take a withdrawal from a Cycle Investment

(including a withdrawal to pay Advisory Fees), it will result in a reduction of more Cycle Investment Units than if you waited until the Cycle End Date, and this would always cause your Cycle Investment Value on the Cycle End Date to be lower. You should consult with your Advisor before authorizing Advisory Fees to be deducted from the Cycle Investments prior to the Cycle End Date.

Any reductions in Contract Value, including reduction to the payment of Advisory Fees, will reduce the amount available to be applied to an annuity payout option when you annuitize your Contract. Currently, income payment options are only available if the proceeds applied are \$2,000 or more and the annual payment is more than \$240. If the deduction of Advisory Fees reduces your Contract Value below these thresholds, your options will be limited to receiving your remaining Contract Value in one lump sum. Because the standard Contract Value Death Benefit under the Contract is equal to your Contract Value, the deduction of the Advisory Fee from your Contract Value will also reduce the Contract Value Death Benefit. The deduction of Advisory Fees is not treated as a withdrawal for purposes of any of the optional benefit riders available under the Contract. This means that Advisory Fee deductions will *not* reduce the value of the optional Death Benefit riders (the Return of Premium Death Benefit and the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit) or the Benefit Base of the optional GLWB riders (the Contract Value GLWB and the Return of Premium GLWB). However, because the deduction of Advisory Fees reduces the Contract Value, it will reduce the likelihood of increasing the Annual Ratchet Death Benefit or the Benefit Base of a GLWB rider through a step up on the Contract Anniversary.

MATURITY DATE

The Maturity Date is the date on which income payments will begin under the annuity option you have selected. The earliest possible Maturity Date under the Contract is the first Contract Anniversary at which time you may Annuitize your full Contract Value (less any state premium taxes). The maximum Maturity Date is the Contract Anniversary immediately following the Annuitant's 115th birthday. You may change the Maturity Date to an earlier Contract anniversary by sending Written Notice to our Customer Service Center. We must receive your Written Notice at least 30 days prior to the original Maturity Date. Any optional death benefit you have elected will terminate without value on the Maturity Date. If you elected an optional GLWB Rider and Lifetime Payments have begun, your GLWB Rider will not terminate and your benefits under the GLWB Rider will continue until the death(s) of the Covered Person(s). If you elected an optional GLWB Rider and Lifetime Payments on the Maturity Date or you may purchase a Single Pay Immediate Annuity ("SPIA") with your Contract Value. The selection of a Maturity Date at the Annuitant's advanced age could have tax consequences so you should consult a tax adviser.

If you have not previously specified otherwise and have not elected certain systematic withdrawal options, then on the Maturity Date you may:

- 1. take the Contract Value, less any state premium tax, in one lump sum, or
- 2. convert the Contract Value, less any state premium tax, into an annuity payable to the Payee under one of the payment options as described below.

Electing an Income Payment Option

You may apply Contract Value (less any state premium taxes) to an annuity payment option after the 1st Contract Year. During the 1st Contract Year, you may elect to apply the Contract Value (less any state premium taxes) to any annuity payment option. Unless you choose otherwise, on the Maturity Date your Contract Value (less any state premium taxes) will be applied to a 10 year certain and life fixed annuity payment option. The first monthly annuity payment will be made within one month after the Maturity Date.

Only fixed payment options are available. Variable payment options are not available under this Contract. Fixed payment options are obligations of our General Account and are subject to our claims-paying ability.

Currently, income payment options are only available if the proceeds applied are \$2,000 or more and the annual payment is more than \$240. We reserve the right to change the payment frequency so that payments are at least \$100.

The Annuitant's actual age at the time of Annuitization will affect each Payment Amount for annuity payment options involving life income. The amount of each annuity payment to older Annuitants will be greater than for younger Annuitants because payments to older Annuitants are expected to be fewer in number. For annuity payment options that do not involve life payment, the length of the payment period will affect the amount of each payment. With a shorter period, the amount of each annuity payment will be greater. Payments that occur more frequently will be smaller than those occurring less frequently.

The Payee or any other person who is entitled to receive payments may name a Beneficiary to receive any amount that we would otherwise pay to that person's estate if that person died. The person who is entitled to receive payment may change the Beneficiary at any time.

Annuity payment options will be subject to our rules at the time of selection. We must approve any arrangements that involve a Payee who is not a natural person (for example, a corporation), or a Payee who is a fiduciary or an assignee. Also, the details of all arrangements will be subject to our rules at the time the arrangements take effect. This includes:

- rules on the minimum amount we will pay under an option;
- minimum amounts for installment payments, surrender or commutation rights (your rights to receive payments over time, for which we may offer you a lump sum payment);

- the naming of people who are entitled to receive payment and their Beneficiaries; and
- our requirements for proof of age, gender, and survival.

You must elect the payment option at least 30 days before the Maturity Date.

If your Contract is a Qualified Contract, not all of the payment options will satisfy required minimum distribution rules, particularly as those rules apply to your beneficiary after your death. Beginning with deaths happening on or after January 1, 2020, subject to certain exceptions, most non-spouse beneficiaries must now complete death benefit distributions within ten years of the owner's death in order to satisfy required minimum distribution rules. Consult a tax advisor before electing such an option.

Fixed Payment Options

Payments under the fixed options are not affected by the investment experience of any Investment Option. The Contract Value (less any state premium taxes) as of the Maturity Date will be applied to the fixed option selected. We guarantee interest under the fixed options at a rate of 1.00% a year. We may also credit interest under the fixed payment options at a rate that is above the 1.00% guaranteed rate (this is at our complete discretion). Thereafter, interest or payments are fixed according to the annuity option chosen.

Income Payment Options

The following four payout options are available:

- 1. **Income for Specified Period**: We pay installments for a specified period of 5 to 20 years. We will pay the amount applied in equal installments plus applicable interest (excess interest may be paid at our discretion). This option may not satisfy required minimum distribution rules for qualified Contracts. Consult a tax advisor before electing this option under a qualified Contract. However, by current Company practice we may offer other options.
- 2. **Income for a Specified Amount**: We pay income of the specified amount until the principal and interest are exhausted. The specified amount is subject to the limitation that principal and interest must be payable for at least 5 years and must be exhausted at the end of 20 years.
- 3. **Payment of Life Income**: We will pay monthly income for the life of a single Annuitant. Joint Annuitants are permissible only under the Joint and Survivor Income option. Under the Payment of Life Income option, you may choose from 1 of 2 ways to receive the income:
 - a. Life Annuity: We will pay monthly income for life. With a life annuity payment option, payments will only be made as long as the Annuitant is alive. Therefore, if the Annuitant dies after the first payment, then only one payment will be made and if the Annuitant dies before the first payment then no payments will be made.
 - b. Life Annuity With Certain Period: We will pay equal monthly payments for either 120 or 240 guaranteed payments, and then for as long as the Annuitant is living thereafter. The period certain options are 10 and 20 years. However, by current company practice we may offer other options.
- 4. **Joint and Survivor Income**: We will make monthly payments until the last surviving Payee's death. Therefore, if both Payees die after the first payment, then only one payment will be made and if the both Payees die before the first payment then no payments will be made.. The Annuitant must be at least 50 years old and the Joint Annuitant/Payee must be at least 45 years old at the time of the first monthly payment.

FEDERAL TAX STATUS

Introduction

NOTE: We have prepared the following information on federal income taxes as a general discussion of the subject. It is not intended as tax advice to any individual. No attempt is made to consider any applicable state or other income tax laws, any state and local estate or inheritance tax, or other tax consequences of Ownership or receipt of distributions under the Contract. You should consult your own tax advisor about your own circumstances. We have included an additional discussion regarding taxes in the SAI.

Annuity Contracts in General

Deferred annuities are a way of setting aside money for future needs like retirement. Congress recognized how important saving for retirement is and provided special rules in the Internal Revenue Code for annuities.

Simply stated, these rules provide that generally you will not be taxed on the Gain, if any, on the money held in your annuity Contract until you take the money out. This is referred to as tax deferral. There are different rules as to how you will be taxed depending on how you take the money out and the type of Contract – qualified or non-qualified (discussed below).

You will generally not be taxed on increases in the value of your Contract until a distribution occurs – either as a surrender or as annuity payments.

When a non-natural person (e.g., corporation or certain other entities other than tax-qualified trusts) owns a Non-Qualified Contract, the Contract will generally not be treated as an annuity for tax purposes and any increase in the excess of the Contract Value over the investment in the Contract during the taxable year must generally be included in income. There are some exceptions to this rule and a prospective Owner that is not a natural person should discuss these with a tax advisor.

Qualified and Non-Qualified Contracts

If you invest in a variable annuity as part of an individual retirement plan, your annuity is called a *Qualified Contract*. If your annuity is independent of any formal retirement or pension plan, it is termed a *Non-Qualified Contract, including Non-Qualified Stretch*. The tax rules applicable to qualified Contracts vary according to the type of retirement plan and the terms and conditions of the plan.

Qualified Contracts are issued in connection with the plans listed below. There is additional information about qualified Contracts in the SAI.

- Individual Retirement Annuity (IRA): A traditional IRA allows individuals to make contributions, which may be deductible, to the annuity. Distributions from an IRA are generally subject to tax and, if made before age 59¹/₂, may be subject to a 10% penalty tax.
- Roth IRAs, as described in Code section 408A, permit certain eligible individuals to make non-deductible contributions to a Roth IRA in cash or as a rollover or transfer from another Roth IRA or other IRA. A rollover from or conversion of an IRA to a Roth IRA is generally subject to current tax. The Owner may wish to consult a tax adviser before combining any converted amounts with any other Roth IRA contributions, including any other conversion amounts from other tax years. Distributions from a Roth IRA generally are not taxed, except that, once aggregate distributions exceed contributions to the Roth IRA, income tax and a 10% penalty tax may apply to distributions made (1) before age 59¹/₂ (subject to certain exceptions) or (2) during the five taxable years starting with the year in which the first contribution is made to any Roth IRA. A 10% penalty tax may apply to amounts attributable to a conversion from an IRA if they are distributed during the five taxable years beginning with the year in which the conversion was made.

Distributions that are rolled over to another IRA within 60 days are not immediately taxable, however only one such rollover is permitted each year. An individual can make only one rollover from an IRA to another (or the same) IRA in any 12-month period, regardless of the number of IRAs that are owned. The limit will apply by aggregating all of an individual's IRAs, including SEP, SIMPLE IRAs, and Inherited IRAs as well as traditional and Roth IRAs, effectively treating them as one IRA for purposes of the limit. This limit does not apply to direct trustee-to-trustee transfers or conversions of an IRA to a Roth IRA.

Minimum Distribution Rules and Eligible Rollover Distributions

Qualified Contracts have minimum distribution rules that govern the timing and amount of distributions. Consult with and rely upon your tax advisor. In addition, not all income options will always satisfy minimum required distribution rules. Consult with and rely upon your tax advisor before electing an income option.

The Setting Every Community Up for Retirement Enhancement Act of 2019 and 2022 (collectively, the "Secure Act") made changes to the required minimum distribution rules. Under the Secure Act, the age on which required minimum distributions generally must begin is based on the individual's applicable age. If the individual attains (1) age 701/2 before 2020, the applicable age is 701/2; (2) age 72 during or after 2020 but before 2023, the applicable age is 72; (3) age 72 during or after 2023 and age 73 before 2033, the applicable age is 73; or (4) age 74 after 2032, the applicable age is 75.

The Secure Act also provides that for qualified contract owners who die after January 1, 2020 that any designated beneficiary who is not an "eligible designated beneficiary" must withdraw the entire account value by the end of the tenth year following the year of death. This rule applies regardless of whether required minimum distributions have begun.

Diversification and Distribution Requirements

The Internal Revenue Code provides that the underlying investments for a non-qualified variable annuity must satisfy certain diversification requirements in order to be treated as an annuity. The annuity must also meet certain distribution requirements at the death of the Annuitant or an Owner in order to be treated as an annuity Contract. These diversification and distribution requirements are discussed in the SAI. Midland National may modify the Contract to attempt to maintain favorable tax treatment.

Owner Control

In certain circumstances, a variable Contract Owner may be considered the Owner of the assets of a segregated account, such as the Registered Separate Account, if the IRS deems the Owner to possess "Ownership" in those assets, such as the ability to exercise investment control over the assets. If the Contract Owner is deemed to have "investor control" over the underlying Investment Options, then the Contract Owner will be taxed currently on income and recognized gains under the Contract. The IRS has issued Revenue Ruling 2003-91 providing a safe harbor when the facts of the ruling are present. The ruling goes on to state that whether a

Contract Owner has sufficient investor control over the assets depends on the facts and circumstances. Due to the uncertainty in this area, we reserve the right to modify the Contract in an attempt to maintain favorable tax treatment. However, there is no assurance that such modifications would be successful. While we believe that the Contracts do not give Owners investment control over separate account assets, we reserve the right to modify the Contracts as necessary to prevent an Owner from being treated as the Owner of the separate account assets supporting the Contract.

Surrenders and Partial Withdrawals

If you make a partial withdrawal from a Non-Qualified Contract before the annuity commencement date, the Internal Revenue Code treats that surrender as first coming from gain and then from your premium payments. When you make a partial withdrawal, you are taxed on the amount of the surrender that is gain. If you make a full surrender, you are generally taxed on the amount that your surrender proceeds exceed the "investment in the Contract," which is generally your premiums paid (adjusted for any prior partial withdrawals that came out of the premiums). Withdrawals from Non-Qualified Contracts to pay third party registered investment advisor fees may be treated as taxable withdrawals. Consult a tax advisor. Different rules apply for annuity payments and under Qualified Contracts. See "Annuity Payments" below.

In the case of a withdrawal under a Qualified Contract, a ratable portion of the amount received is taxable, generally based on the ratio of the "investment in the Contract" to the individual's total account balance or accrued benefit under the retirement plan. The "investment in the Contract" generally equals the amount of your non-deductible premium payments. In many cases, the "investment in the Contract" under a Qualified Contract can be zero.

The Internal Revenue Code also provides that surrendered gain may be subject to a penalty. The amount of the penalty is equal to 10% of the amount that is includable in income. Some surrenders will be exempt from the penalty. In general, in the case of a distribution from a Non-Qualified Contract, this includes any amount:

- paid on or after the taxpayer reaches age $59^{1/2}$;
- paid after an Owner dies;
- paid if the taxpayer becomes totally disabled (as that term is defined in the Internal Revenue Code);
- paid in a series of substantially equal payments made annually (or more frequently) under a lifetime annuity;
- paid under an immediate maturity; or
- which come from premium payments made prior to August 14, 1982.

Special rules may be applicable in connection with the exceptions enumerated above. Also, additional exceptions apply to distributions from a Qualified Contract. You should consult your tax adviser with regard to exceptions from the penalty tax.

Advisory Fees

Generally, we will not treat Advisory Fees deducted from your Contract Value as taxable withdrawals if certain conditions are met. The IRS has issued a series of private letter rulings ("PLRs") concluding that the payment of investment advisor fees to an investment advisor out of Contract Value will, in certain circumstances and subject to conditions, not be treated as taxable distributions from Non-Qualified Contracts, will not be taxable to the Contract Owner, are not reportable to the IRS as distributions from the Contract and are not subject to the 10% early withdrawal tax by Contract Owners who are under age $59\frac{1}{2}$. We have received such a private letter ruling from the IRS and intend to tax report in accordance with that ruling. Accordingly, advisory fees will be treated as non-taxable distributions for reporting purposes by the Company. In order to comply with the PLR, all of the following requirements must be met:

- The Contract is designed for Contract Owners who will receive ongoing investment advice from an investment advisor who is appropriately licensed and in the business of providing investment advice;
- The Contract Owner authorizes Advisory Fees to be paid periodically to the investment advisor from the Contract's cash value;
- The Advisory Fees will be determined based on an arms-length transaction between the Contract Owner and investment advisor;
- The Advisory Fees will not exceed an amount equal to an annual rate of 1.5% of the Contract's cash value determined at the time and in the manner provided by the fee authorization, but in all events based on the cash value during the period to which the Advisory Fees relate;
- The Advisory Fees will compensate the investment advisor only for investment advice that the investment advisor provides to the Contract Owner with respect to the Contract and not for any other services or accounts;
- While the fee agreement is in place, the Contract will be solely liable for the payment of Advisory Fees directly to the investment advisor;
- The Contract Owner may not pay the Advisory Fees to the investment advisor from any other accounts or assets nor can the Contract Owner direct the payment of fees for any other purpose or to any other person; and
- The investment advisor will not receive a commission for the sale of the Contract.

However, it is important to note that PLRs generally can be relied upon only by the taxpayers who obtained them and the IRS is not bound by this ruling with respect to your tax treatment under the Contract. In addition, it is unclear how an Advisory Fee in excess of the 1.5% limit will be treated by the IRS. We will report the amount of any Advisory Fee in excess of 1.5% to the IRS as a taxable distribution.

You should consult a tax adviser regarding the tax treatment of deducting Advisory Fees from your Contract Value and consider whether paying such Advisory Fees from a separate source is more appropriate for you.

Multiple Contracts

All non-qualified deferred annuity contracts that are issued by Midland National (or its affiliates) to the same Owner during any calendar year are treated as one annuity for purposes of determining the amount includable in the Owner's income when a taxable distribution occurs.

Withholding

Distributions from Qualified and Non-Qualified Contracts are generally subject to withholding for your federal income tax liability. The withholding rate varies according to the type of distribution and your tax status. You will be provided the opportunity to elect not to have tax withheld from distributions when allowed by law.

Annuity Payments

Although the tax consequences may vary depending on the annuity payment option you select, in general, for Non-Qualified and certain Qualified Contracts, only a portion of the annuity payments you receive will be includable in your gross income.

In general, the excludable portion of each annuity payment you receive will be determined by dividing the "investment in the Contract" on the Maturity Date by the total expected value of the annuity payments for the term of the payments. This is the percentage of each annuity payment that is excludable.

The remainder of each annuity payment is includable in gross income. Once the "investment in the Contract" has been fully recovered, the full amount of any additional annuity payments is includable in gross income.

If, after Annuitization, annuity payments stop because an Annuitant has died, the excess (if any) of the "investment in the Contract" as of the Annuitization over the aggregate amount of annuity payments received that was excluded from gross income is generally allowable as a deduction for your last taxable year.

Partial Annuitization

If part of an annuity Contract's value is applied to an annuity option that provides payments for one or more lives and for a period of at least ten years, those payments may be taxed as annuity payments instead of withdrawals. None of the payment options under the Contract are intended to qualify for this "partial Annuitization" treatment and, if you apply only part of the value of the Contract to a payment option, we will treat those payments as withdrawals for tax purposes.

Investment Income Surtax

Distributions from non-qualified annuity Contracts will be considered "investment income" for purposes of the investment income tax on investment income. Thus, in certain circumstances, a 3.8% tax may be applied to some or all of the taxable portion of distributions (*e.g.*, earnings) to individuals whose income exceeds certain threshold amounts. Please consult a tax advisor for more information.

Definition of Spouse under Federal Law

The Contract provides that upon your death, a surviving spouse may have certain continuation rights that he or she may elect to exercise for the Contract's Death Benefit. All Contract provisions relating to spousal continuation are available only to a person who meets the definition of "spouse" under federal law. The U.S. Supreme Court has held that same-sex marriages must be permitted under state law and that marriages recognized under state law will be recognized for federal law purposes. Domestic partnerships and civil unions that are not recognized as legal marriages under state law, however, will not be treated as marriages under federal law. Consult a tax advisor for more information on this subject.

Annuity Contracts Purchased by Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Corporations

The discussion above provided general information regarding U.S. federal income tax consequences to annuity Owners that are U.S. persons. Taxable distributions made to Owners who are not U.S. persons will generally be subject to U.S. federal income tax withholding at a 30% rate, unless a lower treaty rate applies. In addition, such distributions may be subject to state and/or municipal taxes and taxes that may be imposed by the Owner's country of citizenship or residence. Additional withholding may occur with respect to entity purchasers (including foreign corporations, partnerships, and trusts) that are not U.S. residents. Prospective foreign Owners are advised to consult with a qualified tax advisor regarding U.S., state, and foreign taxation for any annuity Contract purchase.

Taxation of Death Benefit Proceeds

Amounts may be distributed from the Contract because of the death of the Annuitant (only if the Owner is a non-natural person) or an Owner. Generally, such amounts should be includable in the income of the recipient:

- if distributed in a lump sum, these amounts are taxed in the same manner as a full surrender; or
- if distributed under an annuity payment option, these amounts are taxed in the same manner as annuity payments.

Transfers, Assignments or Exchange of Contracts

A transfer of Ownership or absolute assignment of a Contract, the designation of an Annuitant or Payee or other Beneficiary who is not also the Owner, the selection of certain Maturity Date, or a change of Annuitant, may result in certain income or gift tax consequences to the Owner that are beyond the scope of this discussion. An Owner contemplating any such transfer, assignment, selection, or change should contact a competent tax advisor with respect to the potential tax effects of such a transaction.

Transfers of Non-Qualified Contracts for less than full and adequate consideration by the Owner at the time of such transfer, will trigger taxable income on the Gain in the Contract, with the transferee getting a step-up in basis for the amount included in the Owner's income. This provision does not apply to transfers between spouses or transfers incident to a divorce.

Possible Tax Law Changes

Although the likelihood of legislative changes is uncertain, there is always the possibility that the tax treatment of the Contract could change by legislation or otherwise. You should consult a tax advisor with respect to legal developments and their effect on the Contract. We have the right to modify the Contract in response to legislative changes that could otherwise diminish the favorable tax treatment that annuity contract owners currently receive. We make no guarantee regarding the tax status of any Contract and do not intend the above discussion as tax advice

Federal Estate, Gift and Generation-Skipping Transfer Taxes

While no attempt is being made to discuss the Federal estate tax implications of the Contract, a purchaser should keep in mind that the value of an annuity Contract owned by a decedent and payable to a Beneficiary by virtue of surviving the decedent is included in the decedent's gross estate. Depending on the terms of the annuity Contract, the value of the annuity included in the gross estate may be the value of the lump sum payment payable to the designated Beneficiary or the actuarial value of the payments to be received by the Beneficiary. Consult with and rely on an estate planning advisor for more information.

Under certain circumstances, the Code may impose a generation-skipping transfer ("GST") tax when all or part of an annuity Contract is transferred to, or a Death Benefit is paid to, an individual two or more generations younger than the Owner. Regulations issued under the Code may require us to deduct the tax from your Contract, or from any applicable payment, and pay it directly to the IRS.

The potential application of these taxes underscores the importance of seeking guidance from a qualified adviser to help ensure that your estate plan adequately addresses your needs and those of your beneficiaries under all possible scenarios.

Annuity Purchases by Residents of Puerto Rico

The Internal Revenue Service has announced that income received by residents of Puerto Rico under life insurance or annuity Contracts issued by a Puerto Rico branch of a United States life insurance company is U.S.-source income that is generally subject to United States Federal income tax.

Foreign Tax Credits

We may benefit from any foreign tax credits attributable to taxes paid by certain portfolios to foreign jurisdictions to the extent permitted under Federal tax law.

OTHER INFORMATION

THE REGISTERED SEPARATE ACCOUNT

Registered Separate Account. The Midland National Life Separate Account C invests your premiums that are allocated to, and Contract Value that is transferred to, the Subaccounts. The Registered Separate Account was established under the insurance laws of the State of South Dakota in March 1991 and is now governed by Iowa law. It is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

We are the legal owner of all assets held in the Registered Separate Account and use the assets to support your Contract and other variable annuity Contracts. We may permit charges owed to us to stay in the Registered Separate Account. Thus, we may also participate proportionately in the Registered Separate Account. These accumulated amounts belong to us and we may transfer them from the Registered Separate Account to our General Account. The assets in the Registered Separate Account equal to the reserves and other liabilities of the Registered Separate Account may not be charged with liabilities arising out of our other business. The obligations under the Contracts are our obligations. The income, gains and losses (realized and unrealized) of the Registered Separate Account are credited to or charged against the Registered Separate Account without regard to our other income, gains, or losses. Under certain unlikely circumstances, one Subaccount of the Registered Separate Account may be liable for claims relating to the operations of another Subaccount.

Our Right to Change How We Operate the Registered Separate Account.

We have the right to modify how we operate the Registered Separate Account. In making any changes, we may not seek approval of Owners (unless approval is required by law). We have the right to:

- add Investment Options to, or remove Investment Options from our Registered Separate Account;
- combine two or more Subaccounts;
- withdraw assets relating to our variable annuities from one Subaccount and put them into another. However, if required, we would first seek approval from the Securities and Exchange Commission;
- eliminate an Investment Portfolio's shares and substitute shares of another Investment Portfolio or another openend, registered investment company. This may happen if the Investment Portfolio's shares are no longer available for investment or, if in our judgment, further investment in the Investment Portfolio is inappropriate in view of the Registered Separate Account's purposes. However, if required, we would first seek approval from the Securities and Exchange Commission and the insurance regulator where the Contract is delivered;
- end the registration of our Registered Separate Account under the Investment Company Act of 1940;
- operate our Registered Separate Account under the direction of a committee or discharge such a committee at any time (the committee may be composed entirely of "interested persons" of Midland under the Investment Company Act of 1940); and
- operate our Registered Separate Account or one or more of the Subaccounts in any other form the law allows, including a form that allows us to make direct investments. In addition, we may disapprove any change in investment advisors or investment policies unless a law or regulation provides differently.

If any changes are made that result in a material change to any Subaccount, then you will be notified. We may, for example, cause the Subaccount to invest in another mutual fund other than or in addition to the current Investment Portfolios.

If you are enrolled in a dollar cost averaging, automatic rebalancing or a comparable program when an underlying Investment Portfolio merger, substitution or liquidation takes place, unless otherwise noted in a communication from us, your Accumulation Value invested in such Subaccounts will be transferred automatically to the designated surviving Subaccount, in the case of mergers; the replacement Subaccount, in the case of substitutions; and in the Default Account in the case of liquidations. Your DCA or automatic rebalancing enrollment instructions will be automatically updated to reflect the surviving Subaccount, the replacement Subaccount or the Default Account, as the case may be, for any continued and future transfers or premium payments.

If you want to transfer the amount in a Subaccount that is changed as a result of a fund merger, substitution or liquidation, you may do so, without charge, by writing to our Customer Service Center.

THE NON-REGISTERED SEPARATE ACCOUNT

To support our obligations under the Cycle Investments we have established under the Iowa Insurance Law, and hold assets in, the "non-unitized" separate account. The income, gains and losses, realized or unrealized, from assets allocated to this separate account will be credited to or charged against the account, without regard to other income, gains or losses of the Company.

We are the sole owner of the assets of the Non-Registered Separate Account. We may invest and trade the assets of the Non-Registered Separate Account in any manner we choose. The only restrictions on our investments of the assets held in the Non-Registered Separate Account are those set forth by Iowa Insurance Laws. While we plan to invest the assets of the separate Account in a manner that generates a return that approximates the change in the applicable Index, subject to the Cap Rate and Participation Rate, the Floor Rate and Buffer Rate, all benefits payable are determined according to the applicable Cycle Investment Unit Value. The amounts payable under this Contract are determined by the Cycle Investment Unit Value, regardless of the performance of the assets held in the Non-Registered Separate Account. The Contract Owner does not participate in the performance of the assets held in the separate account.

We may, subject to applicable state law, transfer all assets allocated to the Non-Registered Separate Account to our General Account.

The separate account is not required to be registered, and is not registered, as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

Our current plan is to invest Non-Registered Separate Account assets in fixed-income obligations, including but not limited to corporate bonds, mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities, government and agency issues and derivative contracts including but not limited to option contracts. We may also invest in interest rate swaps. Although the above generally describes our plan for investing the assets supporting our obligations under the Cycle Investments, we are not obligated to invest those assets according to any particular plan except as we may be required to by state insurance laws.

No Contract Owner participates in the investment results of any assets we hold in relation to the Cycle Investments.

While we hold assets in the Non-Registered Separate Account we have established under the Iowa Insurance Law to support our obligations under Cycle Investments, the Cycle Investments are General Account obligations.

MODIFICATION TO THE CONTRACT

Upon notice to you, we may modify the Contract to:

- (a) permit the Contract or the Separate Accounts to comply with any applicable law or regulation issued by a government agency;
- (b) assure continued qualification of the Contract under the Internal Revenue Code or other federal or state laws relating to retirement annuities or variable annuity Contracts;
- (c) reflect a change in the operation of the Separate Accounts; or
- (d) provide additional Investment Options.

In the event of such modifications, we will make an appropriate endorsement to the Contract.

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES

If you have any questions about your Contract or need to make changes, then contact your Advisor, or contact us at our Customer Service Center:

P.O. Box 9261 Des Moines, IA 50306-9261 (Regular Mail) 8300 Mills Civic Parkway West Des Moines, IA 50266-3833 (Overnight Delivery) Phone : (833) 492-0022 (toll-free) Fax : (833) 492-0023 (toll-free)

You currently may send correspondence and transaction requests to us at the above Customer Service Center address or by facsimile or telephone at the numbers listed above. Our service representatives are available between the hours of 7:30 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday (Central Time), excluding holidays and any day the New York Stock Exchange is not open. Any requests for partial withdrawals, transfers, and surrenders sent to another number or address may not be considered received at our Customer Service Center and will not receive that day's price. The procedures we follow for facsimile requests include a written confirmation sent directly to you and your Advisor following any transaction request. We will employ reasonable procedures to confirm that instructions communicated by telephone or facsimile are genuine. We may revoke facsimile, internet and telephone transaction privileges at any time for some or all Owners.

The procedures we follow for transactions initiated by telephone may include requirements that callers identify themselves and the Owner by name, social security number, date of birth of the Annuitant or an Owner, or other identifying information. We disclaim any liability for losses resulting from unauthorized or allegedly unauthorized facsimile, internet or telephone requests that we believe to be genuine. We may record all telephone requests. There are risks associated with requests made by facsimile (possible falsification of faxed documents by others), internet or telephone (possible falsification of Owner identity) when the original signed request is not sent to our Customer Service Center. You bear those risks.

Facsimile, internet, and telephone correspondence and transaction requests may not always be available. Facsimile, internet, and telephone systems can experience outages or slowdowns for a variety of reasons. These outages or slowdowns may prevent or delay our receipt of your request. If you are experiencing problems, you should mail your correspondence and transaction request to our **Customer Service Center**.

Change of Address Notification. To protect you from fraud and theft, we may verify any changes in address you request by sending a confirmation of the change to both your old and new addresses. We may also call you to verify the change of address.

DISTRIBUTION OF THE CONTRACT

We have entered into a distribution agreement with our affiliate, Sammons Financial Network for the distribution and sale of the Contracts. Sammons Financial Network is a Delaware limited liability company and its principal office is located at 8300 Mills Civic Parkway, West Des Moines, IA 50266. Sammons Financial Network is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Sammons Enterprises, Inc., of Dallas, Texas, the ultimate parent company of Midland National Life Insurance Company.

We pay compensation to Sammons Financial Network based on sales of the Contract up to 1.50% of the amount invested. Sammons Financial Network, in turn, may pay up to that full amount to affiliated and/or unaffiliated selling broker-dealers and other financial intermediaries with whom it has selling or other agreements. Sammons Financial Network may pay additional compensation in recognition of certain expenses that may be incurred by them or on their behalf. Sammons Financial Network may also pay certain broker-dealers or other financial intermediaries' compensation for enhanced marketing opportunities and other services (commonly referred to as "marketing allowances"). Services for which such marketing allowance payments are made may include, but are not limited to, the preferred placement of Midland National, its affiliates services and products, including but not limited to placing the Contract on a company and/or selling broker-dealer product list; sales personnel training; product training; business reporting; technological support; due diligence and related costs; advertising, marketing and related services; conferences; and/or other support services, including some that may benefit the Contract Owners. Marketing allowance payments may be based on the amount of assets or purchase payments attributable to Contracts sold through a selling broker-dealer or such payments may be a fixed amount. Sammons Financial Network may also make fixed marketing allowance payments to selling broker-dealers in connection with the initiation of a new relationship or the introduction of a new product, including training and education. These payments may serve as an incentive for selling broker-dealers to promote the sale of particular products. Additionally, as an incentive for financial professionals of selling broker-dealers to promote the sale of our and our affiliates' products and services Sammons Financial Network may increase the sales compensation paid to the selling broker-dealer for a period of time (commonly referred to as "compensation enhancements"). Marketing allowances and compensation enhancements are made out of Sammons Financial Network's assets. Not all selling brokerdealers receive marketing allowance payments or compensation enhancements.

In addition, Sammons Financial Network may offer sales incentive programs to financial professionals who meet specified total production levels for the sale of both affiliated and unaffiliated products which provide cash and non-cash compensation such as expense-paid trips, expense-paid educational seminars and merchandise.

The amount and structure of the foregoing compensation arrangements create potential conflicts of interest for the recipient insofar as they create financial incentives that may influence the recipient selling broker-dealer or financial professional to present this Contract over other investment alternatives. Selling broker-dealers are expected to disclose and eliminate or mitigate such conflicts in accordance with applicable regulatory requirements.

We do not pay commissions to financial intermediaries (i.e., Advisors) who receive Advisory Fees from Contract Owners. Your Advisor receives compensation in connection with the Contract in the form of those Advisory Fees.

Although we take all of our costs into account in establishing the level of fees and expenses in our products, any compensation paid by us to Sammons Financial Network will not result in any separate charge under the Contract. All payments made will be in compliance with all applicable FINRA rules and other laws and regulations.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Midland National Life Insurance Company and its subsidiaries, like other life insurance companies, may be involved in lawsuits, including class action lawsuits. In some class action and other lawsuits involving insurers, substantial damages have been sought and/ or material settlement payments have been made. Although the outcome of any litigation cannot be predicted with certainty, Midland National Life Insurance Company believes that, as of the date of this prospectus, there are no pending or threatened lawsuits that will have a materially adverse impact on the Registered Separate Account, on the ability of Sammons Financial Network, LLC ("Sammons Financial Network") to perform under its distribution agreement, or on the ability of the Company to meet its obligations under the contract.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of Midland National Life Separate Account C and Midland National Life Insurance Company are included in the Statement of Additional Information. Instructions on how to obtain the Statement of Additional Information are included on the back cover page.

PORTFOLIO VOTING RIGHTS

We invest the assets of our Registered Separate Account in shares of the Investment Portfolios. Midland National is the legal Owner of the shares and has the right to vote on certain matters. Among other things, we may vote:

- to elect the Funds' or Trust's Board of Directors/Trustees,
- to ratify the selection of independent auditors for the Investment Portfolios,
- on any other matters described in the Investment Portfolios' current prospectuses or requiring a vote by shareholders under the Investment Company Act of 1940, and
- in some cases, to change the investment objectives and Contracts.

Even though we own the shares, we may give you the opportunity to tell us how to vote the number of shares that are allocated to your Contract. If the federal securities laws or regulations or interpretations of them change so that we are permitted to vote shares of the Investment Portfolio in our own right or to restrict Owner voting, then we may do so.

Fund companies determine if and how often shareholder meetings are held. As we receive notice of these meetings, we will ask for your voting instructions. The Investment Portfolios are not required to and generally do not hold a meeting in any given year.

If we do not receive instructions in time from all Owners, then we currently intend to vote those shares in the same proportion as we vote shares for which we have received instructions in that Investment Portfolio. We currently intend to vote any Investment Portfolio shares that we and our affiliates alone are entitled to vote in the same proportions that Owners vote. The effect of this proportional voting is that a small number of Owners may control the outcome of a vote.

How We Determine Your Voting Shares

You may participate in voting only on matters concerning the Investment Portfolios in which your Accumulation Value has been invested. We determine your voting shares in each Investment Option by dividing the amount of your Accumulation Value allocated to that Subaccount by the net asset value of one share of the corresponding Investment Portfolio. This is determined as of the record date set by the Fund's/Trust's Board of Directors/Trustees for the shareholders meeting.

If you have a voting interest, then we will provide you proxy material and a form for giving us voting instructions. In certain cases, we may disregard instructions relating to changes in the Investment Portfolio's adviser or the investment adviser Contracts of the portfolios.

Voting Privileges of Participants in Other Companies

Other insurance companies own shares in the Investment Portfolios to support their variable life insurance and variable annuity products. We do not foresee any disadvantage to this. Nevertheless, each Fund's/Trust's Board of Directors/Trustees will monitor events to identify conflicts that may arise and determine appropriate action. If we disagree with any Investment Portfolio action, then we will see that appropriate action is taken to protect our Owners. If we ever believe that any of the Investment Portfolios are so large as to materially impair its investment performance, then we will consider exercising our right to remove or close the investing Subaccount.

Suitability of the Contract

Because of the fees and expenses and possible loss of principal and earnings from prior periods, the Contracts are not appropriate for short-term investment. In addition, Non-Qualified Contracts may be most appropriate for those who have already made maximum use of other tax favored investment plans such as 401(k) plans. The tax-deferred feature of the Contract is most favorable to those in high tax brackets. The tax-deferred feature is not necessary for a tax-qualified plan. In such instances, purchasers should consider whether other features, such as the lifetime annuity payments make the Contract appropriate for their purposes. Before purchasing a Contract, you should obtain competent tax advice and financial advice both as to the tax treatment of the Contract and the suitability of the investment for your particular situation.

This Contract is not designed for resale or speculation, arbitrage, viatical settlements or any type of collective investment scheme. This Contract may not be traded on any stock exchange or secondary market. By purchasing this Contract, you represent and warrant that you are not purchasing or intending to use this Contract, for resale, speculation, arbitrage, viatical settlements or any type of collective investment scheme.

Other Products

We may offer other variable annuity contracts through our Registered Separate Account that also invest in some of the same portfolios. These annuity contracts may have different charges and may offer different benefits. We encourage you to carefully consider the costs and benefits of the Contract to ensure that it is consistent with your personal investment goals and needs. To obtain more information about these annuity contracts, contact your Advisor, or call us at (866) 747-3421.

Electronic Delivery

You may elect to receive prospectuses, transaction confirmations, reports and other communications in electronic format, instead of receiving paper copies of these documents. The electronic delivery service is subject to various terms and conditions, including a requirement that you promptly notify us of any change in your e-mail address, in order to avoid any disruption of deliveries to you. You may elect to discontinue e-Delivery at any time and may also request paper copies of any documents by contacting our Customer

Service Center. You may obtain more information and assistance at https://www.midlandnational.com/oakeliteadv or by writing us at our mailing address P.O. Box 9261, Des Moines, IA 50306-9261 or by telephone at (833) 492-0022.

Reports to Owners

We send you a quarterly report within 31 days after the end of each calendar quarter showing the Contract Value, Surrender Value, and the Death Benefit as of the end of the Calendar Quarter. The report will also show the allocation of your Contract Value and reflects amounts deducted since the last report.

Confirmation notices will be sent to you and your Advisor for premiums, partial withdrawals, surrenders, transfers of amounts between Investment Options and certain other financial transactions within 5 Business Days of processing.

You should promptly notify our Customer Service Center of any errors or discrepancies. We will review and correct any errors.

Unless you specifically request paper copies, we will make semi-annual reports with financial information on the portfolios available on a website. Each time a report is posted, we will send you a notice that includes a link to the report.

Assigning Your Contract

In general, you may assign your rights in a Non-Qualified Contract, however, we reserve the right, except to the extent prohibited by applicable laws, regulations, or actions of the state insurance commissioner, to refuse assignments or transfers at any time on a nondiscriminatory basis. You must send a copy of the assignment to our Customer Service Center. The assignment does not take effect until we accept and approve it. We are not responsible for the validity of the assignment or for any payment we make or any action we take before we record notice of the assignment. An absolute assignment is a change of Ownership. There may be tax consequences.

This Contract is not designed for resale, speculation, arbitrage, viatical settlements or any other type of collective investment scheme. This Contract may not be traded on any stock exchange or secondary market.

Exemption from Exchange Act Reporting

We are relying on the exemption provided by Rule 12h-7 under the 1934 Act. In reliance on that exemption, we do not file periodic and current reports that we would be otherwise required to file pursuant to Section 15(d) of the 1934 Act.

Payment of Contract Proceeds

We will generally pay any Death Benefits, withdrawals, or surrenders within seven days after receiving the required form(s) in Good Order at our Customer Service Center.

We may delay payment or transfers for one or more of the following reasons:

- We cannot determine the amount of the payment,
- the New York Stock Exchange is closed,
- trading in securities has been restricted by the SEC,
- an emergency exists or if for any reason it is not reasonably practicable to dispose of or fairly value the securities held in an Investment Option,
- The SEC by order permits us to delay payment to protect our Owners, or
- Your premium check(s) have not cleared your bank.

If, pursuant to SEC rules, any Investment Portfolio suspends payment of redemption proceeds including, in the case of a money market fund Subaccount (which is the Subaccount used as the Default Account), in connection with liquidation of the underlying portfolio or as a result of portfolio liquidity levels then we will delay payment of any transfer (including a transfer under a DCA program), partial withdrawal, surrender, or Death Benefits from the corresponding Subaccount until the suspension of redemptions is lifted or the portfolio pays redemption proceeds.

Federal laws designed to counter terrorism and prevent money laundering by criminals might in certain circumstances require us to reject a premium payment and/or "freeze" an Owner's account. If these laws apply in a particular situation, we would not be allowed to process any request for withdrawals (including Lifetime Payments under a GLWB Rider), surrenders, or Death Benefits, make transfers, or continue making annuity payments. If a Contract or Investment Option is frozen, the applicable Contract Value would be moved to a special segregated interest bearing account and held in that account until we receive instructions from the appropriate federal regulator. We may also be required to provide information about you and your Contract to the government agencies and departments.

APPENDIX A -INVESTMENT OPTIONS AVAILABLE UNDER THE CONTRACT

PORTFOLIO COMPANIES

The following is a list of the portfolios currently available under the Contract. More information about the Portfolio Companies is available in the prospectuses for the Portfolio Companies, which can be amended from time to time and can be found online at https://www.midlandnational.com/oakeliteadv. You can also request this information at no cost by calling 866-747-3421 or sending an email request to <u>SecuritiesPI@sfgmembers.com</u>.

The current expenses and performance information below reflects fees and expenses of the Investment Portfolios, but does not reflect the other fees and expenses that your Contract may charge. Expenses would be higher and performance would be lower if these charges were included. Each investment portfolio's past performance is not necessarily an indication of future performance.

		Ave	rage Annual Total Returns (as of 12/31/2024)		
Type / Investment Objective	Portfolio Company and Advisor / Subadvisor		1-Year Return	5-Year Return	10-Year Return
US Insurance Moderate Allocation	American Funds IS® Asset Allocation 4				
	Capital Research and Management Company	0.80	16.11	8.04	8.05
US Insurance Global Large-Stock Growth	American Funds IS® Global Growth 4				
	Capital Research and Management Company	0.91	13.39	9.49	10.46
US Insurance Large Growth	Fidelity® VIP Growth Opportunities Svc 2				
	Fidelity Management & Research Company LLC / FMR Investment Management (U.K.) Limited;Fidelity Management & Research (Japan) Limited;Fidelity Management & Research (HK) Ltd;	0.84	38.54	18.46	17.92
US Insurance Short- Term Bond	Lord Abbett Series Short Duration Inc VC				
	Lord, Abbett & Co LLC	0.85	5.14	1.70	2.09
US Insurance Inflation- Protected Bond	PIMCO VIT Real Return Adv				
	Pacific Investment Management Company, LLC	0.94	2.03	1.83	2.05
US Insurance Ultrashort Bond	PIMCO VIT Short-Term Adv				
	Pacific Investment Management Company, LLC	0.76	5.95	2.66	2.30
US Fund Money Market - Taxable	Fidelity® VIP Government Money Mkt Svc 2				
	Fidelity Management & Research Company LLC / FMR Investment Management (U.K.) Limited; Fidelity Management & Research (Japan) Limited; Fidelity Management & Research (HK) Ltd	0.52	4.82	2.17	1.44

CYCLE INVESTMENTS

The following is a list of Cycle Investments currently available under the Contract. We may change the features of the Cycle Investments listed below (including the Index and the current limits on Index gains), offer new Cycle Investments and terminate existing Cycle Investments. We will provide you with written notice before making any changes other than changes to current limits on Index gains. Information about current limits on Index gains is available at https://www.midlandnational.com/oakeliteadv.

Note: If amounts are removed from a Cycle Investment before the end of its Cycle Term, we will apply an adjustment based on the Fair Value of the Cycle Investment. This may result in a significant reduction in your Cycle Investment Value that could exceed any protection from Index loss that would be in place if you waited until the end of the Cycle Term.

See THE CYCLE INVESTMENT OPTIONS - Features of a Cycle Investment in the prospectus for a description of the features of the Cycle Investments. See THE CYCLE INVESTMENT OPTIONS - Valuation of a Cycle Investment in the prospectus for more information about adjustments for Fair Value.

Index	Type of Index	Cycle Term	Current Limit on Index Loss (if held until end of Cycle Term)	Minimum Limit on Index Gain (for the life of the Cycle Investment)
S&P 500 [®] Price Return Index ¹	U.S. Large Cap Equities	1 Year	-10% Buffer	5.0% Cap Rate
S&P 500 [®] Price Return Index ¹	U.S. Large Cap Equities	1 Year	-10% Buffer	10.0% Participation Rate
S&P 500 [®] Price Return Index ¹	U.S. Large Cap Equities	1 Year	-10% Floor	2.5% Cap Rate
S&P 500 [®] Price Return Index ¹	U.S. Large Cap Equities	3 Year	-10% Buffer	5.0% Cap Rate
S&P 500 [®] Price Return Index ¹	U.S. Large Cap Equities	3 Year	-10% Floor	2.5% Cap Rate
S&P 500 [®] Price Return Index ¹	U.S. Large Cap Equities	6 Year	-10% Buffer	12.5% Cap Rate & 10.0% Participation Rate
S&P 500 [®] Price Return Index ¹	U.S. Large Cap Equities	6 Year	-20% Buffer	10.0% Cap Rate & 10.0% Participation Rate
S&P 500 [®] Price Return Index ¹	U.S. Large Cap Equities	6 Year	-30% Buffer	7.5% Cap Rate & 5.00% Participation Rate
MSCI EAFE (Price Return Index ¹	International Equities	1 Year	-10% Buffer	5.0% Cap Rate
MSCI EAFE (Price Return Index ¹	International Equities	1 Year	-10% Buffer	10.0% Participation Rate
MSCI EAFE (Price Return Index ¹	International Equities	6 Year	-10% Buffer	12.5% Cap Rate & 10.0% Participation Rate
DFA Equity Core Plus Index ²	Diversified Equities	1 Year	-10% Buffer	5.0% Cap Rate & 10.0% Participation Rate
DFA Equity Core Plus Index ²	Diversified Equities	6 Year	-10% Buffer	12.5% Cap Rate & 10.0% Participation Rate
DFA Equity Core Plus Index ²	Diversified Equities	6 Year	-20% Buffer	10.0% Cap Rate & 10.0% Participation Rate
DFA Equity Core Plus Index ²	Diversified Equities	6 Year	-30% Buffer	7.5% Cap Rate & 5.00% Participation Rate

¹This Index is a "price return index," not a "total return index," and therefore does not reflect dividends paid on the securities composing the Index. This will reduce the Index return and may cause the Index to underperform a direct investment in the securities composing the Index.

²This Index reflects the deductions of both the current effective federal funds rate (EFFR) and a 1.2% synthetic dividend. As of December 1, 2024, the current EFFR was 4.58%. The EFFR will fluctuate over time, and may be higher or lower in the future. These deductions will reduce the Index return and will cause the Index to underperform a direct investment in the securities composing the Index.

Each Cycle Investment's limit on Index losses is guaranteed not to change for so long as that Cycle Investment remains available under the Contract. However, we reserve the right to add and remove Cycle Investments as available investment options. As such, the limits on Index loss offered under the Contract may change from one Cycle Term to the next. We guarantee that we will never offer a Cycle Investment with a Floor Rate lower than -60% or a Buffer Rate lower than -5% for the life of your Contract. We reserve the right not to offer any Cycle Investments in the future. If we do so, you will be limited to investing in the Subaccounts, which are not tied to the performance of an Index and do not provide any protection against losses.

We guarantee that we will never offer a Cycle Investment with a Cap Rate below 2.5 % and/or a Participation Rate below 10% for the life of your Contract. We reserve the right to offer Indexed Interest Crediting Strategies with different types of limits on Index gains.

APPENDIX B – STATE VARIATIONS

The prospectus provides a general description of the Contract, but your state of issue may provide different features from those described in the body of the prospectus. As of the date of this prospectus, there are no material state variations. Several states are still pending approval.

APPENDIX C – INDEX DISCLAIMERS

The Cycle Investments track certain Securities Indices that are published by third parties. Midland National uses these Securities Indices under license from the Indices' respective publishers. The following information about the Indices is included in this Prospectus in accordance with Midland National's license agreements with the publishers of the Indices:

THE STANDARD & POOR'S 500[®] COMPOSITE STOCK PRICE INDEX

This Index does not include dividends paid by the underlying companies.

The "S&P 500[®]" is a product of S&P Indices LLC or its affiliates ("SPDJI") and has been licensed for use by Midland National Life Insurance Company ("Midland National" or "the Company"). Standard & Poor's[®] and S&P[®] are registered trademarks of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC ("S&P"). The trademarks have been licensed to SPDJI and have been sublicensed for use for certain purposes by the Company. The Product is not sponsored, endorsed, sold or promoted by SPDJI, S&P, or any of their respective affiliates (collectively, "S&P Indices"). S&P Indices does not make any representation or warranty, express or implied, to the owners of the Product or any member of the public regarding the advisability of investing in securities generally or in this Product particularly or the ability of these Indices to track general market performance. S&P Indices only relationship to Midland National with respect to these Indices is the licensing of the Index and certain trademarks, service marks and/or trade names of S&P Indices and/or its licensors. The Indices are determined, composed and calculated by S&P Indices without regard to Midland National or the Product. S&P Indices has no obligation to take the needs of the Company or the owners of this Product into consideration in determining, composing or calculating these Indices. S&P Indices is not responsible for and have not participated in the determination of the prices, and amount of the Product or the timing of the issuance or sale of this Product or in the determination or calculation of the equation by which the Product is to be converted into cash, surrendered or redeemed, as the case may be. S&P Indices has no obligation or liability in connection with the administration, marketing or trading of the Product. There is no assurance that investment products based on these Indices will accurately track index performance or provide positive investment returns. S&P Indices LLC is not an investment advisor. Inclusion of a security within an index is not a recommendation by S&P Indices to buy, sell, or hold such security, nor is it considered to be investment advice.

S&P INDICES DOES NOT GUARANTEE THE ADEQUACY, ACCURACY, TIMELINESS AND/OR THE COMPLETENESS OF THESE INDICES OR ANY DATA RELATED THERETO OR ANY COMMUNICATION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ORAL OR WRITTEN COMMUNICATION (INCLUDING ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS) WITH RESPECT THERETO. S&P INDICES SHALL NOT BE SUBJECT TO ANY DAMAGES OR LIABILITY FOR ANY ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR DELAYS THEREIN. S&P INDICES MAKES NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, AND EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE OR AS TO RESULTS TO BE OBTAINED BY MIDLAND NATIONAL, OWNERS OF THE PRODUCT, OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY FROM THE USE OF THE INDICES OR WITH RESPECT TO ANY DATA RELATED THERETO. WITHOUT LIMITING ANY OF THE FOREGOING, IN NO EVENT WHATSOEVER SHALL S&P INDICES BE LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOSS OF PROFITS, TRADING LOSSES, LOST TIME OR GOODWILL, EVEN IF THEY HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR OTHERWISE. THERE ARE NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES OF ANY AGREEMENTS OR AGREEMENTS BETWEEN S&P INDICES AND THE COMPANY, OTHER THAN THE LICENSORS OF S&P INDICES

MSCI EAFE Price Return Index

MSCI EAFE Price Return Index is an unmanaged index that measures the equity market performance of 22 developed market country indices located in Europe, Australasia, and the Far East. It is not available for direct investment. The Product referred to herein is not sponsored, endorsed or promoted by MSCI, and MSCI bears no liability with respect to any such Product or any index on which such Product is based. The Prospectus contains a more detailed description of the limited relationship MSCI has with Midland National Life Insurance Company and any related funds.

Dimensional US Equity Core Plus Index

The Dimensional US Equity Core Plus Index (the "Index") is sponsored and published by Dimensional Fund Advisors LP ("Dimensional"). References to Dimensional include its respective directors, officers, employees, representatives, delegates or agents. The use of "Dimensional" in the name of the Index and the related stylized mark(s) are service marks of Dimensional and have been licensed for use by Sammons Financial Group, Inc. ("Sammons"). Sammons has entered into a license agreement with Dimensional providing for the right to use the Index and related trademarks in connection with the Oak Elite Advisory Registered Index-Linked Variable Annuity (the "Financial Product"). The Financial Product is not sponsored, endorsed, sold or promoted by Dimensional, and Dimensional makes no representation regarding the advisability of the purchase of such Financial Product. Dimensional has no responsibilities, obligations or duties to purchasers of the Financial Product, nor does Dimensional make any express or implied warranties, including, but not limited to, any warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose or use with respect to the Index, or as to results to be obtained by the Financial Product or any other person or entity from the use of the Index, trading based on the Index, the levels of the Index at any particular time on any particular date, or any data included therein, either in connection with the Financial Product or for any other use. Dimensional has no obligation or liability in connection with the administration, marketing or selling of the Financial Product. Dimensional receives compensation in connection with the management of the Index components and such compensation may increase as a result of investment in the ETFs based on the Index, including in connection with the Financial Product. Dimensional is not providing any investment, tax or financial advice to any person by virtue of publication of the Index, and has no obligation to and will not take into account the tax status, investment goals or other characteristics of any such person in its publication of the Index. Inclusion of a security or financial instrument within the Index is not a recommendation by Dimensional to buy, sell, or hold such security or financial instrument, nor is it considered to be investment advice.

In certain circumstances, Dimensional may suspend or terminate the Index. Dimensional has appointed a third-party agent (the "Index Calculation Agent") to calculate and maintain the Index. While Dimensional is responsible for the operation of the Index, certain aspects have thus been outsourced to the Index Calculation Agent. Dimensional does not guarantee the accuracy, timeliness or completeness of the Index, or any data included therein or the calculation thereof or any communications with respect thereto. Dimensional has no liability for any errors, omissions or interruptions of the Index or in connection with its use. In no event shall Dimensional have any liability of whatever nature for any losses, damages, costs, claims and expenses (including any special, punitive, direct, indirect or consequential damages (including lost profits)) arising out of matters relating to the use of the Index, even if notified of the possibility of such damages. Dimensional has provided Sammons with all material information related to the Index methodology and the maintenance, operation and calculation of the Index. Dimensional makes no representation with respect to the completeness of information related to the Index provided by Sammons in connection with the offer or sale of any Financial Product. Dimensional acts as principal and not as agent or fiduciary of any other person. Dimensional has not published or approved this document, nor does Dimensional accept any responsibility for its contents or use. Dimensional has not passed on the legality or suitability of, or the accuracy or adequacy of descriptions and disclosures relating to, the Financial Product and this document.

APPENDIX D – SUPERSEDED RATE SHEET SUPPLEMENT INFORMATION

There are currently no superseded Rate Sheet Supplements.

The Statement of Additional Information (SAI) can provide you with more detailed information about the Contract, Midland National Life Insurance Company and the Midland National Life Separate Account C, including more information about commissions and distribution expenses. For more information about the Contract and/or a free copy of the SAI or prospectus, contact your Advisor or our **Customer Service Center** at:

Sammons Retirement Solutions P.O. Box 9261 Des Moines, IA 50306-9261 (Regular Mail)

Sammons Retirement Solutions 8300 Mills Civic Parkway West Des Moines, IA 50266-3833 (Overnight Mail) Phone: (866) 747-3421 Facsimile: (866) 511-7038

Reports and other information about Midland National Life Insurance Company and Midland National Life Separate Account C are available on the Securities and Exchange Commission's website at http://www.sec.gov. You may obtain copies of this information, upon your payment of a duplicating fee, by electronic request at this e-mail address: publicinfo@sec.gov.

Dealer Prospectus Delivery Obligations:

All dealers that effect transactions in these securities are required to deliver a prospectus. EDGAR Contract Identifier Nos. C000235591; C000256075